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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBERERBREREXBER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MERE
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
Eﬁ‘ H=E
i —TTHF
+t=g=+-8 =A=t+-8
1@ B HFE
RMB million RMB million
ARBBETR AREBHEIT
Gross revenue " B U s 1,282.0 1,812.7
Revenue W 25 397.0 642.0
EBITDA S HTE N SH AT FE (487.0) (1,032.9)
EBIT (Loss from operations) oSN R D (603.0) (1,169.3)
(K E5E)
Loss attributable to equity shareholders 7K 2 5] j& & fE {5 /&5 18 (635.1) (1,279.1)

of the Company

Basic loss per share SRR EAE B (27.3) cents &  (55.0) cents &
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-EBE-EF RZEZZE
+Z—A=+-—H —A=+—H
RMB million RMB million
AREBET AREBETT
Net assets of the Group AEBEEBEEFE 2,038.0 2,708.7
NAV per ordinary share @ I% & mAR & =R E? 1.73 yuan © 2.28 yuan JT
Notes: TR
(1) Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the (1) RN IEEERR FATERERPZE

sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers,
gross rental income and management and administrative

service fee income charged to tenants.

NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity attributable

to equity shareholders of the Company per ordinary share.
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBERBRERBRERXEE

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX RAREEKRIEE
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
EE_-; Eﬁii
tT=ZA= ‘I' H =A= -I— =
IENER IEFE
RMB RMB
AR% T AR T
Sales per ticket R BED 1,167 1,245
Annualised area efficiency (per m?) @ FEMATFHR(FFEHFAK)@ 20,600 21,200
Notes: TR
) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of (1 REEBIEAENSHBRERAER S
transactions of department stores. BE o
() Annualised area efficiency represents annualised gross revenue (2) FEATIBIET ERSFELARIER

per average operating area of department stores. PASE 4 & THI 78 o

HESHEHEERERLA

—B-BEEH
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

IFENBERRBE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &/ —ZE - ZF#+ - A =+—HIF @A
(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB"))  (UANEE ([AR%E])Z5)
RESULTS
Nine months
ended
31 December
2020 Yo ded 31 March
RMB'000 ear enae arc
Bz BE=-A=1+-AIL%¥E
g S 33 2020 2019 2018 2017
+=A=1+-H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LR =T=TF ZT-NF ZT-/\F ZTLF
ARETRE AREBFTT ARETT AREFRT ARETR
Revenue e
- Continuing operations —BEEEEK 397,021 642,012 1,054,065 1,159,060 1,144,753
- Discontinued operations —RIFREER - - - - -
397,021 642,012 1,054,065 1,159,060 1,144,753
(Loss)/profit attributable ADEREENR
to equity shareholders (B18)/ &7
of the Company
- Continuing operations ~RELEER (635,095)  (1,279,095) (261,575) 27,234 (352,337)
- Discontinued operations —RIEREER - - - - -
(635,095) (1,279,095) (261,575) 27,234 (352,337)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at
31 December
2020 As_at 31 March
RMB'000 REA=1-H
RZIEZZ2E 2020 2019 2018 2017
+=H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
=t-8 ZZEZ%F ZE-NEF ZZE-N\F ZE—tF
ARBTT ARBTr ARETHT AR%®Tr ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 6,397,191 6,669,619 7,199,981 7,279,287 7,104,859
CURRENT ASSETS REEE 687,307 721,565 1,061,670 1,200,911 1,245,330
DEDUCT: ik
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE 2,733,966 2,645,748 2,040,450 1,932,084 1,769,159
NET CURRENT MBAEFE
LIABILITIES (2,046,659) (1,924,183) (978,780) (731,173) (523,829)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRDER
CURRENT LIABILITIES ‘ 4,350,532 4,745,436 6,221,201 6,548,114 6,581,030
DEDUCT: i
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FrBat 2,312,560 2,036,718 2,132,976 2,162,515 2,263,725
NET ASSETS EEFH 2,037,972 2,708,718 4,088,225 4,385,599 4,317,305

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the nine months ended 31
December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, facing the disruption caused by the COVID-19
epidemic as well as the complex and severe situation in
Mainland China and overseas, all authorities across various
regions have, in accordance with the principle of “preventing
internal outbreak and external import cases”, scientifically
coordinated the balance between epidemic prevention and
economic and social development and effectively promoted the
recovery of production and life order. The supply and demand
relationship gradually improved, market vitality increased,
employment and people’s livelihoods were better protected,
and the national economy continued to recover steadily. In
2020, the shift in economic growth rate from negative to
positive was successfully achieved, and the overall social
situation remained stable.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the
service industry continued to recover steadily in 2020. As a
preliminary estimate, the added-value of the service industry
was RMB55,397.7 billion, representing an increase of 2.1% as
compared to last year. The added-value of the service industry
accounted for 54.5% of the gross domestic product (“GDP")
of China, representing an increase of 0.2 percentage points
as compared to that of last year. The added-value of the
service industry in the fourth quarter was RMB15,272.8 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.7%. The modern
service industry continuously developed in a fast pace. In 2020,
the added-value of the information transmission, software and
information technology service industry, the financial industry
and the real estate industry increased by 16.9%, 7.0% and
2.9%, respectively, as compared to that of last year, resulting
in an increase of 2.7 percentage points in the added-value of
the service industry, which strongly supported the recovery of
the overall economy. The transformation and enhancement
of the service industry was stable. New consumption models
such as online shopping, live-stream sales and online take-
away ordering achieved robust growth. In 2020, the online
retail sales of commodity goods increased by 14.8% from that
of last year, which was 18.7 percentage points higher than
the growth rate of the total retail sales of consumer goods,
and accounted for 24.9% of the total retail sales of consumer
goods. The business volume of express delivery amounted
to 83.36 billion pieces, representing a growth rate of 31.2%
as compared to that of last year. There have been continued
demands for various new consumption models, such as online
offices, online education and remote diagnosis. From January
to November 2020, the cumulative traffic of mobile Internet
across the country reached 149.50 billion GB, representing a
year-on-year growth rate of 35.1%. The operating income of
large-scale enterprises, which were engaged in Internet and
related services, and software and information technology
services, increased by 20.7% and 15.7%, respectively. In
respect of market expectation, the business forecast index for
the service sector was 60.1%, having attained a high level for
six consecutive months.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In 2020, market sales improved every quarter. Total retail
sales of consumer goods amounted to RMB39,198.1 billion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.9%, which
narrowed by 3.3 percentage points as compared to the
first three quarters of 2020. Market sales showed a trend
of recovery on a quarterly basis, and the consumer market
recovery continued. In December 2020, total retail sales of
consumer goods kept growing, and market sales achieved
a year-on-year increase for five consecutive months. Online
consumption has been growing rapidly. Under the epidemic,
demand for household consumption increased significantly,
and the growth of “stay-at-home economy” has driven the
accelerated development of a new consumption model. In
2020, national online retail sales increased by 10.9% as
compared to the previous year, which was 1.2 percentage
points over the first three quarters of 2020. On the other
hand, offline consumption improved significantly. The impact
of the epidemic on face-to-face consumption is more obvious.
In the first quarter, there were sharp decreases in both physical
store traffic and merchandise sales. With the restoration
of living order of residents, the going-out consumption
activities of the residents increased steadily. As the pedestrian
flow among physical stores has obviously rebound, offline
consumption showed a trend of recovery. In 2020, the
retail sales of supermarket products (above designated size)
increased by 3.1% as compared to that of the previous year,
which was 0.2 percentage points over the first three quarters
of 2020. The decline in retail sales of department stores,
specialty stores and exclusive stores narrowed by 6.8, 3.8
and 5.4 percentage points, respectively, from the first three
quarters of 2020, and narrowed by 25.1, 19.3 and 27.3
percentage points, respectively, from the first quarter. The
growth of resident income was basically in line with economic
growth. In 2020, the per capita disposable income of residents
nationwide was RMB32,189, representing a nominal increase
of 4.7% as compared to the previous year. After excluding
the price factor, the per capita disposable income of residents
nationwide increased by 2.1%, which was basically in line
with the economic growth. In 2020, the per capita disposable
income of residents nationwide doubled from that of 2010. As
such, after excluding the price factor, the per capita disposable
income of residents nationwide actually increased by 7.2%
annually on average and by 100.8% on a cumulative basis
within ten years from 2011 to 2020, which means that the
per capita disposable income of residents nationwide doubled
from that of 2010.

Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

XKEOE#)
—EFTFE- m%—ﬁﬁ%L WEE
SHE mTE#EE391,9818 T L FFE TR
39% MRIEHE=-FEWEIIEE -
MSHEEREZTMERD HBMIGE
BEANRFE  —E-FTF+ A A HE
MTEBBREERBER THHEES
FAEARLIEEE R EHBRRIER -
RETE BRHESKPRER [EL
] EEHAEBEANRER - — T
F 2P LEEREL EFERI09%
BRGE=ZFENRI2EE DB R THE
BRENES RREHEBEABENTESE
AR —EE BREEHERZBITE -
B SRR TR -BEERREFERF K
B ERINDBEBEEESEN BEER
MEBELO KT EBRABEEHK —T=F
F REUNLBTEREEHE L LFIER
3.1% R E =ZFE INR0.2EE 52
Eifﬂé BEENEBE/ERA RS SRR
DR E=ZFEWFEE68 3.8M54EE »
2RIt —ZFEURFE25.1 ~ 19.3F8127 314
AN -ERIWAZRELEEREKNR
*Fo—;_?i 2EHERAHAIZEKRA
32,1897 ' th L F R EIERLAT% - IR E
%%%:’%IEEAHT?Z@EW)\% )
WR21% HEEEEREAR S - —F =
TF2EERAHRAL =T —ZFIE N
— B BREREXRE —T——FE2_F
—EFE2EER AR XM AFEHER
WR7.2%  THERFTERIER100.8% - A
FEHERAVAIMRBAL T —FF 1
my—fF-

cap

Cr

e EHERRERAT
—B-BEEH

9



10

Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In general, economic operations continued to recover steadily
in 2020. The overall planning for epidemic prevention and
development achieved remarkable results, and various
economic indicators shifted from negative to positive in the
third quarter and thereafter maintained steady growth in
the fourth quarter. China’s comprehensive national strength
was further improved in 2020. However, it should be noted
that the international environment remains complex and
severe, with many uncertainties and instability. The pressure
of guarding against imported cases and avoiding internal
outbreak is not small, the economy is still in the process of
recovery, and the foundation for sustained recovery needs to
be strengthened.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In terms of the situation in Xi'an, as the epidemic prevention
and control situation has become stable, the results of
the policies to expand domestic demand and promote
consumption have become apparent, market consumption
has gradually become active, and the recovery momentum
of the consumer market has continuously gained strength. In
2020, the total output value of Xi'an reached RMB1,002.039
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.2%, based on
comparable price. The growth rate was 2.9 percentage points
and 3.0 percentage points higher than that of the country and
the Shaanxi province, respectively. In terms of industries, the
added-value of the primary industry was RMB31.275 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 3.0%. The added-
value of the secondary industry was RMB332.827 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 7.4%. The added-value
of the tertiary industry was RMB637.937 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 4.2%. In terms of the consumer
market, total retail sales of consumer goods of Xi'an for the
year reached RMB498.933 billion, representing a decrease of
2.9% as compared to last year. The decline narrowed by 2.7
percentage points compared with the first three quarters of
2020. The retail sales of consumer goods above designated
size amounted to RMB251.261 billion, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 1.3%, which narrowed by 2.3 percentage
points compared with the first three quarters of 2020. In
terms of consumption patterns, the income from food and
beverage units above designated size was RMB9.394 billion,
representing a decrease of 20.7% as compared to last year.
The retail sales of consumer goods above designated size were
RMB241.867 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of
0.4%. In terms of operating locations, retail sales of consumer
goods above designated size in urban areas amounted to
RMB250.793 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 1.3% as compared to last year. Retail sales of consumer
goods above designated size in rural areas amounted to
RMB469 million, representing a decrease of 30.3%. In terms
of commodity categories, the sales of consumer-upgraded
commodities have grown rapidly. The retail sales of beverages,
cosmetics, books, newspapers and magazines, cultural and
office supplies, communication equipment, construction
and decoration materials above designated size increased
by 70.1%, 14.0%, 10.7%, 32.8%, 25.5% and 49.3%,
respectively, higher than the growth rate of the retail sales of
consumer goods which are above designated size in Xi‘an. The
retail sales of goods which are above designated size on the
Internet was RMB59.275 billion, representing an increase of
37.1% as compared to last year. It also accounted for 23.6%
of the retail sales of consumer goods above designated size
of Xi'an, representing an increase of 6.7 percentage points as
compared to last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In general, Xi'an’s GDP growth remained relatively high in
2020. With the rapid narrowing of the decrease in the total
retail sales of consumer goods and the total retail sales
of commodities of enterprises above designated size, the
growth rate of retail sales of goods increased significantly.
The consumption stimulus measures have continued to be
effective, with commodity consumption gradually picking
up and the wholesale and retail sectors recovering rapidly,
leading to a rapid decline in the decrease in commodity retail
sales. The overall economic environment has been relatively
optimistic as the consumer goods market continues to recover.

The competition among the department store markets in
Xi'an remains fierce in the context of the epidemic. According
to statistics, more than 20 department stores and shopping
centers have opened and will open in Xi'an in 2020 and
2021, including influential companies, such as “Longfor
Xiangti Paradise Walk”, “Chanba IMIX Park”, “Fengxi Wuyue
Plaza”, “Lifeng Urban Life Plaza”, as well as new market
entrants including “Xi'an Suning Plaza”. On the other hand,
traditional department stores in Xi‘an such as “Parkson” and
“Minsheng” have also accelerated the closure of stores in
old commercial districts. It can be seen from this that, as new
companies continue to enter and new strong players have
continuous access to the commercial retail market of Xi'an,
long-established companies and companies that have lost
competitiveness are leaving the market one after another,
reflecting the growth in the intensity of market competition
and elimination rate.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In a highly competitive environment, on the one hand,
the Company insists on providing exclusive services and
maintaining specialty business operations to ensure the
stability of sales. On the other hand, after Qujiang Financial
Holdings realised its holding of the Company, the new
management team of the Company has stepped up efforts to
actively optimise the Group’s organisational structure, merge
related functions, reduce personnel costs, and improve work
efficiency. The Company has established a segmented business
model, which clearly delineates the Company’s existing and
new business segments. The Company has established a
flat management plan, optimized the work process, and
improved time-effectiveness of work. At the same time, in
accordance with the principle of “expanding coverage of
surrounding markets with an established presence in Xi'an”,
the new management team of the Company has successively
strengthened ties with government departments in Yan'an,
Xianyang, Yulin and other cities in Shaanxi Province as well
as potential investors and acquisition targets to gradually
expand the influence and scale of the Century Ginwa brand. In
addition, after completion of the acquisition of the Company’s
shares by Qujiang Investment and Qujiang Financial Holdings
on 5 June 2020, the Company carried out seven major battles
including “breakthroughs in marketing”, “store upgrade”,
“activation of membership”, “team empowerment”,
“online business”, “overcoming funding difficulties and
financial innovation” and “tackling toughness by attracting
investment”, which achieved remarkable results. Through the
efforts of the team and the full support of Qujiang Financial
Holdings, a substantial shareholder of the Company, the
Group has resolved the supplier debt problem through batch
payments and a comprehensive financial plan, allowing
business partners to regain confidence in the Company.
The Group's investment team followed up quickly and the
occupancy rate reached 95% from less than 70% at the
beginning when Qujiang Financial Holdings stepped in.
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FUTURE AND OUTLOOK

The new leadership team of the Company has established the
overall goal of “becoming stronger and bigger achievers”, and
set the goal of regaining its position as the market leader in
Shaanxi in terms of operation. In terms of specific operations,
investment promotion, member recruitment, external
expansion, talent echelon, business model, etc., the Company
abandoned the original methods and adopted new ideas and
methods to achieve new breakthroughs in new fields.

In terms of new business layout, the online business of the
Company has been relaunched under the leadership of the
Group’s senior management, which, upon completion, will
enable the Company to fully catch up with and surpass
competitors in terms of technology. The gradual realization of
the financial innovation business also allows us to establish
closer business relations with the Company’s substantial
shareholder, Qujiang Financial Holdings, and develop a unique
advantage in the competitive field. Meanwhile, the Company
is also exploring new business areas and directions including
self-operated business, commerce business and supermarket
business.

In terms of customer base, the Company has accumulated a
large number of loyal customers with high purchasing power
during its 22 continuous years of operation. While business
is gradually recovering from the epidemic, the Company will
maintain high-quality services by continuously innovative
methods to attract existing customers to return to purchase
in stores and attract new target customers to increase the
customer base and the number of members.

In terms of operating capabilities, providing customers with
a nearly perfect consumption experience has been the key
to the Company’s success over the years. In this regard, the
Company will gradually start to improve the interior design
and facilities of each store. While improving the standard
of hardware facilities, the Company will strengthen FAB
(features, advantages, benefits) of employees to enhance their
understanding of products and improve their professional
ability and service standards in sales work, so as to provide
customers with a brand new customer experience and sincere
and quality services in terms of our software and hardware
service capabilities.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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FUTURE AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Although the domestic and international economic
environment has been greatly impacted by the epidemic
and competition in the domestic retail market has become
increasingly fierce, with the orderly advancement of domestic
epidemic prevention and control, the effective measures
of economic recovery implemented by the Party Central
Committee and the State Council, and a series of measures
such as consumer coupons recently implemented by the Xi'an
Municipal Government and Qujiang New District Management
Committee, have injected more drive and stimulation to
the recovery of the macro economy and the rebound of
the consumer market. With the vertical deepening of the
transformation of and reforms in national institutions, national
policies will likely create a more favorable macro environment
for enterprise development. The Company will also adjust its
strategies and formulate corresponding policies in a timely
manner while advancing with the times to improve the
Company's operating capabilities, business scale, and influence
and competitiveness in Xi‘an, Shaanxi and nationwide.

In terms of the expansion of its existing businesses, on the
basis of maintaining its market share in Xi‘an, the Company
will make full use of its successful practice and accumulated
experience over the past two decades, and actively explore
new business models in the middle of integration and
optimization of existing businesses. In addition, the Company
will increase its coverage of other cities and strong counties in
Shaanxi through various forms such as asset-heavy investment,
investment mergers and acquisitions, asset-light operation,
management output and goodwill output, to achieve orderly
growth of the Company’s scale and continuous enhancement
of competitiveness.

In terms of brand introduction, the Company will gradually
expand the target customer base in the boutique and high-
end market segments, and continue to introduce domestic
and foreign well-known brands to provide consumers with
more high-quality choices while actively exploring new
business models and channels to supply goods more directly
to consumers, thereby transforming the business models and
the pattern of profit distribution. We believe that with the
support of Qujiang New District Management Committee
and substantial shareholder, Qujiang Financial Holdings, and
under the effective leadership of the new management team,
the Company is enabled to achieve satisfactory financial
performance with its strong brand strength and outstanding
operational efficiency. The Company will continue to maintain
its leading position in the industry and obtain due returns for
shareholders and investors through the unremitting efforts of
the new management team and collective leadership.
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ETRE®|E

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Huang Shunxu
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the period under review, the performance of the Group
was illustrated as follows.

(i)

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

Gross revenue of the Group for the nine months ended
31 December 2020 decreased to RMB1,282.0 million as
compared to RMB1,812.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2020. The decline was primarily attributable to a
drop in concession sales and sales of goods.

Annualised area efficiency (annualised gross revenue per
average operating area of department stores) for the
nine months ended 31 December 2020 was RMB20,600
per square meter, as compared to RMB21,200 per
square meter for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Revenue of the Group for the nine months ended 31
December 2020 decreased to RMB397.0 million as
compared to RMB642.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2020. The decline was due to a drop in
concession sales and sales of goods.

The gross rental income and management and
administrative service fee income of the Group for the
nine months ended 31 December 2020 were RMB77.6
million, as compared to RMB114.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

The Group’s loss from operations (EBIT) for nine months
ended 31 December 2020 was RMB603.0 million as
compared to loss of RMB1,169.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020. The operating profit margin
(loss from operations over gross revenue) changed from
-64.5% to -47.0%.

Net finance costs of the Group for the nine months
ended 31 December 2020 were RMB115.8 million (year
ended 31 March 2020: RMB118.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

(vii)  The Group’'s loss for the nine months ended 31
December 2020 and loss attributable to shareholders
of the Company were RMB665.2 million (year ended
31 March 2020: RMB1,312.6 million) and RMB635.1
million (year ended 31 March 2020: RMB1,279.1
million) respectively. The Group’s loss for the nine
months ended 31 December 2020 was mainly due
to the impairment losses on goodwill and intangible
assets of RMB365.9 million (year ended 31 March 2020:
RM470.6 million) and an increase in provisions for
obligation from Cash Coupon Card (customers’ prepaid
cards within the Group’s department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets) to be consumed of RMB194.5
million (year ended 31 March 2020: RMB94.0 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s consolidated
net asset value was RMB2,038.0 million (31 March
2020: RMB2,708.7 million). As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had cash at bank and on hand amounting to RMB393.6
million (31 March 2020: RMB500.8 million). The current
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was 0.25 (31
March 2020: 0.27). The gearing ratio, being bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash at bank and on hand
divided by the total equity, as at 31 December 2020, was 1.38
(31 March 2020: 0.85).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at the reporting period, the PRC retail industry
will continue to face challenges and be subject to internal
and external factors including macroeconomic fluctuation,
government policy guidance, rapid growth of other retail
channels such as e-commerce and rising costs.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimise its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximise the returns to its
shareholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December, 2020, the Company
did not make any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. As at 31 December
2020, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment
with an aggregate net book value of approximately
RMB2,743,000,000 (31 March 2020: RMB2,857,700,000),
investment property amounting to RMB1,265,300,000 (31
March 2020: RMB1,265,300,000) and cash at bank and
on hand amounting to RMB282,900,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB443,100,000) of the Group had been pledged to secure
the Group’s bank and other borrowings.

MATERIAL PLAN FOR INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group intends to expand its retail operations via opening
of new branches. The source of funding will be primarily from
the proceeds from bank and other borrowings.

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

The Group leased out an investment property under operating
leases for commercial use (shopping mall). It is held under
medium term lease and located in Blocks 1 and 3, Saigo
Shopping Centre, South of Feng Cheng Wu Road, West of Wei
Yang Road, Economic and Technological Development Zone,
Xi‘an City, Shaanxi Province, The PRC.

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, due to the impact of numerous uncertainties in
domestic and international economy (especially the COVID-19
epidemic, which has not been completely solved), the current
situation may not be greatly improved in the short term.
However, leveraging the restart and revival of the national
economy coupled with the positive guidance and stimulation
of the government departments on the consumption capacity,
we believe that the consumption capacity will be further
released.
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FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Favoured by the overall circumstances, the Company will also
diversify its business for increasing its profit, further develop
its brand agency business, introduce well-known domestic
and foreign brands to enter the northwest market, so as to
provide consumers with more quality choices and provide
operational management services to the franchise stores. By
reducing channels to directly provide goods to consumers,
the pattern of profit distribution will be changed. With our
strong brand strength, outstanding operating efficiency, good
financial performance and loyal customer base, we believe the
Company will maintain its leading position in the marketplace
among the industry and generate better returns for our
shareholders.

The Company will also adjust its strategy and formulate
corresponding policies in a timely manner in the face of many
unfavorable conditions.

In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and the supermarket business of the Group, we will
continue to strive for the healthy growth of scale for coverage
of second- and third-tier cities.

In the aspect of business diversification which increases profit
sources, we will further develop brand agency business and
introduce well-known domestic and foreign brands to enter
the northwest market, so as to provide consumers with more
quality choices and provide operational management services
to the franchise stores. By reducing channels to directly provide
goods to consumers, the pattern of profit distribution will be
changed. With our strong brand strength, strong management
practice ability, superior geographical position and a large
number of loyal customer bases, we are confident that the
Company will maintain its leading position in the industry and
generate better returns for our shareholders.

Looking back at the reporting period, the challenges in
the PRC retail industry have intensified and the industry
will be subject to internal and external factors including
macroeconomic fluctuation, government policy guidance, rapid
growth of other retail channels such as e-commerce, rising
operational costs, capital liquidity shortages and financing
difficulties.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimise its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which “is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximise the returns to its
shareholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company’s convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working capital,
but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to subscribe
for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares which
reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially increased
shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial position.
As at the date of this annual report, Hony Capital held 28.07%
of the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue and was the
Company’s second largest shareholder.

Optimize business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail

In the reporting period, the Company focused on the concept
of new retail, to achieve “technology upgrades, service
upgrades, management upgrades”. In the specific business
operations, brand adjustment, membership recruitment,
service techniques, teams of talents and other aspects, the
Company will abandon the original inertial thinking, and
constantly adopt new technologies and new methods to
achieve new breakthroughs in all aspects; at the same time,
the Company will implement planning and design in precise
marketing, management effectiveness, safety operations,
and other aspects one by one, and achieve the matching
of responsibilities and rights. Specific strategies include the
following five aspects:

Strategy I: Plan implementation. Thoroughly complete the
various business indicators of the year 2020. In the aspect of
brand adjustment, we must complete the brand adjustment
plan of 2020 according to the time node. It also clarifies the
overall operational planning work in the future.

Strategy Il: Active expansion. Continue to promote the work of
Xi‘an's global center project in an orderly manner. At the same
time, on the basis of comprehensive investigations, we will
continue to explore expansion projects in second- and third-tier
cities in the Shaanxi province.
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FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Optimise business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail (continued)

Strategy lll: Capital protection. Strengthen revenue, use new
types of financing channels tools, optimise the receivable
turnover period and create a healthy capital liquidity
environment.

Strategy IV: Driven innovation. Integrate consumer finance
and internet financial products; meanwhile analyse the
consumption behavior data of members, and develop the
mobile application of shopping guides.

Strategy V: Management effectiveness. Fully embody the
corporate culture effectiveness, performance management
effectiveness and communication mechanism efficiency, and
integrate the application of new management technologies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 31 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the reporting period (year ended 31 March 2020:
HK$NIl).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the number of the Group’s staffs
was approximately 6,100 (31 March 2020: 6,500), including
approximately 1,300 (31 March 2020: 1,500) directly employed
full time employees, and the remaining being concession
sales staffs managed on behalf of the suppliers. Most of the
employees are employed in Mainland China. The directly
employed employees’ (including directors’) remuneration,
promotion and salary increments are assessed based on
both the Group’s performance and the professional and
working experience of the individual as well as by reference
to prevailing market practice and standards. Apart from the
general remuneration package, the Group also grants share
options and discretionary bonus to the eligible staffs based
on their performance and contribution to the Group. The
Group regards high-calibre staffs as one of the key factors to
corporate success.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Acquisition of trademarks

On 6 January 2021, a resolution for the acquisition of
trademarks was passed by the shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company. Reference is made to the
circular of the Company dated 18 December 2020 regarding
the major and connected transactions in relation to acquisition
of trademarks. The Group has acquired trademark-use-
right through the acquisitions of department store and
supermarket operations in prior years (see note 14 to the
financial statements). Upon completion of the acquisition
of trademarks, the Group shall enjoy the entire rights, title
and interest in and to the trademarks and their respective
registrations made and applications for registration in progress
to the Group, free and clear of any restriction, which shall
result in the Group having the right, for itself and/or to
license to other third parties, to use the trademarks for any
other newly opened shopping malls, department stores and
supermarkets.

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 EPIDEMIC

The COVID-19 epidemic since early 2020 has brought about
additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment
and has impacted the Group's operations and financial
position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
developments on the Group’s business and has put in place
contingency measures. In view of the epidemic-driven
economic downturn, the Group assessed the situation and
adhered to the principles of reducing costs and enhancing
operational efficiency.

As a result of the measures that were implemented to control
the spread of COVID-19, the shopping habits of the general
public have changed, resulting in the business operation of
the Group being significantly impacted and it is expected that
it will take time for the Group’s business operation to fully
recover, which resulted in additional impairment losses on
goodwill and intangible assets. The directors of the Company
believe that the consumption and economy in the PRC will
gradually recover as the epidemic calms down. The new
normal in consumption derived from COVID-19, on the other
hand, will change the operating principles and landscape of
the retail industry in the long run. To maintain the freshness of
the businesses, the Group will remain vigilant at all times, stay
close to market trends and timely adjust the operating model.
The Group will continue to closely monitor the situation and
implement contingency measures, where necessary in a view to
reduce the impacts from the COVID-19 epidemic.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Shunxu (“Mr. Huang”)

Mr. Huang, aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board on 24 June 2020. He was
also appointed as a member and the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board on 30 October 2020. Mr.
Huang graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 2007 and
Northwest University in 2015. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
international trade and economics/information and computing
science, a master's degree in finance, and a doctorate in
political economy. Mr. Huang is experienced in financial affairs.
Mr. Huang has joined Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd.* (FAZHIXterIER (SE)ERA
Al) since September 2018 and is currently chairman of the
board. From 2009 to 2017, Mr. Huang worked at the finance
office of Xi'an Economic & Technological Development Zone.
From 2007 to 2009, Mr. Huang worked at the Shaanxi branch
of China Development Bank.

Mr. Qin Chuan (“Mr. Qin")

Mr. Qin, aged 58, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 21 October
2019. He was an executive Director from November 2001
to March 2006. He ceased to be a Director since March
2006 to 20 October 2019. He currently holds directorships
at certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qin graduated in
Shaanxi Radio & Television University majoring in mechanical
engineering in 1987 and obtained a degree of Master of
Business Administration in China Europe International Business
School graduated in 2005. Mr. Qin has rich experience in
investment, finance and listed companies’ management.
He joined Ginwa Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa
Investments”) in 1995 and was the vice-president of Ginwa
Investments from 2011 to March 2021. Mr. Qin has worked
in Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600080) since 1995
and is currently the assistant to the president. He was the
director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. from May 2011 to
October 2018.
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Mr. Qi Yong (“Mr. Qi")

Mr. Qi, aged 48, joined the Group as an executive president of
the Group in June 2020, and was appointed as an executive
Director on 24 June 2020. He currently holds directorships at
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qi graduated from
Northwest University in 1995. He holds a bachelor's degree
from the School of Literature and Art Communication. Mr.
Qi has over 20 years of experience in commerce, retail and
property management. He has been the management of Xi'an
Vanke Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* (FAZ&EB{b%
EIEHMRARF) since July 2017 responsible for commerce,
office and hotel business, and the general manager of Xi'an
Vanke Commercial Management Co., Ltd.* (A% &R
EIEAR]) . From 2015 to 2017, Mr. Qi served as the general
manager of CityOn (Xi‘an) Shopping Centre* (ERHb i (7
) EEYIH L) . From 2010 to 2015, Mr. Qi served as the vice
president of Xi'an Saige Group* (FALZEIKRERE) responsible
for attracting investments and construction of shopping malls.
From 2000 to 2006 and late 2008 to 2010, Mr. Qi joined
Lenovo Group and served as the director of retail business of
the northwest district.

Ms. Wan Qing (“Ms. Wan")

Ms. Wan, aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director
on 24 June 2020. Ms. Wan graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Xi’an Jiaotong University. She
holds a master’s degree in business administration. Ms. Wan
has obtained certain professional qualifications in the PRC
including certified public accountant and certified tax agent.
Ms. Wan is experienced in financing, finance and mergers and
acquisitions. She joined the Group since 2008, and holds the
positions as financial controller and deputy general manager
of Century Ginwa Co., Ltd.. In June 2020, Ms. Wan was
appointed as a vice president of the Group. From 2002 to
2008, Ms. Wan worked in a reputable accounting firm in the
PRC and was responsible for audit work.
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Mr. Li Yang (“Mr. Li")

Mr. Li, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 24 June 2020. Mr. Li graduated from Tongji University
and Northwest A&F University. He holds a master’s degree in
civil engineering and a doctorate in economic management.
Mr. Li has obtained certain professional qualifications in the
PRC, including funds practitioner, securities practitioner and
insurance practitioner. Mr. Li is experienced in financial affairs
and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Li has joined Xi‘an Qujiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.* (FaZ&#hT
be iR (58)BRAF) since January 2019 and is
currently the general manager. From August 2017 to January
2019, Mr. Li worked at Shaanxi Investment and Financing
Guarantee Co., Ltd.* (PREKRBMEEREBREMERR) as
the deputy general manager and deputy executive manager.
From 2016 to 2017, Mr. Li worked at Shaanxi Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (PRAAERMEEESERMNHAERAT) .
From 2014 to 2016, Mr. Li worked at the Shaanxi branch of
China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd.* (EFZESAR
FEEAF]) . From 2005 to 2014, Mr. Li worked at the Shaanxi
branch of China Development Bank.

Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2010. He was also appointed
as a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and the
nomination committee of the Company on 7 March 2012.
He currently holds directorships at certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. As at the date of this
annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.07% of
the number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue, and (ii)
1,177,068,181 convertible preferred shares of the Company.
Mr. Chen directs city services, hotel management, investments
in financial services, culture and media, consumer goods and
retail and construction material sectors of Hony Capital. Mr.
Chen has extensive experience in investment management,
supplier management and retail business.
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Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The China Europe International
Business School. He received his bachelor degree in Economics
from Beijing Forestry University. Currently, Mr. Chen acts as a
director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600649) and
Shanghai Environment Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 601200).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 September 2008.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and finance. At present, he practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang is currently the company secretary of Green
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 2700).

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Mr. Ruan
is currently the Deputy General Manager of Bozhi Technology
(Beijing) Limited.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of lJilin
University.
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Ms. Song Hong (“Ms. Song"”)

Ms. Song, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and a member of the
nomination committee of the Board on 30 October 2020.
She graduated from Nankai University in 1990 with a double
bachelor’s degree in tourism economic management and
sociology. She completed the EMBA program from the
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University in
2000. Ms. Song has nearly 30 years of experience in logistics
management and procurement. Ms. Song served as the
vice president and chief operating officer of Zhuhai Apex
Technology Co., Ltd. (B IERZE KO BRAF)
(currently named as Ninestar Corporation, a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code: 002180) and
Zhuhai Seine Technology Co., Ltd. (ER/EEHNITENRIE K5
BR27F) from 2016 to 2017. She worked at Hony Capital
from November 2008 to 2015, during which she served as
the founding partner and managing director of Beijing Hony
Yuanfang Investment Consultants Ltd. (dbFR5AZREHIKE
FEM AR A F]), a subsidiary of Hony Capital, as well as the
vice president of Lenovo Mobile Co., Ltd., the president of
Shenzhen Longhao Co., Ltd. (RIIFEEBERAE) (currently
named as Shenzhen Longhao Tiandi Co., Ltd. (RIITEEE K
AR A7) ) and the president of King Hero Limited (7%
BBR/AF]) (a company established in the British Virgin Islands
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) for which
the companies were invested by Hony Capital. She worked
for Lenovo Group from 1998 to 2007, responsible for logistics
management and procurement business, and served as the vice
president of the global logistics department.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited financial statements for the nine months ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Environmental protection

In order to promote corporate governance, drive environmental
protection proactively, facilitate relationships among
stakeholders and contribute to the society, the management
has established Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Committee to set targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines for ESG related matters so as to promote the
sustainable development of the community where the Group’s
business is operated. Five Task Forces are set up under the
ESG Committee. Members in the Task Forces come from
the elites of relevant departments responsible for assisting
the ESG Committee in promotion of the corresponding ESG
related matters, establishment of key performance indicators
and periodic effectiveness assessment. ESG Committee is
responsible to report to the board of directors periodically the
status of execution and recommendations of improvements.

The Group has set up an energy conservation project team to
implement a number of energy saving and emission reduction
measures in offices, department stores and supermarkets to
reduce electricity consumption, discharge of pollutants, and
to avoid wastage of resources. For achieving the concept of
"Green management and balanced development”, the Group
will continue to review and monitor the implementation of each
measure, and optimise the measures based on their effectiveness.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to
property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact of any changes in
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek
external advice if considered necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group is engaged in the operation of department stores,
a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC. The risks
associated include burglary, fire, significant incidents, cash
storage and in transit. The Group has followed relevant laws
and regulations to set up security measures to lower the
chance of these risks, to protect the security of human lives
and inventories and to minimise any loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risks Management and
Fair Value” in note 29 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

(1) Employees
Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognise performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with equal
opportunities within the Group for career development.

(2) Customers

Our customers come from buyers of department stores.
Through good standards of the look, appearance and
actions of employees, the Group creates a good service
model to customers. The Group not only devotes to
set up a consistent labelling system and clear pricing
system, but also endeavors to eradicate the selling of
fake and inferior quality products. The Group treasures
complaints and comments from customers. In order
to provide excellent customer services and to increase
market share and business expansion, the Group has set
up various channels to strengthen the communication
with customers, including customer satisfactory surveys,
customer opinion cards and website of the Company.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

3)

4)

(5)

Goods suppliers and services providers

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures
and goods/service inspection standards. In order to
ensure sustainable quality of goods and service supply,
the Group will carry out continual monitoring and
periodic examination of all vendors.

Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different department stores which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations, each department store of the Group
has taken steps to ensure that relevant local concerns,
customs and changes of laws or regulations have been
accounted for.

Shareholders
For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the

Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate
with shareholders through printed or online version
of notices, announcements, annual and interim
reports. Annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss and cash flows of the Group for the nine months
ended 31 December 2020 and the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set
out in the financial statements on pages 133 to 142.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the nine months ended 31 December 2020.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
nine months ended 31 December 2020 and the four years
ended 31 March 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017 and the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020
and 31 December 2020 are set out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the nine months ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
28 to the financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 October 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme under which the shares of the Company
(the "Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to any member of
management and employee (either full time or part time)
of any member of the Group, Directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), any suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers (professional or otherwise), joint venture and service
providers to any member of the Group from time to time (the
"Selected Participants”) pursuant to the terms of the Scheme
Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date
and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 16 October 2024.

The maximum aggregate nominal value of the Awarded Shares
which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1 per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of such award.

When a Selected Participant has satisfied all vesting conditions
specified by the Board of the Company at the time of making
the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company
forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer
the relevant Awarded Shares to that participant. The Selected
Participant however is not entitled to receive any income
or distribution such as dividend derived from the unvested
Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

Given that the Company does not expect to grant any awards
under the Share Award Scheme prior to its expiry on 16
October 2024 and in order to reduce administrative cost and
improve the cashflow position of the Company, the Company
has terminated the Share Award Scheme on 18 May 2020.

As at the date of the termination, the Company has purchased
3,070,000 shares of the Company through the trustee in the
open market on the Stock Exchange for the purpose of Share
Award Scheme and no share was granted by the Company
under Share Award Scheme.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the nine months ended 31 December 2020
are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves
(including retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus,
subject to equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to
RMB995,255,000 (31 March 2020: RMB995,255,000) were
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. In
addition, the share premium of the Company in the amount
of approximately RMB1,136,595,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB1,136,595,000) may be distributed in form of fully paid
bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
nine months ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 12
to the financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group during the
nine months ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 24
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2020
or at any time during the nine months ended 31 December
2020.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the nine
months ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Shunxu (Chairman) (appointed on 24 June 2020)
Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) (resigned on 10 June 2020)

Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qi Yong (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Ms. Wan Qing (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Yang (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Mr. Chen Shuai
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Dr. Han Qinchun (retired on 18 September 2020)

Ms. Song Hong (appointed on 30 October 2020)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company,
one-third of the directors of the Company for the time being
should retire at each annual general meeting from office by
rotation, Mr. Chen Shuai, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng will retire from office of Directors by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election. Ms. Song Hong, the newly
appointed independent non-executive director, is subject to re-
election in accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng,
Dr. Han Qinchun and Ms. Song Hong, and considers them to
be independent for the nine months ended 31 December 2020.
The Company considers that each of such Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent from the Group based on
the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 24 to 28.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest

paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated
18 December 2020 regarding the major and connected
transactions in relation to acquisition of trademarks. On 8
May 2020, the Group entered into a trademark assignment
agreement (the “Trademark Assignment Agreement”) with
the Xi‘an Ginwa Commercial Management Services Company
Limited (AL £ EEHERRBAER AR (the “Vendor”) for
the acquisition of certain trademarks (the “Trademarks”) by
the Group pursuant to the Trademark Assignment Agreement
at a consideration of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$115,649,000). The Vendor is the owner of
the trademarks prior to the entering into of the Trademark
Assignment Agreement and the trademarks were licensed to
the Group from the Vendor pursuant to a trademark licensing
agreement. The Vendor is wholly-owned by Ginwa Investments
Holding Group Limited (REHREZEKREE AR AR, a
company established in the PRC and beneficially owned as to
96% by Mr. Wu Yijian, who was an executive director of the
Company prior to his resignation with effect from 10 June
2020. Accordingly, the Vendor is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Group
has acquired trademark-use-right through its acquisitions of
department store and supermarket operations in prior years.
Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Group shall enjoy
the entire rights, title and interest in and to the trademarks
and their respective registrations made and applications for
registration in progress to the Group, free and clear of any
restriction, which shall result in the Group having the right,
for itself and/or to license to other third parties, to use the
trademarks for any other newly opened shopping malls,
department stores, supermarkets. On 6 January 2021, a
resolution for the acquisition of trademarks was passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company.

Further details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are provided under note 32 to the financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Long positions in the shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2020, none of the directors or chief
executives of the Company had, under Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"),
nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in
the shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
or any interests which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code"”) or any interests which are
required to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company

In accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 15
February 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
Company may grant options to the eligible person of
the Company to subscribe for shares of the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose shares issued in the exercise
of options for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible person for their contribution
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 15 February 2011 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended according to the Share Option
Scheme, would remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person under the Share Option Scheme
includes the following:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(ii)  a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iv) any person or entity whose service to the
Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
person under the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of
the Company subject to options granted during such
period under any other share option scheme of the
Company) exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholders (as such terms as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive directors
or shareholders of the Company as the case may be.
Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant; and
(ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least
the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to
Share Option Scheme adjustments).

As at 31 December 2020, there were no shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme. The Share
Option Scheme expired on 14 February 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, none of the directors or chief
executives of the Company had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO, any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which
are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange or any interests which are required to be entered
into the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2020, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed
above in respect of the directors or chief executives of the
Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(a) Long position/short position in the shares of the
Company

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

FTERR (&)

(@ E2ARBZRREER

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of ordinary share
Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company
BALT
] FHERE BRAEER
RR&® RR/BR REtE EERHA REzBOBA
Qujiang Cultural Financial Long positions Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
International Investment Limited
@TCERARRASRAT R DA (W)
Xi‘an Qujiang Cultural Financial ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
BZAIX S RER KB RREHZERAER (Hit1)
(5B)BRAA
Xi'an Qujiang New District Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
Management Committee B
BYHINEERZES K& RREBHZERARR (Ht1)
Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
("Glory Keen")
SRRRERAT([%2) KR DA (Hizz2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
58 REEHE B AR (Kit2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP.  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
5% RERHEER AES (Wit2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
58 REEHEER AR (Kit2)
Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
5% RERSEES AR (Wit2)
Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
58 REEHEER AR (Ki2)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KkE RREHEBRAER (Hi2)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
BOBLE KB RREHZERAER (Hit2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b)
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as

defined in Part XV of the SFO)

FERR (&)
RAEDTRENETAZAER
HeRA/ER (EERBESRY

BHRAIEXVER)

Number of

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions Nature of interests shares held the Company

fhARAR

e T BRETERR

REEE RE/KR E#tE LERYE BREZBNEA

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
REARERAF kE RAER (H7£3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H7£3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H7£3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H7£3)

Hony Group Management Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (H7£3)

Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation  1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi7£3)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
kE REEHZBSEER (Hi7£3)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%

#LRRL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1

Quijiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited held 336,166,156 Shares. Xi‘an Qujiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. holds
the entire issued share capital of Qujiang Cultural
Financial International Investment Limited. Each of
Xi‘an Quijiang New District Management Committee
and Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Holding Company Limited
beneficially owns 80.05% and 19.95% equity interests
in Xi'an Quijiang Cultural Financial Holdings (Group)
Co. Ltd., respectively. Xi'an Qujiang New District
Management Committee owns 99.9% equity interest
in Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Holding Company Limited.
As such, Xi‘an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co. Ltd. and Xi'an Qujiang New District
Management Committee were deemed to be interested
in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of their shareholding
in Qujiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited.

The long position of 322,727,272 Shares represents the
322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen. Hony Capital
Fund 2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital
of Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the
sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Group Management Limited, is
the sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP, L.P. Hony Managing Partners Limited owns 80%
equity interests in Hony Group Management Limited.
Hony Managing Partners Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr.
Zhao John Huan holds 49% of the issued share capital
of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the
above-mentioned parties was therefore deemed to be
interested in the interest held by Glory Keen.

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

FTERR (&)

(b) REQXTREFTETIAZHEBR

BeRE /AR (EBRBHFRY
BERGIEXVER) (&)
Fff &t -

(1) HIXEERBEBREERR AR
#75336,166,156 A% A% {7 73 &
IS rmER(EE) AR
NEFEHI LS RBERE
%ﬁﬁﬁ’“ﬂZ%ﬁBE?ﬁﬁHﬂK
L HTHEE @iha
ZHI XL EREBR A %
E\m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁfbﬁrﬁﬁ?
fi% (£@) B R A F280.05% K
19%%%%0@?%&%@%
BLZEeRARLHT X ]
BBR AR 299.9% /% #E - l%
Az IxtemiER (SH)
ERARMALZHITEERR
BeREAMIT S BRI
BBRABZREMERIEES
336,166, 156% J& {7 2 o ©

2  KA322,727272KR B 5 I8 &
AT E322,727,2728 B fn o
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P#F
BEZEZ2IEEITIA - Hony
Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P.&
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.Z
M — @45 % A o Hony Capital
Fund 2008 GP Limited&Hony
Group Management Limited~ &
LW E AR B AHony Capital
Fund 2008 GP, LPZ M —E @&
% A ° Hony Managing Partners
Limited# H580% Hony Group
Management Limited 2 & < 1
# ° Hony Managing Partners
Limited &Exponential Fortune
Group Limitedz 2 & W B 2
@) o i 2 BR 5T 4 F5 B Exponential
Fortune Group Limited 49% ¢ 3
TR Rt & 75 B mER AR
REMTBA ST HEAER -

HESHEHEERERLA
CRORERER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible preferred shares. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as
at 31 December 2020, had an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were less
than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the nine months ended
31 December 2020. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the nine months ended 31 December 2020.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the nine months ended 31 December
2020.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

FERR (&)

(b) RAXTRETELRZABR
HeRA/ER (EERBESRY
B EBIEXVER) (&)
Fitex: (&)

(3) KE1,294,774,999 8 #H &
& 1 8 7 9 B R #& 54 5% AT
f& B SRR M AT g T A B 1T 2
1,294,774,9990% 5 #i% (n 2 #
7 o 771 54 3R AT 4R AR 4B o AR B S
ZHBEHBSAHA T ——
F+—A+thBz@EE [ RER
] —EIETEERZH MK
R ETE 2 PR HI AR -

BREXFBEEEN R_ZE_TF+ A
=t+—B BARFEFREFETHRAE
PAT AN+ 450 A A A] A B ] AR £ 3K 4E A AR
R A AR ERARERSF LY
BIEBIEXVERF2 K% %30 B2 MR E M A A
NAWE HEEKERF AN SENA
EEABE TRAEEEFAEMKE AR
ZBRRGRE ZEMERIRAEEZ5%
A EfEaR o

EENBEXRRz2ES

RIZ_ZF+-_A=+—H HESFSN
BESBZHEAEGEMNAEKKFEEKR
AEBEBEHFRAERF 2 EMER-

FEXFRMHER
AEEGARFEFLAAREFAHRAHEESR
VPR AREEBE T _EF+_A=1+—
HiIENE A BHEERE 230%  c ASE &
AEEEEAAHERNS RERBREIR
AEBREZE-_FT-_TF+-_A=1+—HL
NERBHEETE 230% °

REBEZE-_E-_FEF+_-_A=+—HIth{E
A #BEENES EBHBALHERRKRR
(LNESZFTAEEAEARTS%A FE TR
TR AEERARFTERFRHEE T H
A EmEE -



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 26 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the nine months ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the nine months
ended 31 December 2020.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

None of the members of the Group was engaged in any
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance and no
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance was
known to the directors to be pending or threatened by or
against any member of the Group during the nine months
ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s shares in the market as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG should retire at the end of their term of appointment
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Shunxu
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board regularly reviews its corporate governance practices,
risk management and internal control policy and procedures
in order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and
comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements,
and to fulfill its commitment to corporate governance
excellence.

The Company had complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2020
except for certain deviations as set out below.

CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all the Directors (executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
at least once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the
Company. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the CG Code.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent for the nine months ended 31 December 2020.

CG Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should
also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees to attend. The chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the remuneration committee were not
able to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 18 September 2020 (the "AGM") due to other
important business engagement. They had delegated the
chairman of the audit committee to chair and be available to
answer questions at the AGM.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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CG Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders. During the
nine months ended 31 December 2020, not all independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors were able
to attend the general meetings of the Company due to other
business commitments.

Following the retirement of Dr. Han Qinchun as an
independent non-executive Director at the conclusion of the
AGM, the Board comprised eight members, with four executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and two independent
non-executive Directors. Accordingly, the Company did not
meet the requirements of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules,
which provides that the board of directors must include at least
three independent non-executive directors, and Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules, which provides that a listed issuer must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the board of directors. Subsequent to
the appointment of Ms. Song Hong as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 October 2020, the composition of the
Board comprised four executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
In this regard, the number of independent non-executive
Directors is in compliance with the requirements of Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of this annual report,
the Board is comprised of four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

The members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Shunxu (Chairman) (appointed on 24 June 2020)
Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) (resigned on 10 June 2020)

Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qi Yong (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Ms. Wan Qing (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Yang (appointed on 24 June 2020)

Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Dr. Han Qinchun (retired on 18 September 2020)

Ms. Song Hong (appointed on 30 October 2020)

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to hold
his/her position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and
efficiently. There are no relationships (financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships) between members of
the Board. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to
CG Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly
and Board meetings should be held at least four times a
year at approximate intervals. During the nine months ended
31 December 2020, the Board met regularly and frequently
for the review and approval on the business of department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets. Details of Directors’
attendance of the Board and the shareholders’ meetings held
for the nine months ended 31 December 2020 are set out as
follows:

TREREE

BEEECEE
EECEEETLXHERTERE &
RENEREBEBEBRVBERE URFITEE
FEREEBER - NIERAEB AR B
ZoRBELEEATAEXEALUEZE
T OEESRTHETER MESLOR
EEFRITHIOINK HIFE— X - RER
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EeTHEREERTEE R LEH
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Board
Name of Director meetings AGM & SGM
IR B F
rEark
EEns Exegeld RERBFIKXE
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. Huang Shunxu (appointed on 24 June 2020) 11/12 0/1
mIEEEE (RZE_EF AT HAEEE)
Mr. Wu Yijian (resigned on 10 June 2020) 3/3 0/0
R—BEA(RZZ_TFRA+HEE)
Mr. Qin Chuan 18/18 0/1
=)EE
Mr. Qi Yong (appointed on 24 June 2020) 12/12 0/1
PELEE (RZE_FEFAAA-tTHBHEZT)
Ms. Wan Qing (appointed on 24 June 2020) 12/12 0/1
BEXT (R_TE_EFA_THEBEEERET)
Non-Executive Directors
FHITEF
Mr. Li Yang (appointed on 24 June 2020) 11/12 0/1
FHEE(RZ_TFA-THBEZRT)
Mr. Chen Shuai 18/18 0/1
PR B 5 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHFHITEF
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 18/18 11
BEEEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 18/18 0/1
Priel& 4
Dr. Han Qinchun (retired on 18 September 2020) 13/13 0/1
BEAEFEL (RZZEZTFALATN\HBEMR)
Ms. Song Hong (appointed on 30 October 2020) 4/4 0/0
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All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.

The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

- management of the overall business and strategic
development;

- deciding business plans and investment plans;

— convening general meetings and reporting to the
shareholders; and

-  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by shareholders in general meetings.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

The Directors may have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary of the Company to ensure
that the board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon
reasonable request, seek independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstance at the Company’s expense.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
Board meetings and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors have extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advice to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group's business strategy, results and
management to ensure that all interests of shareholders are
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders are protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, who has appropriate professional
accounting qualifications or financial management expertise
in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company's accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and
corporate governance practices organised by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

All Directors participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refreshed their knowledge and
skills during the nine months ended 31 December 2020 for
ensuring that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Such professional development was completed
by way of attending briefings, conference, courses, forum and
seminars, teaching, self-reading and participating in business-
related researches which are relevant to the business or
directors’ duties.
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During the reporting period, the Directors participated in the
following trainings:

TREREE

R{REHAN - EFZE22ETIIEI:

Type of
Name of Director training
Espns EFIER
Executive Directors
HITESF
Mr. Huang Shunxu (appointed on 24 June 2020) A, B, C
HIEELEE (RZEEF AT NAEEE)
Mr. Wu Yijian (resigned on 10 June 2020) A, C
R—BEA(RZE_FF/ A THEHT)
Mr. Qin Chuan A, B, C
=& E
Mr. Qi Yong (appointed on 24 June 2020) A, B, C
MEBEE(RZZETEFAATHBEZE)
Ms. Wan Q|ng (appointed on 24 June 2020) A, B, C
BEZET(RZE-FFNA-THHEZT)
Non-Executive Directors
FHITESE
Mr. Li Yang (appointed on 24 June 2020) A, B, C
FEEE(RZEEF AT HHEEZE)
Mr. Chen Shuai A, B, C
PR b %% A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFNITESE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai A, B, C
BEE L&
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng A, B, C
B R 8 5 A
Dr. Han Qinchun (retired on 18 September 2020) A, C
BRAEBLT (RZZEZFTFNLATN\BRE)
Ms. Song Hong (appointed on 30 October 2020) A, B, C

RALXL (R_F_FTFE+A=THEZT)

A: Reading materials provided by the Company relating to
the updates on the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements relevant to the director’s duties
and responsibilities

B: Attending briefings/seminars/webinars/conferences
relevant to the director’s duties and responsibilities

C: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating
to the economy, environment and social issues or the
director’s duties and responsibilities

C: HERBKE RELLE
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AEZ EmRAIREMEREER
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¥ ERRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of
the Board and the strategies and policies of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring the
daily operation and management of the Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the listing date on 23 October 2000,
renewable automatically by three years on the expiry of such
term and every successive period of three years thereafter,
subject to the relevant provisions under the Company’s
amended and restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-
third of all the Directors (i.e. both executive and non-executive
Directors are included) to retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Shunxu, Mr. Wu Yijian, Mr. Qin Chuan, Mr. Qi Yong
and Ms. Wan Qing have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a specific term, and all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company.
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The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the (i) audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), (ii) remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and (iii) nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the board committees, which explain their
respective roles and the authorities delegated to them by
the Board, are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice and other assistance under appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng, and one non-executive Director, Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its risk
management and internal control system, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the
quality of financial information to be disclosed. It also reviews
the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to their
approval by the Board.
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During the nine months ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and made a recommendation as
regards the appointment of the external auditor. In addition,
the Audit Committee, together with management and
independent auditors, have reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited results for the nine months ended 31
December 2020 and the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2020 prior to their approval by
the Board.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2020, two
meetings were held by the Audit Committee. The attendance
record of each member of the Audit Committee at the
meetings of the Audit Committee is set out below:

BE —EFE+-_A=1T—BLNHE
A %V%iA%@$%lm ARAIRE
o W RAEIMNEZEREE L B - it
Sh BIZEZ B G EREEE MBS B
EERASEMEA 2SR NER
WrlmEZ  NBEEMYBREEE 2
REEFESHELAEN BFHEBEE_FT—
ZFE+_A=+—HILNBEAZEEERE
BMBE_ZT_TFAA=TRHILAREAHA
ZAREEZTHERE -

HE-_T-_TF+_A=+—HBIEIHE
A %V CBERITTMAES BKRES

EENENBERZES RN L ELEH
AT

Attendance/
Number of
Audit
Committee
Name of Director meetings
g B
ZE®
EEMR =1
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 212
TEELE
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
PRED T &
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 212
Bre B U 5 A
There had been no disagreement between the Board and the REBEZ-_E-_EFE+_A=+—HI1ILI#E
Audit Committee during the nine months ended 31 December A E2HEelEgETEeEST ROl
2020.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHWESES
The Company established the Remuneration Committee with ~ A2 TEﬁii%ﬁ@H;/\@ ﬁ TED HS: 4 &0
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. B AEEERTRAME
The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than FEZEemRIMENEAK FIZ

two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of two independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng and Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and one non-executive
Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.
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The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses and share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such
remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their
remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee has, among other things, reviewed
the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Group and made recommendations to the
Board in relation to their remuneration package.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy and reviewed the remuneration package
of the executive Directors and senior management for the nine
months ended 31 December 2020.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2020, four
meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee. The
attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee at the meetings of the Remuneration Committee is
set out below:
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RBEMBE BEZRTESLENEEE
ZEHME - BREIEA MR B RS 2
BREZBRE BRESZFMBAEM
THBEZ - —RME - REFEZFHIRIFR
EZRBEEE ANEBZRBARTEE

SEETE

BE-_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HI1EN#
A HFHEZECE (KPR BRITAEER
EENOREREBZFNFBUARRESE
ZHEHNSFBNESQREHEERER -

HE2_Z2 - ZTF+_A=+—HIENE
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EEHEz_ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLN
BARTEEESRERBENGTHEE-
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A FMEEERTTHRASH FTHEE
EERERTNEZESSENLFELESR
HIEAT

Attendance/

Number of

Remuneration

Committee

Name of Director meetings

HE M

ZEg

EEnE ER¥E

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 4/4
B s 2 5% A4

Mr. Chen Shuai 4/4

BR B 5% A4

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 4/4
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of one executive
Director: Mr. Huang Shunxu, one non-executive Director: Mr.
Chen Shuai and three independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng and Ms. Song
Hong. Mr. Huang Shunxu is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. In identifying suitable director candidates and
making such recommendations to the Board, the Nomination
Committee would also take into account various aspects
of a candidate, including but not limited to his education
background, professional experience, experience with the
relevant industry and past directorships.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2020, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the board’s structure,
size and composition to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills, independence and experience appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Company and
reviewed the annual confirmation of independence submitted
by independent non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence. Also, the Nomination Committee will also give
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board,
and the Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
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During the nine months ended 31 December 2020, three
meetings were held by the Nomination Committee. The

TREREE

attendance record of each member of the Nomination E%W%ﬁﬁﬂ%%é%@@ E’]ﬁf@ﬁ*%@
Committee at the meetings of the Nomination Committee is FIAAR ¢
set out below:
Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Name of Director meetings
HE/RE
ZEg
Exps =1
Mr. Huang Shunxu (appointed as a member and the chairman on 30 October 2020) 0/0
BIEEEE (RZZE_ZFETA=THEZERKERER)
l\/Ir. Chen Shuai 3/3
PR B 5 4
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 3/3
ERELE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 3/3
=13
Dr. Han Qinchun (retired on 18 September 2020) 2/2
BEFEET (RZZTZZEFAATN\BER)
Ms. Song Hong (appomted on 30 October 2020) 0/0
KL+ (RZZ_TF+A=THEZE)
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION % B A B =
The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor AAREREZ T -_ZF+-A=+—
during the nine months ended 31 December 2020. The EthLﬂﬂiEEa—@%UZ EE iRt
external auditor is refrained from engaging in non-audit  SMNEEAZ BUET o SNIEAZ BUED NS W EIEBE X

services except for specific approved items, such as review of
interim results of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the
external auditor’s statutory audit scope and non-audit services
and approves its fees. A remuneration of RMB4,200,000 was
paid/payable to KPMG for the provision of annual audit and
review of interim results services in the nine months ended 31
December 2020.

AR7% - MR ETE B BRIN fﬁlJ&u§ﬁ$Elm
PHIXE - BERZETAERTIMNEZE
B YA E %V%el&#%ww“éﬁiﬁtﬁﬁ
WE -ESHESTMEEIREE -2
—EFEF+ A=+ —RHINEARHZE
EEZEPHEEEN MEEXHNE
+ AR #4,200,0007T 2 Bl 4 -

HESHEHEERERLA
CRORERER

59



60

Corporate Governance Report
CEERARE

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company and the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Kee Wai has been informed of the requirement of
the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he
had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the nine months ended 31 December 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility of maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems of
the Group. During the nine months ended 31 December 2020,
the Group had complied with Principle C.2 of the CG Code by
establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems so
as to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interest,
while the Board oversees management in performing its duties
on an ongoing basis. The Board is also responsible for ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below.
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Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

(i) Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the

achievement of objectives;

Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly;
and

(ii) Evaluation:

(iii) Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and
on-going monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the nine
months ended 31 December 2020, no significant risk was
identified.

Internal Control System

The Group has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for
carrying out internal control across
the Group;

(i) Control Environment:

A dynamic and iterative process
for identifying and analyzing risks
to achieve the Group’s objectives,
forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed,;

(i) Risk Assessment:

Action established by policies
and procedures to help ensure
that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out;

(iii) Control Activities:
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Internal and external communication
to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-
to-day controls; and

(iv) Information and
Communication:

Ongoing and separate evaluations
to ascertain whether each component
of internal control is present and
functioning.

(v) Monitoring:

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements inside information policy
and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of disclosure requirements in relation to the
Group, which include:

(i) The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality;

(i)  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations; and

(ili) The executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the
nine months ended 31 December 2020, no significant control
deficiency was identified.

Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) to carry out the internal audit (“IA")
functions of the Group. The IA function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the
risk management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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The Group has established an IA charter to define the scope
and duties and responsibilities of the IA function and its
reporting protocol. The Group has also conducted an annual
risk assessment for the period to identify respective strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks of
its major business segments. Based on the outcome of the
risk assessment and following a risk-oriented methodology
audit approach, the Company has devised a three-year audit
plan that prioritised the significance of the risks identified
into annual audit project to assist the Board and the Audit
Committee in assessing the efficacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. The three-year
audit plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted semi-
annually. Several areas have been considered during the
Board's reviews, which include but are not limited to (i) the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last semi-annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment, and (ii)
the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
IA functions and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare dividends from time to time. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:

a) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

b) retained profits and distributable reserves of the Group
and each of the members of the Group;

Q) the level of the Group’s adjusted net debts-to-equity
ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial

covenants;

d) the Group’s current and future operation;

e) any contractual restrictions from the payment of
dividends;
f) any restrictions under applicable laws or regulations;

o) the dividends received from the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of
those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend;

h) the Group’s expected working capital requirements;

i) general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

i) any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

No dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the Board.

This dividend policy and the declaration and/or payment of
future dividends under this policy are subject to the Board's
continuing determination that this dividend policy and the
declaration and/or payment of dividends would be in the best
interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders, and
are in compliance with the bye-laws of the Company and
all-applicable laws and regulations. The Board endeavours
to maintain a balance between meeting the Company’s
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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The Board will continually review the dividend policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend, modify and/or cancel the dividend policy at any time.
This dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time, there can be no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period. Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon
the abovementioned factors.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the executive
Directors of the Company.

TREREE

EXeRESRNREBER L IREBEER
BH R B R HBUBREBE 2
EETREMN AREBEL NERAEE
HERRRE ZERHORARE R,/ RALR
SAKEERGHEEXRTRHEIREE &
R RE G HME ) 45 E HARK (0 45
TERRE -BIEEEERTEZHE LR
BB B RS BEERT B ER
M E °

% SR A

BRREBMBRRBIIAERARRAE L
REBRNERF

RIEARRNE] 2 REHABIARE - Ef—hrsk
NERBEZZERBBBFEETLDRARBH
RRA (BERARBBREAS FIHERE)
+ 5 — B IR B A E A B (B RE LA R 44 5 =,
BAARNREZEESHAAMERHEMEL
(P2 Hh U 5 B B BT BT JE S8 3035% Ak
ITEFHRLIEINE) BEREEEEHRK
RiFRIAE AERIEABEKFPIEHANT
MEE: B ACERE2ZERKERE
ARBIT - WME2B_-_T—HRN EFEK
BERAzZAZ BIEZERKATA BN
AEAREEHLHRE ME2ERKATHE
EeREARAEMABRELENERY
JERADNFMESERALIEHER-

MESERHBANER

&% S AT LABE 4 5 S M A A B AR AR E A
HEHEEEeNEARBIEE BT
AR B ETFEHEFE303RIBKITEFH
D3EINE-ARFN AT MEG BT KH
EETCERBEAANSEEEES S
MEBEBBEEESNER (NEEREH)
EIERNGHITES -

e EHERRERAT
—B-BEEH

65



66

Corporate Governance Report
CEERARE

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the nine months ended 31
December 2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and special general meetings
to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board and the Board committees; (ii) distributing
corporate documents and releasing announcements to
disseminate the Group’s latest information to the shareholders;
and (iii) maintaining the Company’s website to provide an
electronic means of communication with the shareholders and
the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’'s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’'s website and the
communication with its shareholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Century Ginwa
Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased
to present this Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called "ESG"”) Report (the “Report”)
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group” or “we"”). This ESG Report summarizes
the policies, sustainability strategies, management
approach, initiatives and performance made by the
Group in the environmental and social aspects of its
business.

The ESG Report covers the environmental and
sustainable development strategies, policies and
performance of the Group's business in operating
department stores, shopping centers and supermarkets
in the Mainland China for the nine months ended 31
December 2020 Mt 7. The Report discloses the required
information under the “comply or explain” provisions of
the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX"). The relevant
provisions and details are listed out at the end of the
Report.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy
formulation and reporting, evaluating and determining
the Group’'s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management
measures and internal control systems are in place. In
order to determine the ESG reporting scopes, the key
management personnel has discussed internally and
identified the environmental, social and operating items;
and assessed their importance to the stakeholders and
the Group. The summary of material ESG items are
listed out in this report.

Note:

1 Taking into consideration that the principal business of
the Group is carried out mainly through its subsidiaries,
which were incorporated and are operating in
Mainland China with 31 December as their the
financial year end date in accordance with the statutory
requirements, the Board considers that the change of
financial year end date of the Company from 31 March
to 31 December aligns the financial year end date of
the Company with that of its principal subsidiaries.
Therefore, the period end date of the Report is
changed from 31 March 2021 to 31 December 2020,
and the period of the Report is from 1 April 2020 to 31
December 2020.
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business. While achieving both
economic and social benefits, we actively shoulder
the social responsibilities and uphold the corporate
philosophy of “grace for the times and sincerely
contributing to the society”, and support environmental
protection at the communities where the business
operates. The Group maintains a close tie with
its stakeholders, including government/regulatory
organizations, shareholders/investors, employees,
customers, suppliers, community, etc. and strives
to balance their opinions and interests through
constructive communications in order to determine
the directions of its sustainable development. The
Group continues to identify, understand, assess and
determine its environmental, social and governance risks
in response to the needs and expectations of various
above-mentioned stakeholders, and ensures that the
relevant risk management measures and internal control
systems are operating effectively. The following table

shows the communication channels,

response to the stakeholders’

management

expectations and

concerns:
Expectations
Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels
B0 E HERER BBERE
Government/ > Compliance > Periodic report/interim
regulatory in laws and announcement
organizations regulations > Correspondence
> Fulfill tax > Field investigation
obligation > Process business via
> (Cooperation government website or
> Joint anti- application
epidemic
B/ B W > EFEEER > EHHRE BEAS
> BOBBREME > FRHE
> S{EXER > B
> HEARE > i B IR TS 48 sk
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Management response
EEEEE

>

>
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Uphold integrity and compliance in
operations

Pay tax on time, and in return contributing
to the society

Establish comprehensive and effective
internal control system

Respond to government’s policies and to
build a harmonious society together
Strictly comply with the local government'’s
guideline relating to business suspension
and resumption
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

(continued)

Expectations
and concerns

HERRER

Stakeholders
B E

Shareholders/ >
investors

Return on

investment

> Information
transparency

> (orporate
governance
system

> Joint anti-

epidemic

BR/REE RE @ H
B AFES
BeRkER
HRETNZ

YYVYY

Employees Labor rights
Career
development
> Compensation
and welfare
> Health and
workplace safety
> Care for
employees
> Joint anti-
epidemic

Yy

o
H

BT
EERR
HBAMIEF
BEREZE
BiEET
ERERE

YYYVYVY

Communication channels

BERE

>

>

>

vy

>

YYVYVYYVY ¥

Vv

Information disclosed on
the HKEX website

The Company’s official
website

Annual general meeting
and other shareholders’
meetings

PO X R) e B 3% P A8 0 A

BZiER
ZN/NIEED]
BRAEREMBRREE

Staff activities

Employee performance
evaluation

Induction and on the job
training

Internal meetings and
announcements

Contact via email,
employees’ mail box,
phone and communication
applications

Employees’ reasonable
recommendation
management measures
Epidemic prevention and
control manual

BIEY

BTEMER

ANB A R

NE g E KBS

BB T BTHEAE-
B LB BEREFE
BEIAB(REERME
B B

= FhEZ2H (&

Management response
EEEREE

>

vy

YYVYY

Management possesses relevant experience
and professional knowledge in business
sustainability

Ensure transparent and effective
communications by dispatching information
on the websites of HKEX and the Company
Set up an investor hotline to maintain close
and effective communication with the
market and investors

Continue to improve the internal control
system and risk management

Resume the business of shopping malls as
soon as possible
EREAAHBLRNIEND  BREH
KRR 1

B B R A AT B
RRENER AR
RERBEBERBETSREEEEY
RERER

BN MEANBELRRARER
BRIERSEE

Set up contractual obligations to protect
labor rights

Set up development subsidy fund to
encourage employees to participate in
continuous education and professional
trainings

Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration scheme

Pay attention to occupational health and
safety

Organize leisure activities to enhance
cohesion

Actively provide epidemic prevention
materials such as masks and sanitizer to
protect the employees’ health
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BRRE HERERBRKE

. STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

(continued)

Expectations
Stakeholders
B0 E HEHEER

Brands/Consumers

obligation

> High quality

products

> Intimate service
and experience
Privacy protection

vy

Joint anti-
epidemic

miEE,/ HEE BIERED

REMLR
HENEK

YYVYVYY
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and concerns

> Integrity and
contractual

=mEEm
SO MR AER

Communication channels

BERE

>
>

A\

A\

Business visit

Through Brand Business
Department, customer
service center

Contact via email and
phone call

Customer satisfaction
survey and customer
comment cards
Advertising media

BB FED

migAEES/ EERET
L
BBE T REABA
EFPFmEEREREEER
LN

RESEES

= FhEZH(E)

Management response
EEEREE

>

>

Yy

vy

Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
place

Actively communicate with the brands

to set a reasonable payment settlement
schedule, to reach mutual agreement

with partners and gain confidence from
brands, and to create favorable condition
for the company and stakeholders working
together

Continuously introduce quality brands

and enhance service quality to satisfy
customers; and focus on shop positioning
so as to make each store have its own
characteristics and to reduce competition
among shops having the same brands, and
to achieve virtuous cycle of differentiated
operations

Establish uniform labels and set prices for
products, and strive to eliminate fake and
inferior products to protect consumers’
rights and interests

Establish communication channels through
interviews, phone surveys, hotline and
complaint mailboxes

Organize customer satisfaction survey to
improve service quality

Develop a comprehensive members’
information confidentiality mechanism

and carry out regular information system
maintenance

Sterilize each corner of the shopping malls
and set up temperature measurement
counter at entrance, create shopping
environment that make consumers feel safe
and secure
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

(continued)

Expectations
Stakeholders and concerns

BE HERER

Suppliers >
>

HER

YYVYY

Stable demand
Fair and open
tender
Corporate
reputation
Joint anti-
epidemic

BREE
AFRLARE
bEEE
ARERE

Communication channels

BERE

> Business visit

> (Contact via email and
phone call

> Through Procurement
Center/Brand Business
Department

> BBRD
> BAETHHRERBR
> REHL/ SRR

= FhEZ2H (&

Management response
EEEREE

>

>

>

Y

YYVYY

YVYYVY

Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
place

Establish policy and procedures in supply
chain management

Establish and maintain strong and long-
term relationship with suppliers, to build
up confidence of suppliers, and to create

a good situation in which all interested
parties and the company work together
Strengthen the tendering management
system continuously and select suppliers
with due care

Resume the business of shopping malls as
soon as possible

Purchase epidemic prevention materials
BREBITANEL
HIEHIEEE R MBRAE T
REFRABRANAIERE  BILHEEH
B0 EEZMAT ERAR R LEN R T
5]
SEMBBIEE RN E LB EHEEER
BRIERSEHE

RBWENE

e EHERRERAT
—B-BEEH
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

(continued)
Expectations
Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels
B0 E HEREER BBRE
Community > Environmental > The Company’s official
protection website and information
> Reduce waste publicity website of
generation government department
> Community > Community activities
contribution > Promotional activities
> Economic > Publicity booths and
development posters
> Joint anti-
epidemic to
protect people’s
livelihoods
o2 > RERE > RN A RET AR
> BMOBEEMHES fE B AT
> HE2HE > HEEE
> RE#ER > RIHEE
> HANERERE > SHEEURER
Contact Us

Your opinions and suggestions are the driving force for
the Group’s progress. If you have any comments and
other questions or inquiries about this report or the
Group's performance in sustainable development, please
email them to enquiry@cgrh.com.hk.

MATERIALITY MATRIX

During the reporting period, the Group has evaluated
a number of environmental, social and operating
items, and continuously assessed their importance
to stakeholders and the Group through various
channels. This assessment helps to ensure that the
Group’s business objectives and development direction
are in line with the stakeholders’ expectations and
requirements. The Group’s and stakeholders’ matters
of concern are presented in the following materiality
matrix:

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management response
EEEREE

>
>

YYVYVYY

\l

Pay attention to climate change
Continuously invest resources in
environmental protection

Actively promote the sorting of garbage
Encourage employees to actively participate
in charitable activities and voluntary
services

Maintain good and stable financial
performance and business growth

Respond to government's appeal of
stimulating business growth so as to

drive the economic development of the
community

The supermarket business continues to
operate during epidemic and adopt various
appropriate epidemic prevention and
control measures to protect people’s health
and safety; and to ensure stable supply of
daily necessities

BTRES
SERBRRRETERAER
EREENRSENTE
BEEIEE2BESEHNERRY
BRRRUIOABEENEBER
ZRBUTTE AR EENHEE &8
HEREOLEER
BRTSEENEERREEE ¥ RRE
BRENERR BRTENRRELZ 2
RIE B % B mi e

EE 3R P A%
FHERNMERRAEEELH
B} MRERAREIAERE
ARFBEERFTEANKRAEEME
AERHEEHRERER FEBE
enquiry@cgrh.com.hk °
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IIl. MATERIALITY MATRIX (continued) = EEMEE(E)

HE2ENEEY

Importance to Stakeholders
Medium

High

Low

h

&

Materiality Matrix
EEMERE

& Anti-discrimination
& Labor rights
protection

\ BT
* REEAME

L 2R 2R 4

Talent management
Staff training and
promotion

Staff compensation and
welfare

AAERE
8 T3 Tt
8 T sREH 43

v v

v v

L 2

Customers’ satisfaction
Product and service
quality

Anti-corruption
Stimulation of
consumption
Protection of the
people’s livelihoods
Epidemic prevention
and control

Epidemic prevention and
control

EREMER
HmiEREEE
RE&ES

RIBUE &

RERE

By BB 45

By BB 1%

Greenhouse gas
emissions

YY| ¢V YVYVYVY

Operational compliance
Customers’ privacy

& Energy consumption measures and protection
@ Occupational health and | > Suppliers management
safety
> Community involvement
* REREBHN > ZBAER
* BEREM > REEFILE
o BERERERS > HERE R
> g2
& Preventive measures & \Water resources
for child and forced utilization
labor
& Exhaust air emission
& Sewage discharge
& Generation of non-
hazardous wastes
* EBEHET KA * KERER
& T H i
* EERHEW
& EEIKHEW
& BEBEZEVN
Low Medium High
& & =
Importance to the Group
HAESENEENS
@ Environmental & Employee > QOperation
® RIETE ¢ ETFE > ZEE

e EHERRERAT
—B-BEEH
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BE-HERERKSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group always paid great attention to energy
conservation, emission reduction and environmental
protection, and adheres to the management philosophy
of sustainable development to achieve green operation
and balanced development; in response to the global
environmental protection trends, the Group implements
energy conservation and environmental protection
measures to mitigate the environmental risks and
negative impacts from the Group’s business activities.
The ESG Committee plays a critical decision-making
role on various measures, including environmental
protection, customers’ service, supply chain, employees’
and investors’ concerns, and gradually enhances the
Group's sustainability performance. We also actively
respond to domestic environmental protection activities
and organize numerous environmental protection
publicity activities on our own to promote green
living. Besides, we strictly adhere to the applicable
environmental laws and regulations and support
the government in various actions to protect the
environment, and hopes to fulfill the expectations and
concerns of both the Group and its stakeholders in
business development and environmental protection.

In order to implement the Group’s environmental
protection policy effectively, we have set up Human
Resources & Administration Center, and Property
Management Center at each mall for monitoring
the daily environmental and resources conservation
management work within the mall and office areas; and
demand our employees to strictly follow the Group's
internal guidelines to collect, classify, store and dispose
of wastes; hope to reduce waste and to avoid resources
wastage through various measures. Please refer to
the details in the “Management of Emissions” and
“Management of Resources Utilization” sections below.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

RIBERE
REBRIANRIIERE FTEE LR BE
MEERR REZNFEZRD
EREES BERSELERHEHE
B UTHAEZ2KANRREE RS
THEBEIRIRIEIE - A EEEHRIRAT
IR R R B E &K - ESGER
BEEeRNBSEERETEEEENRE
BE NRERE BPRSE HE
# BIRKREESZEABMEE
BARAAEBAIFERRENRE
HMIERE ERARREE) - 817
BMLERREFEEY  REZKECE
Eo AN B —EBRRERELRE
BEBEENRRERER X
ZRETSEMNRRITE  5E2ER
ERENRE AR ERHEHAR
SEERBERNPEHEEN.

RTERERAEERERE
BER - RN S B ST RILADITER
ROMYRERR AEEBRS
M AEBEANHBRRTEEL
FERERNERTIE: BRREET
FERBASENAEES Wk -2
BERMEESEEY REEE
R e DA R A E AR S R B
REER - BBEEHN X [HR
PHER] R [EREMREE] & D
AFARTE L -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions

The Group always strictly complied with the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the "“Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
the applicable laws and regulations of the
provincial and municipal bureau in ecology and
environment. We integrate green operation
into our development strategies to monitor and
manage various environmental factors and their
impacts on the environment, with an aim to build
a strong environmental management system.

The Group's economic and trading business
does not involve any production activities, and
its environmental impact mainly comes from use
of natural resources, generation of solid wastes
(Please refer to the “Management of Disposal
of Solid Waste” section below for details) and
discharge of domestic wastewater from its office,
shopping mall and supermarket operations, and
never produced any solid or liquid hazardous
wastes. The use of natural resources (including
gasoline, diesel, natural gas and electricity) will
produce air pollutants and greenhouse gases
(Please refer to the “Management of Resource
Utilization” section below for details); and
domestic wastewater is discharged to the local
wastewater treatment plant through the urban
wastewater pipeline.
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IV.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)
Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes

The solid waste generated by the Group can
be divided into two types, recyclable and non-
recyclable, which mainly includes product
packaging materials (such as plastic bags,
wrapping paper, carton box), slow-moving goods,
kitchen waste, construction and engineering
wastes and domestic garbage. In order to reduce
waste production and the negative impacts
on the environment, we encourage shops to
use bio-degradable plastic bags and packaging
paper, and strictly implement the plastic bag levy
system. We donate slow-moving consumable
goods to the people in need, encourage
employees to take food at right portions and
reduce food waste, re-use waste spare parts for
the repairs and maintenance of the equipment
inside the malls, recycle and re-use the wooden
boards, lights and electrical equipment removed
or discarded by the brands after shop renovation,
post environmental slogans in the malls and
organize activities in the theme of environmental
protection so as to enhance the public awareness
in saving the environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

The Group has always advocated the belief
in green environmental protection, actively
promotes wastes classification and resources
recycling for relieving the pressure on the
environment and to spread messages on
important measures for improving the living
environment, continue to instill knowledge
of wastes classification to employees and
customers and to explain how people’s behaviors
have been damaging the environment and
facilities and to illustrate the correct way of
implementation. Therefore, we have set up a
waste classification team, established waste
classification management policy and procedure;
improved and enhanced the waste classification
facilities, and delegated personnel to monitor the
implementation progress of each department.
The Group has set up recycle bin for hazardous
wastes, kitchen wastes, recyclable wastes and
non-recyclable wastes and to share wastes
recycling knowledge at promotion booths inside
shopping malls; so as to actively promote the
knowledge on wastes recycling and classification,
and to advocate “mixed wastes is garbage and
classification turns wastes into resources”, hope
to raise the proportion of the recyclable wastes;
and at the same time, assist the local government
to promote wastes classification; and to cultivate
people’s habit to live a “low-carbon” life; and
produce less wastes.
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IV.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

For the wastes generated from equipment
repairs and maintenance inside the shopping
malls and supermarkets, and the construction
wastes produced by shops when they move
in or undergo renovation, we follow the local
urban waste disposal management requirements
to arrange wastes collection by construction
companies or the local government sanitation
department; and illegal dumping of waste is
forbidden. The Group started to collect data on
domestic wastes and domestic wastewater from
shopping malls and offices since March 2019,
and implemented the relevant measures relating
to the production, disposal and reduction of
domestic wastes and organized environmental
protection trainings at appropriate times to
enhance employees’ awareness of environmental
protection. With the active support of our
employees, the Group’'s environmental
management system has been enhanced
progressively, and will continuously optimize
various re-use and wastes reduction measures.
The Group focuses not only on its own business
operations, but also actively promotes the global
sustainable development trend.

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group strictly
abided by the environmental laws and regulations
of the State and local ecology and environmental
bureaus, and the Group was not involved in any
confirmed violations or non-compliance incident
relating to emissions that had a significant impact
on the Group.
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization

The Group has strictly complied with the
“Regulations on Energy Conservation in
Shaanxi Province”, the “Regulations on
Energy Conservation in Public Authority”
and the applicable energy-saving policies and
requirements of each city. We established an
energy-saving project management team to
carry out the energy-saving and emission-
reduction projects on shopping centers,
continuously enhancing the projects by adopting
various measures to conform with the national
environmental protection policy of energy-
saving and emission-reduction. The Group
clearly understands the use of resources not
only increased the operating costs, but also has
an impact on the environment. Therefore, the
Group strictly monitors and manages ESG data.
In order to operate as a conservation-oriented
enterprise, green management is implemented
throughout the Group to correct our wasteful
behavior in daily work and living. Besides, we
have also established “Employees’ Suggestion
Rationalization Management Measures” to
provide a direct communication channel between
employees and the management in order to
encourage employees to participate in operation
management. We hope that employees can
familiarize themselves with their working
environment and make different effective
recommendations, so as to formulate efficient
energy-saving and emission-reduction policy,
further promote and implement measures in
energy-saving, emission-reduction and efficient
use of resources, thereby reducing operating
costs, creating publicity and atmosphere of
energy-saving and emission-reduction in the
working environment, and minimizing the
Group’s negative impact on the environment.
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IV.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption

Diesel and gasoline fuel-based vehicles are
mainly used for guest pick-up, business trips and
materials transportation. We analyze the monthly
fuel consumption data to regulate our employees
on the usage of vehicles. If abnormalities are
found, the vehicle administrators are required
to provide explanation. Drivers must plan the
routes before using the vehicles and use the
shortest route and the fastest way to reach the
destination. We also require the driver to stop
the engine to prevent engines idling; conduct
regular repairs and maintenance to reduce extra
fuel consumption and waste gas emissions due
to part failure. Besides, we also promote and
publicize the “low carbon travel” emission-
reduction measures, encourage employees to use
public transportations or the shared bikes within
the urban area to reduce use of vehicles, thereby
reducing emissions and greenhouse gas. We
hope the employees could deliver the message of
“Living Green” to their family and friends; and
to motivate more people to build an ecological
civilization together. During the reporting period,
the Group consumed approximately 7,739.62
liters of diesel, representing a decrease of
approximately 491.38 liters or 5.97% compared
with the previous period "2, and consumed
approximately 3,968.28 liters of gasoline,
representing a decrease of approximately
3,229.72 liters or 44.87% compared with the
previous period "o 2 Diesel vehicles are mainly
used for goods delivery for supermarkets. Due to
the change in business model of supermarkets,
some products are directly delivered to our
customers by affiliated merchants. Besides,
in order to protect the health and safety
of employees and customers at the time of
COVID-19 pandemic, we arrange goods delivery
once every three days whenever possible to
reduce the frequency of use of vehicles, and thus
diesel consumption is also reduced. The number
of business trips has also been reduced due to
the COVID-19, so the consumption of gasoline
has been reduced accordingly.
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)

Natural gas is mainly used in staff canteen
cooking utensils and heating in some
supermarkets. We stipulate that the kitchen staff
should prepare food according to actual needs,
and the heating system could only be used when
temperature fell below certain degree so as to
avoid over-usage or waste of natural gas due to
excessive food prepared or use of the heating
system under inappropriate temperature. During
the reporting period, the Group consumed
natural gas of approximately 19,884.00 cubic
meters (“m3"), representing a decrease of
approximately 6,704.00 cubic meters or 25.21%
compared with the previous period "2 This is
mainly affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Group’s normal business hours have been
shortened, and led to reduced demand on
food preparation and reduced heating time by
employees, and consequentially, less natural gas
is consumed.

During the reporting period, the Group’s use of
energy and Scope 1 greenhouse gas emitted are
as follows:
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)

Notes:

! The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m?) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the reporting period, there
was no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

2 As the Group has changed its financial year
end date, the environmental performance data
in the current period is from 1 April 2020 to
31 December 2020. In order to enhance the
comparability of the two years’ environmental
performance data, the variance analysis in
this Report is made by comparing the current
period’s data with that of the same period
in last year (that is, from 1 April 2019 to 31
December 2019).

Management of Electricity Consumption

The Group has always concerned about the
impact of its business operations on the
environment. However, due to the nature of our
business, high demand of electricity consumption
in shopping malls, mainly used in lighting and
air-conditioning. In order to balance the energy-
saving and emission-reduction target and
satisfying the customers’ needs, we strengthen
the management of electricity use within malls
and the publicizing effort of energy-saving and
emission-reduction in various aspects. We hope
to maximize the efficiency in electricity use,
and at the same time, build up habit in energy
conservation in our business environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the management of the lighting system, the
Human Resources & Administration Center, and
Property Management Center strictly controls
the electricity consumption during renovation
of new brands and the existing brands, controls
the use of high-energy consumption lighting,
and at the same time, recommends the use
of LED energy-saving lighting. Brands have to
control their electricity load, and turn off the
lights when there is no one in the shops. We
conduct detailed inspection and acceptance
procedures on different aspects, such as industrial
art, fire prevention, safety, design, resources
and energy consumption when the renovation
is completed. These measures can effectively
control the energy consumption of the brands in
future operation. For the electricity management
of existing brands and the public areas of the
malls, other than continuing to request brands
to use LED energy-saving lighting, we also adopt
various electricity conservation measures, for
example, we only switch on the monitoring
lights and emergency lights during non-business
hours; brands must apply in writing and pay
the extra electricity charges if they require
additional electricity during non-business hours.
We will not provide additional electricity if the
brands or external units did not submit the
application and pay the extra electricity charges.
We implement regional lighting arrangements,
and turn off unnecessary lights in some areas,
adjust the running time of the escalator to
avoid unnecessary wastage, thereby reducing
the electricity consumption from lighting in the
malls. Apart from electricity use for lighting,
supermarkets need to store a variety of fresh
food and goods in 24-hour freezer facilities for
preservation purposes. These facilities consume
huge amounts of electricity, so we take various
measures to reduce electricity consumption. For
example, we carry out targeted maintenance
and repairs for the equipment; plan to carry out
innovative and intelligent management of the
equipment so that the equipment can adjust
its temperature automatically according to the
detected temperature and the product type, and
to switch intelligently its operation mode (such
as sleep mode at night); provide alert or signal in
case of equipment failure so that the responsible
departments can carry out repairs as soon as
possible and to reduce the failure rate of the
equipment.
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IV.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the electricity management of air-
conditioning, we conduct regular repair and
maintenance and monitor the operation of air-
conditioning equipment inside the malls, clean
the facilities regularly, and carry out appropriate
energy-saving re-engineering for the facilities,
thereby increasing their output rate, and
reducing the additional electricity consumption
from abnormal operation. Besides, we adopt
appropriate measures to control the temperature,
timing difference and air volume of the air-
conditioning equipment, such as, we reasonably
adjust the temperature according to seasonal
change, real-time temperature data feed from
the monitoring system inside the malls and the
feedback from on-site personnel. We also adjust
on/off time of the facilities and the ratio of fresh
air supply, aiming at satisfying the comfort needs
of customers, and at the same time, achieving
the goal of energy-conservation.

The Group has established a strict review and
approval procedure for selecting suppliers of
power facilities and equipment, the suppliers
have to provide qualification certificates and
product manual. We compare the qualification
among different suppliers and evaluate different
criteria about the equipment (including energy
consumption, quality, function, etc.) prior to
purchase so as to reduce unnecessary energy
consumption due to unsuitable facilities
and equipment. The Human Resources
& Administration Center, and Property
Management Center is responsible for the
daily inspection of offices and shopping malls,
and the organization, planning, execution and
inspection of energy-saving and consumption
reduction work, and the maintenance staff
conducts regular repairs and maintenance on
electrical facilities and equipment. When faults or
abnormal operations are found, immediate repair
is carried out to reduce energy consumption
and to avoid accidents. We also actively conduct
energy-saving technological transformation
for electrical appliances to improve the power
efficiency of the unit.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the electricity management in office, we post
different energy-saving promotional slogans in
the offices; increase the natural lighting capacity
of the work place; encourage employees to
change their habit in use of electrical appliances
by turning off the unnecessary lights and
electrical appliances during lunch break and
after work, the computer and the printer are
set to automatic sleep mode. Restricted use
of air conditioners according to seasonal and
temperature changes, the temperature setting of
the air conditioner in summer and winter cannot
be lower than 26°C and not higher than 20°C
respectively, air conditioner should be turned
off 15 minutes before the end of office hours;
doors and windows must be closed when air
conditioners are turned on.

The Group believes that publicity and education
is also an important part of energy-saving and
emission-reduction work. Within the corporate,
we remind our employees to abide by the
energy-saving measures during the morning
assembly, so as to enhance their awareness in
energy-saving, and hope that employees can
understand that everyone must work together
to remain competitive under the fierce market
competition. We also hope that employees can
start from every little thing and are determinant
to avoid resource wastage, thereby enhancing
their environmental protection awareness in work
and life through participation in energy-saving
and emission-reduction activities. Besides, we
post various energy-saving slogans in shopping
malls, use electronic displays to publicize energy-
saving tips. We organize different promotional
activities in shopping malls to educate the public
about the relationship between energy usage and
the sustainability of the planet.
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - BRIBERE (2
(continued)
2.  Management of Resources Utilization 2. EBEREAMER (&)

(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

During the reporting period, the Group
consumed approximately 25,851.60 megawatt
hours ("MWh") of electricity, representing a
decrease of approximately 3,298.56 megawatt
hours or 11.32% compared with the previous
period "2 This is mainly due to the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic on the business
of department stores and shopping malls, and
shortened the business hours. Some brands
have even withdrawn their counters, and the
marketing area of the malls was not fully used,
resulting in less electricity consumed. Besides,
we have been actively transforming the lighting
system of public areas in malls and supermarkets
with LED energy-saving lighting for a number of
years; and the transformation project is gradually
completed, and thus effectively reduced the
electricity consumption.

During the reporting period, the Group’s use of
energy and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emitted are
as follows:

For the Nine Months Ended
31 December 2020 2
BE-_Z-_ZF+=-A=+—H

1E A fE A2
Co,
equivalent
Consumption emissions
(MWh) (Tonnes)
&b
HERAE EEHNE
(JEFLBF) (W)
Indirect Use of Energy:
BEERAEIR:
Electricity 25,851.60 23,666.65
B
Greenhouse Gas Emission 23,666.65
BEREHMEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity ' 99.55

BEREBHHEZE
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20098 mEREBERAEE
NEEMRLEBRERTE
FEERER D 50 mEmE
FRE - SIS A IR 1R A
PHEFERASERES R M
N BPIZFRERE SR
BETHEHALRBREBHAR
ETTLEDEN RE /B BUE -« U
Iﬁaﬁf%ﬁ AEE71HA
M A D PR o

RIEHA - NEREE MR
&PHJFE&B’J%EI 0 E R
FIE AN

For the Year Ended
31 March 2020

BE_Z-_TF=-A=1+—H

IEFE
Co,
equivalent
Consumption emissions
(MWh) (Tonnes)
k= |4
EHRE EEHRE
(JEFLEF) (Mg )

34,350.62 31,447.23

31,447.23
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

Notes:

1

The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m?) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the reporting period, there
was no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor the relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

As the Group has changed its financial year
end date, the environmental performance data
in the current period is from 1 April 2020 to
31 December 2020. In order to enhance the
comparability of the two years’ environmental
performance data, the variance analysis in
this Report is made by comparing the current
period’s data with that of the same period
in last year (that is, from 1 April 2019 to 31
December 2019).
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RIBE HERER

IV.

&

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources
Consumption

The Group uses government-supplied water
sources in shopping malls and offices.
Although we do not encounter any water
supply problem during the reporting period,
we clearly understand the importance of
water resources for business operations and
living needs; therefore, we implement various
measures to enhance water resource use
efficiency and to avoid wastage. The Human
Resources & Administration Center, and Property
Management Center of each mall regularly
collect and analyze the statistical data of water
consumption to monitor the water usage. We
educate and promote the concept of “green
life” to our employees and customers by way
of slogans, training and publicity activities. We
have implemented a number of measures and
retrofitted the equipment in the malls; for the
purpose of reducing water use as long as the
comfort of the customers is not compromised.
For example, adjust the operating frequency
of the water pump motors flexibly so as to
minimize the electricity and water consumption,
strengthen water pipes inspection to avoid
running, dripping, leaking and long flowing
water; re-use condensed water from air-
conditioning equipment in the cooling tower,
as the temperature of condensed water is
low enough to reduce the temperature of the
cooling tower less energy is consumed, and at
the same time, reduced the frequency of water
replenishment into the cooling tower; install
water-saving faucets and reasonably adjust the
volume of water outflow; use foot valve manual
flushing to replace automatic induction flushing;
regularly check the water facilities to prevent
water leakage; immediately repair or replace
when problem is found, and keep detailed
records. The Group persistently instilling their
employees about the importance of the savings
culture, and puts up posters of different resource
saving methods in the office area, and demands
the employees to control the water flow at low
level, water tap should be turned off after use.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources
Consumption (continued)

As the business hours of department stores and
shopping malls have been reduced due to the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the customer
flow at different operating locations has dropped.
Therefore, the water resources used by the
Group during the reporting period decreased by
approximately 50,073.50 cubic meters or 22.19%
compared with the previous year "2, and the total
amount of water consumed is approximately
175,618.36 cubic meters.

During the reporting period, the Group’s use of
water resources is as follows:

Water Resources

KER

Total

=2
won BB

Intensity '

Notes:

1

The Group’s water consumption intensity is
calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?)
of the floor area of the shopping malls and
offices. During the reporting period, there
was no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor the relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

As the Group has changed its financial year
end date, the environmental performance data
in the current period is from 1 April 2020 to
31 December 2020. In order to enhance the
comparability of the two years’ environmental
performance data, the variance analysis in
this Report is made by comparing the current
period’s data with that of the same period
in last year (that is, from 1 April 2019 to 31
December 2019).

Months Ended
31 December 2020 2

RR HEREBRE

u- RIGGRE (F)
2. HAREANER (&)
REFEAYEE (&)

HR 20198 MR E SRR
FEMBEREEREYH L
B & R S 2 BB
Zine N B AEBRER
LHANERKERE
A EiM 223, > 4750,073.50
S K E22.19% - H{F Aok
BIR#9175,618.3637 J7 K ©

RIFEIA - AKE KIS
I -

For the Nine
For the Year Ended
31 March 2020

BE-_Z_-%=F% HE_ZT-TF
+=-—A=+—H1 =A=+—81t
i@ A2 Fg
(Cubic Meters) (Cubic Meters)
(M FK) (ML FHXK)
175,618.36 271,879.67
738.70 1,148.88
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IV.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of the Use of Packaging
Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group
mainly include plastic and paper bags provided
for customers to carry the purchased goods,
and packaging materials used for supermarket
stock up and packaging of fresh food; in
order to actively support the national policy of
“Administrative Measures for the Paid Use of
Plastic Bags at Commodity Retailing Places”,
and to achieve the aims of conserving resources,
protecting the ecological environment, and
influencing our consumers to reduce plastic
shopping bags use, to bring their own shopping
bags, and to use more eco-friendly shopping
bags; we have established the “Regulations for
the Use of Eco-friendly Shopping Bags” to ensure
the company’s environmental-friendly shopping
bags are used appropriately. The Group restricted
salespeople from providing plastic shopping
bags to consumers at below-cost price or free of
charge. We also regularly assign delegated staff
to packaging counters to inspect and carry out
comprehensive monitoring, including assessment
of the application standards, charge level and
review of the packaging materials record.
Besides, we have also promoted the concept
of “green lifestyle” to the public, and posted
promotional slogans at various sales areas,
appealed consumers to reduce the use of plastic
products and use more bio-degradable materials
to reduce the impact on the environment due to
incorrect or excessive use of packaging materials.
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RE HERERRSE

IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - BRIBRE (22

(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization 2. EBEREANERE (&)
(continued)

Management of the Use of Packaging
Materials (continued)

BREUHEHANEE (&)

During the reporting period, the Group RMEBRRN NEBHEH

consumed approximately 38.94 tonnes of
packaging materials, representing a decrease
of 7.00 tonnes or 15.24% compared with
the previous period "2 Due to the change
in the business model of the supermarkets,
fresh ingredients were originally packaged by
customers themselves, but they were now directly
distributed by affiliated merchants, thereby
greatly reducing the amount of packaging
materials used.

During the reporting period, the Group’'s use of

B HE W) #)38.941F - B £ F
R BAME2)8 > 497 .00W8 =X,
15.24% ' AR FB A TH 45 1Y 48
ERAWE - FHERMREAHR

BEATEE MAmEE
REZRRZE KRR @%%
HIfEME -

RBEHR - AEBHBE

packaging materials is as follows:

Packaging Materials
BmitAERME
Total

me

Intensity ’

ERBERIA TR :

For the Nine
Months Ended
31 December 2020 2

For the Year Ended
31 March 2020

a:t—?—qu @i—?—?ﬂz
+ZA=+—H1 —A=+—H81t
@ A2 Fg

(Tonnes) (Tonnes)

(g ) (W)

38.94 65.58

0.16 0.28
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of the Use of Packaging
Materials (continued)

Notes:

! The Group’s packaging materials consumption
intensity is calculated based on 0.001 square
meters (m?) of the floor area of the shopping
malls and offices. During the reporting period,
there was no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor the relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

2 As the Group has changed its financial year
end date, the environmental performance data
in the current period is from 1 April 2020 to
31 December 2020. In order to enhance the
comparability of the two years’ environmental
performance data, the variance analysis in
this Report is made by comparing the current
period’s data with that of the same period
in last year (that is, from 1 April 2019 to 31
December 2019).

Management of Paper Consumption

In order to reduce the impact of our daily office
operation on the environment, the Group
actively promotes the “Paperless Office” policy,
sets up office automation system to enable
each department to distribute information and
documents in electronic format; paper purchase
by the procurement center and set up an office
paper distribution registration management
system; demand employees to check the format
of the document before copying or printing;
reduce the font size of the file to make full use
of the paper without affecting the legibility; fully
utilize paper by reusing single-sided papers, and
collect double-sided printed papers to qualified
recycler for handling. We have also introduced
different electronic payment methods in various
department stores and supermarkets to speed up
the implementation of paperless payment, and
to carry out promotion activities through online
digital marketing channels and reduced use of
printed materials.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

3.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group has always been actively bringing
environmental responsibility into its daily
operations, energy consumption and waste
production is monitored and managed over the
years, and will continue to monitor, identify
and disclose the impact of our business
activities on the environment. The major impact
on the environment and natural resources
from shopping malls and offices operations
mainly come from waste gas, greenhouse gas,
wastewater and solid wastes generated from
the use of natural resources (including electricity,
natural gas, fuel, water, paper, etc.), and the
construction wastes and domestic wastes
generated from the operation of shopping malls.

Although the COVID-19 outbreak has had a
huge impact on the economy in Mainland China,
the Group's department stores and shopping
malls businesses are the first to bear the brunt.
Faced with the decline in profits of physical
retail corporates, the Group’s commitment to
environmental protection and green operations
has not diminished. With years of accumulated
environmental protection work experience, we
have effectively reduced operating costs, allowing
us to invest more resources and implement
various measures to increase resource efficiency.
Besides, the Chinese government provides
preferential policies and tax reductions for
various industries, which indirectly provides great
support to the Group’s environmental protection
work and reduces economic pressure. We will
continue to advocate the concept of “save one
unit of electricity, save one tonne of water,
save a drop of oil, save a piece of paper, save a
penny”, manage resource utilization and enhance
the employees’ awareness of environmental
protection.
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BRRE HERERBRKE

IV.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

3. Environment and Natural Resources
(continued)

The Group will continue to pay attention
to climate change, continuously review
and monitor the implementation of various
measures, constantly optimize measures based
on effectiveness, establish various effective
and appropriate measures with reference to
its operations, implement “green operation,
balanced development” and seek opinions from
external parties whenever needed, for reducing
our carbon footprint. We hope to use this
report to share with the others the results of
our efforts and performance on natural resource
conservation, and to convey environmental
protection messages to stakeholders, so as
to achieve a more powerful environmental
protection publicity effect and to work with all
walks of life to mitigate the climate change.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

Employees are our valuable assets and the key driver
for the Group’s sustainable and long-term business
development. We devote to create a non-discrimination,
equal, harmonious and safe workplace and establish
a comprehensive talent management mechanism.
In order to adhere to our governance philosophy
of attracting talent by means of “compensation”,
“relationship”, “career” and “working platform”,
we offer equal opportunities of advancement
and providing commensurate remuneration and
various benefits. The Group enhances employees’
consciousness of innovation, work flexibility and focus
on commitment when dealing with their customers,
promotes full participation of all our employees in
management, encourages employees to make rational
recommendations and put into practice so as to fulfill
the mission of providing high quality merchandises
and services to the customers. Besides, we encourage
employees to maintain harmonious interpersonal
relationships, promote team spirit of cooperation and
unity, bravely face difficulties and overcome challenges.
Our human resources policies vary by locations to
comply with the local labor laws and regulations.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Talent Selection

The Group is a fair opportunity employer and respects
personal privacy, and established related policy in this
area. During the recruitment process, the department
head determines the job positions’ responsibilities and
requirements, and the human resources department
assesses and screens applicants according to the
requirements. We adhere to the merit system principles
and fair recruitment. The appropriate candidates
would be selected based on their morality, knowledge,
abilities and job requirements, and regardless of their
nationality, gender, age, geographical, religious beliefs.
The policy applies to all phases of the employment
relationship, including but not limited to, hiring,
promotion, performance appraisal, training, personal
development and termination. On the basis of equality,
the Group hopes to identify talents who are committed
and dedicated to work, willing to take responsibility,
keep learning, continuously improving their abilities and
willing to move forward with the Group.

Labor Standards

The Group complies with the “Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance” and other applicable laws and regulations.
The Group cherishes human rights and protects labor
rights. Child and forced labor are strictly prohibited in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.
The human resources department of the Group
conducts background checks and reference checks in
its hiring process to prevent any child labor. Besides,
the Group has also implemented various measures to
prevent any forms of forced labor, including prisoners,
indentured servitude, bonded labor. For example,
labor contract is signed by the employee on a fair and
voluntary basis, ensure employees do not need to bear
any onboarding costs, never deduct wages, benefits
or property of employees, detention of employee’s
identity card or other identification documents is strictly
prohibited, any form of physical abuse, assault, body
search or insult, or forcing an employee to work by
means of violence, threat or unlawful restriction of
personal freedom are all forbidden. Employees’ consent
for work overtime is required to avoid involuntary
overtime work, and the employees are compensated
as appropriate in accordance with the applicable labor
laws and regulations. During the reporting period, the
Group did not involve in any violation of the laws and
regulations related to the child and forced labor.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Compensation and Welfare

The Group attracts and retains outstanding talents
with competitive remuneration packages and regularly
assesses their salary levels to ensure it is up to the
market standard. The Group benchmarks the up-to-
date remuneration data in its industry, and strives
to establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration scheme in order to ensure the pay level
of general staff is competitive in the region where the
Group operates; and the core members are remunerated
competitively within the industry. Employees’ salaries
level is decided based on one’s knowledge, skills,
experiences and education background relevant to
their work requirements, and the Group implements
a remuneration system that consists of basic salary
and performance-based bonus. The employees’
remuneration package includes basic salary, seniority
salary, overtime pay, and so on. Other benefits include
working meals, messing allowance, communication
allowance, birthday gifts, festive gifts, medical
insurance, provision of group accident insurance for
employees in high risk job positions, infectious disease
insurance purchased for protecting the employees’
safety at the time of the pandemic, etc.. We provide
anti-heatstroke and warm drinks and supplies to
special position workers (including security guards,
staff canteen’s employees, parking crews) during high
temperature and cold weather.

In order to enhance work quality and employee
competencies, the Group conducts periodic
performance appraisal and fairly assess the level
of awards, salary increment and/or promotion
recommendations based on a number of criteria,
including working experience, seniority, knowledge
and skills, performance, contributions, etc.. In the
performance appraisal process, the department head
communicates and discusses with employees about
their achievements, suggest areas for improvement, and
setting objectives and performance indicator for the
next appraisal period, so as to motivate the employees
for continuous improvement and to develop their
potential.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B - #HE8RERRSE

i ERREIER (&)

BTIFA
NEBEEBHFEZHH R
MRBSERET THOTELTIH
SEHMIER IkBEIAF -AE-
BABFINGTWER WEER
RBAAHHMKFEEEEWERS
BEHOEBEBEOABBNFHBAKF
ERITEEERF N  ETHHIE
1R — BT E KA A i RE - &
BRMHERESEEMET WET
A TEFMBERESREE NE
FE-BIMIEREEATE T
B TE MBS HMENSELT
1EE - BRERM WA - £RAE
mfEEMNR BERR - AaR
BB TIRREEBEIMEERR
AEHEERRARBEEILZE2MAS
THESLRREE AR RER
AR RMABEREMHET (21
RLBE - BIZEET HEEZE)
RIEHEMERERBEGE LR B
THEIE-

RTRABIMNIEEREREN
xR REBEEHETRERICHNERE
TR Z R LR 85T
1EREER  F& MBKRE RAME
BE UBEAFHERETRS
BEHME, B EETIRE  NER
ZizmdiETs ST ERTERT
AEENW TERATHEERETH
RAE - IR E R MR B THIFT T
—EZ BN E RN IER
132 AHBE THESCENSIEHET

N RN
/gﬁz"



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Compensation and Welfare (continued)

Besides, the Group provides social security benefits for
all employees following the requirement of the local
labor laws and social security laws and regulations.
The Group contributes to various social security
schemes (endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance and
maternity insurance) and housing provident fund for the
employees in Mainland China, and contributes to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees
in Hong Kong. The Group handles dismissal and
compensation in accordance with the local laws and
regulations.

The Group pays attention to its employees’ health and
encourages everyone to maintain work-life balance,
and set up employee work hours according to the
requirements of the local labor laws and protects the
employee rights to rest days and holidays; so that
all employees are entitled to rest days and statutory
holidays such as annual leave, maternity leave, funeral
leave and work injury leave in accordance with the
local labor laws. In response to the government’s
COVID-19 prevention and control policies and to
protect the employees’ health, the Group suspended
all employees’ leisure activities during the severe period
of the epidemic. When the epidemic eased, the Group
resumed and organized employee activities such as
skills competitions and fun sports games, including rope
skipping, dribbling, back-to-back dribbling, etc., the
Group also participated in the “Wall Mini Marathon”
organized by the Chamber of Commerce. The purpose
of organizing or participating in these activities is to
relieve employees’ stress during the epidemic and to
enhance team tacit-knowledge and cohesion.

The Group has neither reduced employees’
compensation and welfare nor laid off employees
due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In order to protect
the employees’ health and safety, the Group has
implemented various epidemic prevention measures.
Please refer to the “Health and Safety” and “Product
and Service Responsibility” sections below for details.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Development and Training

In order to align staff career development with its long-
term corporate business plan, the Group has set up
staff training polices with reference to the departmental
human resources needs. The human resources
department established a comprehensive staff training
plan with an aim to build an excellent, well-trained and
responsible corporate team. This can enhance the staff’s
knowledge and management capabilities and improve
their work ability, performance and efficiency, and raise
their enthusiasm in work to activate team spirit.

New hires have to participate in induction training
and pass the assessment. The training topics include
corporate culture, site management, sales skills,
membership policies, service etiquette and skills, quality
awareness, fire safety (on-site public facilities). On
top of providing foundation training, we also provide
skills advancement, professional and management
training to ensure that staff possess professional theory
and knowledge, and new knowledge for overcoming
challenges in order to lay a solid foundation for long-
term development of employees and the Group.

During the reporting period, in addition to the new
hire induction training, we also organized various
training programmes related to corporate management,
customer service and operation in shopping mall,
property management, finance, human resources,
environmental protection, information system
management, employees’ health and work safety
(please refer to “Health and Safety” section below
for details of employees’ health and work safety), etc.
The training topics include 020 strategy introduction
training, new version of corporate culture training,
legal education, one-day work flow training, customer
complaint case sharing, telephone etiquette and
business site, skills enhancement of shopping guides,
regulation of promotional behaviors, monitoring skills
and knowledge training, understanding of finance
fundamentals, management of performance evaluation,
implementation requirements for energy saving and
consumption reduction, new version of OA operation,
informationalization work portal, a series of courses on
office software, etc. In order to achieve better results
from organizing training programmes, employees
are asked to provide feedback and satisfaction level
upon completion of training programmes and serve as
reference for next year’s training plan.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES - ERERBEIER (&)

(continued)

Health and Safety

The Group pays attention to its employees’ health and
provides a safe work environment so as to prevent
occupational hazards and various incidents from
happening. We sign target a responsibility statement
of “Setup Safe Workplace” with each subsidiary, and
formulate safe management team with reference to
the company’s operation. Management and employees
at all levels must clearly understand their own safety
responsibilities and strictly perform the requirements as
stated on the target responsibility statement.

The Group established a safety management manual
to strengthen its fire safety management in its
business sites, key departments and offices. Smoking
is prohibited for staff and customers; and we target to
keep our shopping centers, malls, supermarkets and
offices smoke-free. We designated staff to regularly
carry out fire prevention patrol every day at all locations
and critical departments; and keep patrol records. We
take immediate remediation or precautions once fire
hazards are found. In compliance with the local fire
prevention standards and policies, we have stringent
management on fire equipment and facilities; carry out
repairs and maintenance, and keep records.

In order to regulate the property management work,
we have established property management policies and
procedures. The Human Resources & Administration
Center, and the Property Management Center are
responsible for monitoring, inspection, providing
guidance and evaluation work. Employees have
to report to maintenance staff immediately when
repairs (such as electrical equipment, electric power
distribution equipment, facilities at shopping malls, air-
conditioners, drainage equipment, etc.) are needed for
shopping centers, supermarkets and offices so as to
ensure the customers’ and employees’ safety at these
locations. Staff of special work types (such as electrician,
welders) must possess valid license before they are
allowed to work; for example, to get a fire certificate
before using fire; carpenter should promptly clean up
with the sawdust and shavings after job completion;
inflammables, explosive, chemical or dangerous
materials are prohibited and no storage is allowed,
paint workers should not blend paints on-site or at the
locations close to fire or electric source; paints should be
covered with lids immediately after use.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Training topics are mainly related to workplace
safety and occupational health. The Group raises its
employees’ safety awareness by providing appropriate
occupational health and safety training to introduce
the corporate development plan, enhance their
awareness on safety and continuously strengthen
their consciousness, improve their professional skills,
especially for those job positions under significant
potential safety hazards, and enable them to perform
their duties in a safe environment. Employees have to
report to the management immediately when incident
occurs or aware of any potential hazards. Safety
education and training work plays an important role to
ensure the workplace is safe. New hires must receive
safety training prior to put into work. This is to make
sure that staff have the necessary safety knowledge in
their position; familiar and able to master the safety
techniques required. Key and special positions (such as
fire control center) have to take professional training
and pass the examination before they are assigned to
take up the role. Firefighters have to be familiar with
and master the use of various types of fire prevention
facilities to ensure that they can operate with the
equipment for fighting fire. During the reporting period,
we organized various safety training activities such as
fire control training, various kinds of emergency plan
training, flood prevention emergency plan training,
safety use of electricity of functional stores training,
knowledge on epidemic prevention and control training,
fire evacuation drills, anti-terrorism, anti-riot drills, flood
control drills, etc.
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RE HERERRSE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

To cope with COVID-19, the Group has adopted a
number of epidemic prevention measures for the sake
of employees’ health and safety. After the shopping
malls resumed business, we distributed epidemic
prevention and control manual to our employees,
strengthened the staff education on personal hygiene,
provided anti-epidemic materials such as masks, alcohol
hand sanitizer, protective clothing, protective glasses to
employees, and stipulated that employees must wear
masks when working, pay attention to hand hygiene;
we also measure the body temperature of employees
every day, and use “health code” to monitor employees’
health status, prohibit employees from travelling to
those areas with severe epidemic. Since employees are
facing customers in the malls, we have adopted a series
of anti-epidemic measures to enhance the hygiene
management of the shopping malls to protect the
health and safety of customers and employees. Please
refer to the “Product and Service Responsibility” section
below for details.

During the reporting period, two employees of the
Group’s Xianyang store were suffered from serious
illness. The labor union of Xianyang store immediately
applied for the Trade Union care fund for them. The
Group continued to distribute festive gifts during
the sick leave of the two employees and initiated
fundraising activities among other employees. The
event, together with the union care fund, raised a total
of more than RMB80,000. During this period, we also
assigned delegated staff to visit the two employees
from time to time. Unfortunately, one of the employees
passed away at the end of 2020, and we also offered
condolences to the employee’s family members to show
our care; while the other employee is recovering. We
will conduct an assessment after the employee fully
recovered to confirm whether the employee can return
to his original position.
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VI.

BE-HERERKSE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group was involved in
five labor dispute lawsuits, two of which were closed
during the reporting period and have been executed
in accordance with the ruling; while the other three
are still under trial. Save as disclosed, the Group was
not involved involve in any non-compliance incidents
relating to employment, health and safety, and labor
standards that have significant impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The Group conveys its concern on environmental issues
to its suppliers and business partners, and expects them
to implement similar practices. The Group also serves
to maintain long-term, stable and strategic cooperative
relationships with leading suppliers, and co-develops
with its suppliers on the basis of equality and win-win
situation.

We have established centralized procurement
management manual to strictly control and monitor the
procurement process relating to materials, engineering
work and services. We have set up strict processes and
requirements in respect of the management of approved
suppliers, procurement methods, quality improvement,
procurement contract, etc. in order to ensure the
procurement processes are carried out following the
principles of fairness, justice, openness, effectiveness,
integrity and ethics, and to enhance efficiency and
ensure good product and service quality. The centralized
procurement team is responsible for establishing
procurement policy and carrying out daily procurement
work. The audit team conducts qualification evaluation
and reviews the procurement process. The supervision
team monitors the compliance of procurement process,
handles reports and appeals relating to the procurement
process, corrects violated behaviors and penalizes the
employees for breaches.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Supply Chain Management (continued)

To accept new suppliers, we will pay visits to their
business sites, and evaluate their certifications, internal
management policies documents, work manual,
operational status, etc. to make sure that they possess
the capabilities in fulfilling the obligations. We also
establish strict evaluation procedures for renewal of
merchandise suppliers, and regularly compile statistics
and review the performance of our suppliers, assess
their capability, business status and operational results;
in order to grasp the product sales situations and make
appropriate adjustment to our strategies. The evaluation
includes reviewing of their market position, their
overall capability, product quality, supply performance,
sales performance, quality service, business results;
and conduct a comprehensive evaluation based on
a combination of scores and text comments. The
evaluation result is sent to management to ensure
that the selected suppliers are competitive and possess
recognized qualifications and good internal control
system, stable quality, on-time delivery, laws and
regulations compliance. We have established policies
and procedures in supply chain management and
provided various reporting channels for employees,
suppliers, customers and other business partners
to report any violations and suspected abuse one’s
authority for own interest. During the reporting period,
the Group did not have significant issues relating to
violations in this respect.
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Product and Service Responsibility

The Group realizes that the department store and
shopping center business not only need to guarantee
high-quality goods, but also need to provide customers
with high-quality services and establish good corporate
image. Therefore, we follow the operating strategies
and goals of each operating location, and observe
the requirements of laws and regulations, market
conditions, customers’ needs and expectations and
other information to establish our policy relating to
quality. The Group pays attention to customers’ needs,
wins customers’ confidence with high-quality and
distinctive products; cares about customers’ feelings,
provides services that exceed customers’ expectations,
and creates surprises for customers; protect its own
image, promotes business innovation, and insists on
adopting innovative methods to enhance customers’
service experience; focus on trends; while leading
the trend and advocating consumer spending on
the mainstream culture, we also pay attention to
the customers’ experience. Every department, every
employee of the Group, everything they did, and every
word they said, altogether built the “Century Ginwa”
brand. Both the front-line employees and back-office
personnel uphold the Group’s core value of “To do
the best, and never change “, consistently implement
each quality policy, provide customers with high-quality
services and products, and instill the thoughts of “our
action is customers’ needs driven” among employees,
so as to achieve a first-class enterprise brand image.

Customer Service

In order to build up an image of excellent service, we
established employees’ handbook to strictly require
our staff to pay attention to their appearance, phone
manner, reception etiquette, conduct and behavior,
dressing, job descriptions and requirements, and service
greetings, etc. We have established service quality
monitoring system to accurately evaluate the company’s
service quality, to promptly remediate problems found,
and to provide customers with satisfactory services
meeting their needs. When serving customers, every
employee must abide by the Group’s professional ethics,
serve customers with sincerity, respect customers’
national customs and religious beliefs, and should not
judge people by appearance or comment on customers.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

VI. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued) N EBEEN (&)

& m M R B A
AEEEMIBERSEBYT O
EBTEERTRMER EFRER
BERHEL RGN L RFEE
g Bt B ARES S EHH VL
ERHEBR WHESERERR
KGR HEERRKEEE
ER EXEEH -AEEEIE
EFES UnEER ARFENEM
BOBEEL BUOBERRT ZH#t
BREBEEMENRY SEEAIERE
ENER - BEEASTR HDER
BT BRI A T A AR T
ERIERR TEHSKE ELIR
s (BEEE TR EMRE - &
BESIEX AEEZEMA -
NETHHOHE - HE FHE—
AFHREZ NHE LSl W
miE EREANMETIHRHPAR
HREZAKE [EEEE KL
AlWMZOEEE ERATEEE
ENE REPRHAEERBG NS M
Bl REIZMEY [EENTE
KRBRMWITENER] B8 AKX
—RERANMBER -

EER%

REBEBENRBES  ZMAFIE T
BITFfM BRMBEEBIERER
EREREE KERFER 1T/
BFRE BEIERLZNITER
BLRBAES - RERFE LT
R mE - MM IENEERE [
BEREN S EROVRS 5 ER
B EEFIRE - B8 TRIRTSE
ERVABTASENBEBERR
- UHGE BEEBEENORKEMR
FRHBUSAD AT ABRENA - AT
BEEBE-



VI.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product and Service Responsibility (continued)
Product Quality

The Group strictly implements the price policy, hoping
to achieve “Fair trade, genuine products at fair price,
and adequate measurement”. In order to strengthen
the quality management of merchandise and maintain
the reputation of the malls, we have established the
“Merchandise Quality Control Regulations” according
to the national product safety standards. Before each
type of merchandise are placed on the counter, the
Operation Department have to check and accept the
brand products according to the acceptance standards,
and the Customer Service Department monitors
the merchandise acceptance process including the
appearance, shelf life, labels, safety, instructions for
use, etc., to ensure the products provided by the
suppliers comply with the national standards and our
requirements, and at the same time, to prevent the
inflow of fake or inferior merchandise and to protect
the legitimate rights and interests of consumers.

Quality of Brand

In order to continuously strengthen the brand products
quality monitoring, to maintain our reputation, to
eliminate poor qualify countertest goods, and to protect
the consumer rights and interests by the Group; we
follow the applicable local laws and regulations in
brands and goods selection; and monitor and manage
closely the brands and suppliers that we work with. We
also establish supplier renewal system to ensure that
the suppliers’ merchandises are continuously keeping at
high quality.

ok

LEEM (4F)
AmAMRBEE(F)

i in &
AEBERATERRRK #EEE
[R¥RZ BEREEBE -SHERXR]-
ATNEHERmAOmEEHE R
ERSNES RMAZBRERND
mEEREHIET [EmmEE bl
ME ] AN REERN
R _EHERT - 482 BB B R IR IR B R 2
HEmmETTRIC WHRBE RS
BrmaRboRiE BT 2
BomE REH FH 22 £H
FAE R EERHA E M
R ABRMEFINER - FELE
BREXLEEmRANREBEE
VA A

REmEmE

AEBERFEMBRERPLEELRED
mEEE AERMANEE TER
BERsEMmORA REHEEE
@ ERENEREmmE  REH
BERDSARER EEREK
Emis - TS S B AT B e
BhEERNEEGEEFELEED
IR HATAHERZHEEERDN
HE - EERRAHERNEmERE
REF = KF e

e EHERRERAT
—B-BEEH

105



106

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIBE HERER

&

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product and Service Responsibility (continued)
Customers’ Complaints

Besides, continuous improvement is one of the key
principles of the Group’s quality management. We
actively seek various opportunities to improve the
quality of products and services, correct and reduce
the adverse impact on the Group, to meet customer
requirements. We, from time to time, conduct customer
satisfactory survey to obtain feedbacks on our malls’
reputation, merchandise and service quality, shopping
environment, service facilities, goods pricing, etc. in
the form of phone calls and on-site visit. We regularly
review the number of customers’ complaints received,
analyze and evaluate our customers’ comments and
suggestions; and to formulate improvement plan to
enhance our service quality. We remind our employees
of the service image requirements and customers’
feedback during morning assembly. We also use the
customers’ complaints as case sharing and employee
training materials to strengthen the responsiveness of
employees to customers’ complaints and to give the
customer better impression.

Intellectual Property Rights and Portrait Rights

The daily operations of the Group in shopping malls
often involve the use of the others’ intellectual
property rights and portrait rights. In order to
prevent infringement behaviors, we have established
“Management Regulations Involving the Use of Others’
Intellectual Property Rights and Portrait Rights in
Propaganda”, strictly regulate the pictures, celebrities
portraits, copyrighted emoticons, text materials,
fonts, video and audiovisual materials used by us and
brand owners in promotion inside and outside the
shopping malls, and through different media. Any
promotion without the authorization from the owners
are strictly prohibited. We also regularly organize
training relating to the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Advertising”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Copyright” and the applicable
laws to strengthen the professional skills and litigation
awareness of the employees.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product and Service Responsibility (continued)
Customers’ Data Privacy

In order to strengthen our connection with customers,
we have set up membership system since 2000, member
services and concessions are given by member class;
a customer service consultant is assigned to each
of our senior members and focus on meeting the
customer’s personal preferences and needs; and we
become the pilot enterprise in the Northwest Region.
Confidentiality is one of the Group’s core values. We
set up management policies relating to information
security, information system network, set up access right
with information system to handle and store customers’
information diligently and confidentially, and to protect
customers’ privacy. All employees are strictly prohibited
to disclose any such information to third parties without
proper authority unless there is a legal or professional
right or duty to do so.

To cope with the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group has
implemented a number of preventive measures to
protect the health and personal safety of our customers
and employees, and the details are as follow:

o Launched the “Emergency Plan for Epidemic
Prevention and Control” and set up epidemic
prevention and control team to cope with the
situation of possible spread of epidemic in the
shopping malls;

o Posted a reminder “Safety first at time of
epidemic” in the malls;

° Put up posters to remind customers to keep a
safe distance of 1.5 meters from the staff in the
malls;

o Arranged staff at each entrance and exit to

scan customers “One code pass”. Customers
can access the malls only after measuring body
temperature and wearing face masks;
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BRRE HERERBRKE

VI. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product and Service Responsibility (continued)

o Used spray disinfection to sterilize the public
areas, public facilities, waste mask disposal point,
etc. and increase the frequency of cleaning and
sterilization during business hours;

o Ceased to use central air-conditioning;

° Set up isolation rooms;

o Provided customers with anti-epidemic materials
such as hand wash liquid soap and alcohol hand
sanitizer,

o Set up waste anti-epidemic materials (such as

masks) disposal point on each floor of the malls;

o The brand must sign “Epidemic prevention and
control commitment letter” to ensure preventive
and control work has been done, and can meet
the relevant government requirements;

o Strictly followed sterilization requirements before
delivery of merchandise, and carried out the four
steps in packaging and sterilization, and reduced
the frequency of goods delivery to ensure the
safety of employees and customers.

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group’s products and
services did not involve in significant issues relating to
violations nor did the Group receive any complaints
concerning breaches of customer privacy and loss of
data.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Anti-corruption

Maintaining an ethical working environment is one
of the Group’s core values. We have adopted a zero-
tolerance approach for all kinds of corruption, bribery
and extortion situation. To comply with the “Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance” enforced by the Hong Kong
Independent Commission Against Corruption and other
applicable laws and regulations, we set up internal
management system to regulate employees’ conduct.
Offenders who request and accept bribes, obtain
other illegal interests are heavily penalized, including
termination of employment contracts, sent to the
judicial authority (if violating local laws and regulations),
and so on. We conduct anti-corruption training and
case study each year and demand all personnel to
build a habit of strict compliance with policies and
procedures, and to prevent all bribery.

We bring the disciplinary monitoring work in the
business process, ensure that there are channels
(including for reporting boxes, email and hotline)
for reporting suspected cases of obtaining personal
interests in carrying out one’s job duties, briberies,
extortion, fraud, money laundering in breach of
policies, regulations, and laws in strict confidence
to the Internal Control Department. We also set up
suggestion box and reward employees who make
good recommendations. We sign the anti-corruption
agreements with suppliers. During the procurement
and bidding processes, the Internal Control Department
participates in the procurement and bidding work to
monitor the compliance of each department (such
as bribery, receiving gifts and mis-behavior in the
bidding process, etc.); the Internal Control Department
also participates in the engineering work inspection
process, and is responsible for monitoring whether the
engineering companies are authorized, their employees’
qualification, whether the equipment is consistent
with the contract terms, and whether the company
has executed the inspection according to the process,
and so on. During the reporting period, the Group or
its employees did not involve in any litigation cases of
corruption.
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VIl.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to building the corporate
culture of “open and creative, win-win, grace for
the times and sincerely contributing to the society”,
advocate a green, energy-saving and safe lifestyle,
and devoted to charitable activities to show our
determination in taking up the social responsibility, to
care for the people in need and to push on building a
harmonious enterprise. During the reporting period, the
Group donated money to support the frontline epidemic
prevention work, donated suitcases to the medical team
of the Shaanxi Nuclear Industry Hospital 215 going
to Wuhan, donated food, beverages, disinfectant and
other epidemic prevention materials to people in need
with an aim of putting in some effort in fighting against
the epidemic.

The Group advocates the concept of sustainable
development and jointly promotes regional economic
development. The Group is a responsible taxpayer and
offers job opportunities to local people. We paid “five
insurances and housing provident fund” for staff in
Mainland China and the mandatory provident fund
contributions for staff in Hong Kong. We run our
business following good practices; we actively promote
green energy-saving and environmental friendly
concepts; we set up a role model for the industry; and
to some certain extent, we have contributed to social
stability and building a harmonious community.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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RE HERERRSE

VIil. HONOR N BE

During the reporting period, the Group was awarded RImEHN NEBESGUTHNEE

the following important honors: &
“County-level Safe Consumption Demonstration > MBS TR BRI TIE
Unit” plague awarded by the Safe Consumption WAERER (BEBROHEE
Creation Office in Xianyang City REEN) BE
“People’s Livelihood Guarantee Enterprise” > PP S EEENEIE
Certificate awarded by the Department of FrizEpfEIpR i E (RAERMED
Commerce of Shaanxi Provincial during the ) FHA
epidemic prevention and control period
Epidemic donation certificate awarded by Nuclear > B E R IE - —RHEK
Industry Hospital 215 in Shaanxi Province BENERIEREES
Certificates awarded by the Quality Association > AT EEmgHAEEH

in Xi‘an City to the Quality Management Team of
the Group:

- The First Prize for topic “Reduction in
the Violation Rate of Electricity Usage in
Functional Stores”

- The First Prize for topic “Shortening
the Waiting Time for Settlement by
Customers”

- The Second Prize for topic “Enhancement
of Year-on-year Ratio of Per Customer
Transaction”

- The Second Prize for topic “Improvement
in the MPOS Collection Speed in Shopping
Malls”

- The Third Prize for topic “Improvement in
the Qualification Rate of Fire-fighting Skills
for Restaurant Personnel”

- The Third Prize for topic “Shortening the
Replacement Time of Guide Data Screen”
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BE-HERERKSE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE IMPLEMENTATION

ESG Committee is established and chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. The committee members
include representatives from major departments,
including Strategic Management Department, Human
Resources & Administration Center, Internal Control &
Legal Department, Brand Development Center, Member
Service Center, Marketing Planning Center, Property
Management Center, etc.. The ESG Committee will
follow the requirement of laws and regulations; and to
conduct business following appropriate best practices;
like setting up ESG targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines. In order to promote our Group's business
and the long-term sustainable development of the
local community of our business locations, we improve
our corporate governance, protect the environment,
engage our stakeholders and to contribute to the
society. We have five ESG Task Forces under the
ESG Committee, with keys members from the
related departments assisting the ESG Committee to
supervise and monitor the progress of various ESG
activities, to coordinate in setting up key performance
indicators, to regularly assess the effectiveness, and
to hold seminars to enhance the staff awareness in
environmental protection. The Group also collects the
appeal and feedbacks of stakeholders through various
channels. For example, customers, suppliers/brands
and shareholders can make their recommendations via
Member Service Center/Marketing Planning Center,
Strategic Management Department/Brand Development
Center, and general meeting of listed companies. The
Group also set up suggestion box to collect employees’
suggestions which are directly sent to the management.
The management implements the relevant suggestions
after evaluating the feasibility. During the reporting
period, the management has followed the employees’
suggestions and adjusted the temperature by regions
in the malls to reduce electricity consumption. The ESG
Committee is responsible for submitting reports and
improvement proposals to the Board on a periodic basis.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE IMPLEMENTATION (&)

(continued)

The terms of reference, organizational structure,
reporting line and members of the ESG Committee are

as follows:

Community and
Shareholders/Investors
Focus Task Force

REEMUE
BiEa

Xi‘an-
Strategic Management
Department
and
Human Resources &
Administration Center

AR -ERER
3
ANTTEA D

e To maintain good
communication with
shareholders and
other stakeholders,
and to enhance
shareholders' value
in the long run

e To care for the
community and
people in need;
to ensure that
the interests of
the community
are considered in
conducting business
activities

o BERENEMBHER
BERENER R
EMREEE

o BLUHERERE
T HREKEDEE
BHENOFZ

BERRE

ESG% 5€ AE’JH@H&*%&I AR

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Leader: Chief Executive Officer

(Secretary of the Committee: Company Secretary of the Group)
BE HERERERS

(EEEWE

FETHAR
CRAWE)

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Convenor

BE #HEBRERZES

Employees and
Occupational Safety
Focus Task Force

BIANBZ
BN

Xi'an-

Human Resources &
Administration Center
and
Internal Control &
Legal Department

BAZ— ANTTHP L
e
AEEB

e To care for our .
people, from
recruitment, training
to developing our o
employees

¢ To maintain good
communication and
interactions with the
management team g

e To give appropriate
encouragement
and recognition to
employees

e To provide a
safe working
environment

o To prevent briberies,
extortion, frauds and
money laundering

o BIEIMME BEF o

MR .
o HERERERFNE
BHEE .
o HBTHRTEENSE
kEE

o REZEHNTERA
o BUIBEE-BR MG
RABRERNE

BERA

Suppliers Focus Task

Force

HERE
Bra

Xi'an-

Strategic Management

Department
and

Brand Development

Center
ALZ-BEEEH

R
R T L

To pay attention to
product safety from
suppliers

To focus on the
procurement
procedures and the
practice in supplier
selection

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
suppliers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

MIftEEERL:
BI R
e ED

BREFRIFRIFNE
BNRVESR UM
SEMBE FENT
SELER

Customers Focus Task

Force

BF
mixha

Xi'an-

Member Service Center

and

Marketing Planning

Center

AR-g8RBEPL

ZHEEDL

To concern about
the customers’
service quality
expectations

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
customers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

To focus on
protecting our
customers’ rights
and interests; and
their privacy

MIBERBERR
e
HEERIBREFNER
MET B e &
ENBE HENTR
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Environment Focus
Task Force

BERE
mixa

Xi'an-

Human Resources &
Administration Center
and
Property Management
Center

AR = ANTTEP D
&
MEERDL

To cultivate a
corporate culture in
promoting energy
conservation, to
prevent pollution,
to reduce emissions
and to reduce
wastes

To pay attention to
the environmental
protection related
policies, measures
and effectiveness
(including setting
up of KPIs and
performance
evaluation)
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VISION OUTLOOK

As a good corporate citizen, the Group strives to strike
a balance between achieving the corporate economic
goals and business objectives, and to fulfill their
social responsibility. We will continue to evaluate our
performance in environmental protection, employee
care, merchandise/service quality and community
investment and to build edge for the sustainable
development of the Group.

The Group will endeavor to comply with the stringent
laws and regulations of environmental protection,
allocate resources to improve equipment and facilities
using natural resources, actively adopt different energy-
saving and emission-reduction measures, and set an
example, respond to the environmental protection
measures of local governments, and promote various
environmental protection activities in shopping malls,
shopping centers and supermarkets. We will also put
employee satisfaction and production safety as its top
priority. The Group aims at attracting more talents
through providing a safe workplace and competitive
remuneration scheme, hoping to provide employees
with career development platform, so that employees
can work proactively and enthusiastically, and realize
their self-worth in the home of “Century Ginwa “. As
for merchandise and service quality, we will continue
to invest resources for further enhancement of our
employees’ service quality, encouraging employees to
establish the concept of “caring about customers and
providing the ultimate consumer experience” to provide
better customer service and high quality merchandises
to our customers. We are also committed to fulfilling
our social responsibility by actively participating in
charitable activities and promoting the community’s
sustainable development.

The Group aims to become the first group army in the
commercial sector in Central and Western China and a
respectable retail enterprise. Going forward, the Group
serves to enhance its business performance through
implementation of sustainable development strategies
and to generate more meaningful long-term value for
the enterprise and its stakeholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

Xl. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA +— REZEREBE

SUMMARY
For the Nine
Months Ended For the
Unit 31 December Year Ended
By 20205 31 March 2020
S BE
—B-RHE —_T_FTHF
+=A=+—-B =A=+—H
Eh{@ER° HEE
Greenhouse gas (“GHG") Emissions:
BERE:
Scope 1"
gE-"
Total Tonnes 74.48 128.04
wnE [
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.31 0.54
BE W
Scope 22
gE—2
Total Tonnes 23,666.65 31,447.23
Hwe W
Intensity 3 Tonnes 99.55 132.89
®E? W
Air Emissions:
BRAHHE:
Nitrogen Oxides Kilograms 99.37 246.88
RAELD NI
Sulfur Oxides Kilograms 0.21 0.31
k=R 47 NIy
Particulate Matters Kilograms 5.56 13.87
BRY NIy
Non-hazardous Wastes
BEEEREY
Total Tonnes 68.51 100.53
mE W
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.29 0.42
BE: U
Packaging Materials Used for Merchandise:
BmAAEEME:
Total Tonnes 38.94 65.58
wE W
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.16 0.28
BE W

iy g B



116

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HEREBRKE

Xl. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY (continued)

Unit
B
Energy and Water Consumption:
RRERHEFEE:
Electricity:
Eh:
Total MWh
ne K LB
Intensity 3 MWh
B K ELES
Diesel:
L
Total Liters
HE nFH
Intensity 3 Liters
BE F
Gasoline:
PR
Total Liters
we NS
Intensity 3 Liters
e D
Natura gas:
RARR:
Total Cubic meters
Intensity 3 Cubic meters
BE3 K
Water:
KER:
Total Cubic meters
Intensity 3 Cubic meters
®E? K

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

For the Nine
Months Ended
31 December
2020°

BZE
—ECER
+=ZA=+—-H
IEh@EA®

25,851.60

108.74

7,739.62

32.55

3,968.28

16.69

19,884.00

83.64

175,618.36

738.70

- BERAERME ()

For the

Year Ended

31 March 2020
BE

=A=+—H
IEFE

34,350.62

145.16

11,409.00

48.21

8,815.00

37.25

39,606.00

167.36

271,879.67

1,148.88
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RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY (continued)
Notes: B E -

+— BEBRRRAME (£)

Scope 1 refers to the Group’s business direct GHG
emission, including combustion of diesel, gasoline and
natural gas.

Scope 2 refers to the Group's business indirect GHG
emissions, including consumption of purchased
electricity.

The above environmental performance data intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the
floor area of the shopping malls and offices. During
the reporting period, there were no expansions in
the shopping malls, supermarkets and offices nor the
relocation or demolition project related to the business.

During the reporting period, all shopping malls did not
carry out any renovation works, so no construction
waste was generated, and the non-hazardous waste
was the domestic waste produced by the employees of
all shopping malls and offices. Domestic waste data is
a multiple of average daily weight of waste produced
by each person and the number of employees at month
end.

As the Group has changed its financial year end date,
the environmental performance data in the current
period is from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020. In
order to enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance analysis
in this Report is made by comparing the current
period’s data with that of the same period in last year
(that is, from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019).

HE-RIEAFEXGEANEEEZE
FA KRR 0 E A 98 E SRR HEDL
BB Ul RAR AR -

BOE — B I5 A E B R AELEAE
B [ K 49 ) P 51 2 ey [ R 7% BE
TR B E BT

U EREXRBEIB N ZERIZE
55 R = B SEE 15 £90.001
FHORETAE  MRREHA
HEFIEEAES EYH L
BRTE RN ERGETEN
BN BT

RIBEHA EB5REETHE
EETE ARBEELTE
B3R AR E Y B A B R
REBTIHELMLZNIR £
I REIE R ILIEFN G TG
EEHENEEFRIAEAARL
BIA#GE-

ARAEEERTHRFEREE
H AFEZRBHEBOSH=
FoFEFMA—HE-E=-FF
+ZA=+—HWXE BTIE
= B F R B IR R BRI AL
1 23R & A BT 4 2 8] 4F 2 R
EESWYEHE FFEZRR (R
ZE-NFWA—HEZE=F—N
FHZA=1+—HB)EEEHLE

=A

i e

e EHERRERAT
—B-BEEH
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RE - #HEKRER

&

Xll. "ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND += ERABRESXZHERAT

GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY

HKEX

General Disclosure/
Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")
—BWE
BRENIEE

Aspect A1
EmEA1

General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI A1.1

BB 4B R IR AT

KPI'A1.2

BRAE IR IRAL.2

KPI'A1.3

BB 4B R IRAT3

KPI'A1.4

BB IR IRA1.4

LY

Reporting Guideline

mEES
A. Environmental
ABRE
Emissions
B

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

BRABERIORERBHN MKELHOE S AERES

BEEYMHELESTH:

(a) BUR K&

b) BEFTHETABEAZENHBEZRZLRONER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BERTE AR AR B B DB

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

&Zﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂ#ﬁﬁzg (REEEtE) R (ER)EZE (Mg E
S8 -BHERETE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FTEXEEREEYRSE (ABEE) R (WER)ZEE (1A
BESEN BEREFTE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FEABREEEYEE (ABGE) R (ER)EE (1A
BESEN BBERETE) -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020
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“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
HKEX (continued)

General Disclosure/

Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")
—RiEE
BERENER

KPI A1.5
BB IR IRALS
KPI A1.6

BB RIEIRAL6
Aspect A2
[EmA2

General Disclosure
—RRIRE

KPI A2.1

B 5 45 R 1R A2

KPI' A2.2

BB 4B AR IRA2.2

sl (&)

Reporting Guideline
HE¥EL

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

R E B R E S M PT IS AR

Description of how hazardous 1 and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

M EBREFNNEZTREEDN T E BREELENERK
FRIGRCR -

Use of Resources

&R A

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BIEEIR KM HEAD R F) B9

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.qg.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (MWh) and intensity 1 (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility)

REDLNESMEER SEEER(WE - f30h) BFEE
(ATFEFTERKAE) REE (MAGESEL - §IERMEG

) o
Ean

Water consumption in total and intensity 1 (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BEKERFE(NMUEBESEN BBEREFTE) °

tT= BEBEXZMERAA
B (RR - HERERERE

Page

HH
76 - 78
76 - 78
79 - 82
81 -82,
86 - 87,
115 -117
88 - 89,
115 -117

HESHEHEERERLA

—B-BEEH
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XIl. “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
HKEX (continued)

General Disclosure/

tT= BEBEXZHMERAA
B (RIE - HERERBRE
sl (&)

120

Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs") Reporting Guideline Page

—REE

BRENER &1 5l BE¥™

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 82 — 87
achieved.

R B BUEIRA2.3 it gE R E R YT 8 RFTEAR -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 88 — 89
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

BB BIEIRA2.4 SR EGE A OR R A E A ERE - A KR T /K a5t &l
KNEFEHR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for merchandise (in tonnes) 90 - 92,
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced 1. 115 -117

B4 IR A2.5 FmAAeEMEnNEE (UEAE) R (NER) BEEE
HHE-

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

[EmA3 RERRXAEIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the 93 -94
environment and natural resources

—RRIRE BEZBTAHREBERRABEREKERNZENBE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 93 -94

B 5 45 R 1R A3

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HAEBERHHRRERARAAERNEAFEREENER
BT ENTE -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY

HKEX (continued)

General Disclosure

—RKE

Aspect B1

BT B1
General Disclosure
Information on:

— R E

Aspect B2
[ B2

General Disclosure
Information on:

— R E

Aspect B3
[EmB3

General Disclosure

—RKE

BB -#HE8K

sl (&)

Reporting Guideline

# & 15 5l
B.Social 2
B.i &2
Employment and Labor Practices
=&

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

BRHM L E HRERES TESS - RE TSk

Z At RIBRAR A M A 17 58 M AT Y

(a) BUR K&

(b) BTFTHETABERTENEAEZZLBRONEHR -

Health and Safety

REEZER

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

ERREZ2TERRERREEEHABRELEFN:

(@) BUR : &2

(b) BEFTHETABEAZENHBEZRZLRONER -

Development and Training

B R R A%

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRI EERIT TERE A E R KRR BUR - it 153
EE

BERRE

tT= BEBBSXSZMARLH
B (RR HERERRS

Page
B

94 - 97

99 - 101

98

HESHEHEERERLA

—B-BEEH
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RE - #HEKRER

Xil.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND +=
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
HKEX (continued)

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Aspect B4
[E B4

General Disclosure

Information on:

— R

Aspect B5
B EBS

General Disclosure
—MREE
Aspect B6

[ 1 B6

General Disclosure

—RKE

Aspect B7
B B7

General Disclosure

— R E

&

sl (&)

Reporting Guideline
HEES

Labor Standards

o -]

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labor.

BREAP IEZE Tk oR 45 TH

(a) B &

(b) BFHETABERZENHBEZ LRI ER -

Supply Chain Management

s s R

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

EEMHEENRE N GRERBUR -

Product and Service Responsibility

BmAMREEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

B BA P HR {7 o A0 AR 755 B0 4 R R

B AR RTT A

(@) BUR : &

(b) BFHETABERTENEAEZRROINER -

ZE2 BE RELLEF

Anti-corruption

RES

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI IR - $h&= - BGF RS BER

(@) B : 2

(b) BTHETABERZENRBARERAOINER -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
HKEX (continued)

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Aspect B8
[EmE B8

General Disclosure

RR HEREBRE

tT= BEBEXZMAERAA
B (RIR -HERERRE
sl (&

Reporting Guideline Page
& 15 5l B
Community Investment

HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the 110

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

—MRIKE BNt R2EXREREEMELETENBRLERSE
PEeERLRMEHBR -

Notes: HfaE -

! The Group’s main business is operating department 1 REF T ELEKBRETER
stores, shopping centers and supermarkets. We did not L EEY R R TTE A
generate any hazardous wastes. RBEEE I EEEY-

2 Pursuant to Appendix 27 to the “Main Board 2 R (E#IR FTT R HisE27

Listing Rules”,

the KPIs under Area B “Social” are
recommended disclosures only. Therefore, the Group
chose not to disclose those KPIs in this report.

BH [ FEZHEBAE | BERE
MIEFER B3 KB At
REERIFETIFEZFORAL

HEIR

e EHERRERAT
—B-BEEH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BR RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 133 to
268, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the nine month period then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
nine month period then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

R

RREZEE(F)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

BEREBFEERENGE

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(e)

and (i)

AR E M BHRERN 14K 15U KM a2(e) R ()6 &
The Key Audit Matter

HAREREE

As at 31 December 2020, goodwill and intangible
assets, which arose from business acquisitions of
department store and supermarket operations in prior
years, amounted to RMB281.8 million and accounted
for approximately 4.0% of the Group’s total assets at
that date. Impairment losses on goodwill and intangible
assets of RMB365.9 million were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the nine
months ended 31 December 2020 (year ended 31 March
2020: RMB470.6 million).
RZZBE_ZF+_A=+—H BAEKEFEE (KB
TFEEHETAE ﬁ%&t@m%%%Z%%W%ﬁ%
H)EARY281,800,000T hZE BEEEHNBAEE
#4.0% REBE_T_TEF+_A=+—RHIEAERZ
FEERRNCHERABERBLEEZREBRARE
365,900,000t (BE—_ZT-_TF=-A=1+—RALLFE:
AR ¥ 470,600,0007T) °

The financial performance of the Group’s department
store and supermarket operations, as a consequence
of a slow-down in economic growth in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), as well as intense
competition from surrounding shopping malls and
online retail sales, has underperformed management'’s
expectations when these businesses were acquired,
which has increased the risk that goodwill and
intangible assets related to these business acquisitions
may be impaired.

HRPEARAMNBE ([HE])QEERBENIKEE
BREYHLEG ITENHRFENE . EXEEBEERS
&t%&m%%i‘xﬁ’],ﬁﬁxi‘%fﬁﬁﬁégﬁH&E%EZSI%%HW
MR- EMTERBBZSEEENREREREERN
EENERER N o

AT

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERPNAEEEREE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets included the
following:

BT AEE B EERENEZEF BN
TRIE:

assessing and challenging the Group's
identification of cash-generating units
("CGUs") and the allocation of goodwill,
intangible assets and other assets to those
CGUs;

FERER BESEHReE4ABEM([HR
CELBMNBIRAZEReELE
omE BREERAMEE:

assessing the reliability of management’s
cash flow forecasting process by comparing
the previous year's forecasts with the
current period’s results, discussing
significant variances with management and
considering the effect of such variances on
the current period’s forecasts and if there
was any indication of management bias;
FiEts F—FRENTRREEHEELE
HEEERSREABENT ST BEE
BamEARE  WEREZRELHE AR
IRERBEREEERRATR:

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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M % BT 3R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

REERER (F)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

BEREFEERENE (&)

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(e)

and (i).

iE 2R E I TS IRER M T 1415 R 3T2(e) % ()6 & &t B 5

The Key Audit Matter
HRELREE

Management performs impairment assessments of the
relevant CGUs to which goodwill and intangible assets
have been allocated at the end of each reporting period.
Management compares the carrying amount of each
CGU with its recoverable amount, which is determined
by assessing the value-in-use based on discounted cash
flow forecasts.
EREERNSREPREESKHELBLEENHA
ReELEMETREN G - ERERSReELEN
WEREEEA KOS FELLE  AJRE &5 ERBER
BRMRERE BRI (EERBEEMER

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in forecasting revenue growth
and operating profit and in determining appropriate
discount rates.

BB IR 2 RIBBS R E ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%%*tﬁ%
FETRORI Mo 25 38 = I 48 2 0 T A I B TE B B O B 3R KB o

We identified the assessment of impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets as a key audit matter because the
carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets are
material to the consolidated financial statements, and
also because management’s forecasts of the future cash
flows involve certain critical judgements in respect of the
assumptions made, which are inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.
BPRABEREVEERENTGE —HEREZS
B RASHEMELEENROEHGSWBEHRKEB
BEX HEBEHARKRRS RIS LB BATELRR
BWE TR MZEAGLAE ER TR - A5
RIEEERRIOZE -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERPNAEESRSE

o involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating management’s
valuation methodology and assessing the
discount rate applied by comparison with
the discount rates for similar companies in
the same industry;

e ZHEFMHOAREEERHHHEMTHE
BEMNMERE  RASESBLEERRATERM
DRI REER - G PTER AR A BE IR K

o obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis
and challenging the key assumptions to
which the outcome of the impairment
assessments was most sensitive, including
forecast revenue and forecast profit
margins, and considering if there was
any indication of management bias in the
selection of these assumptions; and

. Z%HX%EEE’JSSZ‘ B ot EERER G4

RPN ERRE (BEFER K KT
ﬂﬂT) EReRAENRRBETRNEEREE
EEEZEREFFEEEERRE &

o considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in
respect of the impairment assessments and
assessing the adequacy of the disclosures
against prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BR RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) HAEEZEE (&)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment property

FEBAZIHREFURREYERME
Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(g)
and (h)

ERRE A BREMNE12R 13U R K ZF2(9) kA2
The Key Audit Matter

BERERSEE

D7L/B(§§ e
How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERPNAEEEREE

The Group is engaged in the operation of department
stores, a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC.
EEBTENFETELLAERS BYTLLBR
M5 e

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
leasehold land and buildings held for own use
and investment property included the following:
BMFEARBIEER T RIEFUARRE YR
BENBEZREFEEATSE:

The Group’s land and buildings held for own use and
investment property are revalued at the end of each e
reporting period and are stated at their fair values.
EEERFERAZ I RBTFURRENERN S REH
REM - BEAABAR-

assessing the external property valuer's
qualifications, expertise and experience and
considering the external property valuer’s
objectivity and independence;

o  FHEINBMEMLEMNER BREER-
As at 31 December 2020, land and buildings held for I Z e H B8 R
own use and an investment property with aggregate

fair value of RMB4,109.3 million accounted for e assessing whether the properties held by

approximately 58.0% of the Group’s total assets at
that date. No valuation adjustment on an investment
property and surplus on revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use of RMB42.7 million were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the nine
months ended 31 December 2020 (year ended 31 March
2020: valuation loss of RMB28.7 million and surplus on
revaluation of land and buildings held for own use of
RMB11.6 million).

NR_Z_FTFFT_A=1+T—RH #B2ARBERARYE
4nw3mpWEM%¢§%ziﬁ&@?%&&ﬁ%%
HZBEEEBHEEENS80% BE_Z_ZTF+_H
=+t—BIEAMER BERGEERREMEEKAR
BRAREMELERABRFEER 2 LM REF &G
B ARMA2,700,000C (BRE-F-_FF=A=1—
BIEFE : (A{EE1E AR #28,700,000T R FEE A+
wREFzEHBHARK11,600,0007T) -

the Group were valued on a consistent
basis using a consistent methodology by
inquiry of management and the external
property valuer and assessing whether
the valuation methodology is appropriate
with reference to the prevailing accounting
standards;

A R E IR FE K SN ER W) 5 ik {E R o R AT
1 E\xlﬁfﬁﬁ%%% TR —BEERA
%%Tﬁﬁﬁg%fﬁﬁ 2 ERIFH R RES
EEBE

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L

127



128

Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BR RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

REERER (F)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment property (continued)

BFEBAZtHREFURREMEGLGE (&)

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(g)

and (h).

BRI B IREN T 12213 RIT3E2(9) R (h)E & ETEE ©

The Key Audit Matter
HRELREE

The fair values of land and buildings held for own use
and the investment property were assessed by the board
of directors based on independent valuations prepared
by an external property valuer using certain estimates,
which included comparable market prices.

FIEERZ LM REFURREMENAARBIIRAES
SERINBYREEMERE TE (BREATELERD
5ER) REG B L E M-

We identified the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment property as a key audit
matter because of the significance of their value to the
Group’s total assets and also because determining their
fair values involves a significant degree of judgement.
BHARRFHIEEBRAZ L REFURKREMENEER
—HAREZEE RARHEEY E5EEEER
BEX BEFTEAAEYREKXNEE R HE-

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERPNAEESRSE

involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in assessing the valuations
prepared by the external property valuer
by evaluating the valuation methodology
adopted and comparing the valuations with
recent sales transactions of properties of
the same type and in the similar location as
the Group’s properties which were subject
to valuation; and

2 BEFR P80 N BR A (5 B K 15 B 3 AP & (il o
B (L ERD AR eV (& - AT PTER A BV 1
BERE LEAER EXEEMEEVENR
B R E AR MENTRHEERS &

considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment property.
ERGEMBHRERTEBFEEER 2L
MBFUARREYEMEENIKEE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

R
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B % BR RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Tsz Chung.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2021

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB "))

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

meEBamK
For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA
(UANRB([ARK])Z2)

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BHE =
—EEHF ZEETF
+=B=+—H =A=+—H
IENE A IEEEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aF AR¥ Tt ARBF T
Revenue &= 4 397,021 642,012
Other net income H b U A 5 12,164 10,629
Cost of goods sold B miHE KA 19 (161,264) (252,183)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges 8 & K& £ 1th £5 38 & M hn#x (15,334) (19,810)
Staff costs 8 TR A 6(b) (76,552) (125,151)
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 (116,028) (165,095)
Utilities expenses NEEFERE (21,490) (34,032)
Advertisement expenses EERX (8,048) (6,361)
Expected credit losses on trade and & U B R % H th & Uk 5K 78 HA
other receivables =EEE (4,905) (604,716)
Impairment losses on goodwill and FEE&EFEEREEIR
intangible assets 15 (365,855) (470,605)
Other operating expenses Hih &S 6(c) (242,701) (143,978)
Loss from operations KEEIR (602,992) (1,169,290)
Valuation loss on an investment KEYEMEEIE
property 13 - (28,700)
Net finance costs B E R R 6(a) (115,798) (118,509)
Loss before taxation BREAIEE 6 (718,790) (1,316,499)
Income tax Frig i 7 53,611 3,909
Loss for the period/year B EREE (665,179) (1,312,590)
Attributable to: HUTALEMN:
Equity shareholders ZIN/NGI g5
of the Company (635,095) (1,279,095)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R = (30,084) (33,495)
Loss for the period/year B EREE (665,179) (1,312,590)
Loss per share BREE
Basic (RMB) ER(AR®T) 11 (0.273) (0.550)
Diluted (RMB) s (AR%T) 11 (0.273) (0.550)

The notes on pages 143 to 268 form part of these financial

statements.

S£143%268 A 2 M HAEKZE VB MK
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZE-—ZFTF+ - HA=+—HIF"EA
(Expressed in RMB) (XA R Z31)

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
Bz BE
—E-RF _—T_FTF
+=A=+-B =A=+-8
WEHh@EA IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ft &+ AR¥FT ARKTFT
Loss for the period/year HR FREER (665,179) (1,312,590)
Other comprehensive income iR "FRE M2 EH WG
for the period/year (after (RNKRHBREREHSE
tax and reclassification WE) .
adjustments):
Items that will not be reclassified BAEEHHEEEFZZIEE :
to profit or loss:
— Surplus on revaluation of -~-ERFEERZ DM RIEF
land and buildings held for AR
own use 10 16,988 9,365
— Equity investments at B AREEBEEEA
fair value through other Eﬁﬂiﬁﬂ& S RIS E —
comprehensive income - R ERE (T 8E) &
net movement in fair value Ejﬁ%’r%ﬁi
reserve (non-recycling) 10 (37,973) (59,667)
(20,985) (50,302)
ltem that may be reclassified iR EN Y EEERCIEE
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences -BREREINER CEREZHE
on translation into
presentation currency 10 15,026 (17,192)
15,026 (17,192)
Other comprehensive income HiR "FRE M2 EH WG
for the period/year (5,959) (67,494)
Total comprehensive income for $iA "ER 2 EWH L5
the period/year (671,138) (1,380,084)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEeEBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E-—ZFF+_-A=1+—HIFL1AA

(Expressed in RMB)  (UAARKEZ7)
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZE HZE
—EZEHF —E-TF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
1IEA{E A EFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Attributable to: HUTALERN:
Equity shareholders 2NN
of the Company (634,933) (1,336,970)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR RE S (36,205) (43,114)
Total comprehensive income B FRE2EAKEEAE
for the period/year (671,138) (1,380,084)

The notes on pages 143 to 268 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BN E
At 31 December 2020 R=-—ZF=-ZFF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in RMB) (XA R#Z231)

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-ZZE-BF RZT_ZTF
+t=A=t-A =A=+-*°
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt aE AR¥ Tt ARBF T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y S KR 12 2,998,451 3,053,173
Investment property LE Y 13 1,265,300 1,265,300
Intangible assets mEEE 14 209,646 424,812
Goodwill EE= 15 72,129 222,818
Prepayments for acquisition of WENEREREE L
properties and intangible assets AT RIE 17 1,655,682 1,485,125
Other financial assets Himer&E 18 182,007 182,400
Interests in joint ventures NEBLHEREZS = 1
Deferred tax assets RAEFRIAE 27(b) 13,976 35,990
6,397,191 6,669,619
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 19 34,516 27,562
Trade and other receivables JE LS AR R % L b FE W 5K 20 259,235 193,197
Cash at bank and on hand RITERFLEFERS 21 393,556 500,806
687,307 721,565
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JF& 1T BR 3R % EL b JE 15 3K 22 812,122 1,037,827
Contract liabilities ARARE 23 101,893 84,500
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 24(a) 1,766,455 1,465,886
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 16,864 23,198
Income tax payable B FTiS %% 27(a) 36,632 34,337
2,733,966 2,645,748
Net current liabilities REBEEFEHE (2,046,659) (1,924,183)
Total assets less current HEEBRRBES
liabilities 4,350,532 4,745,436

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

meEBMBERRER
At 31 December 2020 R=-ZFE-—ZTF+=-H=+—H
(Expressed in RMB) (LA R Z7)

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

R-IEBEZEF RZZT-ZTF
+=HA=+—H8H =ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ff i AR¥Frx AR%Fr

Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Long-term provisions RHABE 20(c) 288,593 94,046

Bank and other borrowings RITREHMEE 24(b) 1,349,000 1,241,517

Lease liabilities HEBE 25 64,078 61,911

Deferred tax liabilities BRI E 27(b) 610,889 639,244

2,312,560 2,036,718

NET ASSETS BEEFHE 2,037,972 2,708,718
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R R #HE 28

Share capital fi& 7R 199,369 199,369

Reserves 1 1,787,968 2,422,509
Total equity attributable to ARRRRELER A

equity shareholders of the

Company 1,987,337 2,621,878
Non-controlling interests FERER 50,635 86,840
TOTAL EQUITY ERAEE 2,037,972 2,708,718

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEEFEN T —F=A=1THHENR

30 March 2021. R
Huang Shunxu Qin Chuan
EIE#E =]l
Chairman Director
FE 2

The notes on pages 143 to 268 form part of these financial F1432268H 2 M st TH K Z 5 I 15 3R R
statements. Z EB 1 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERERBHR

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - ZE -ZTF+ _-A=+—HIF @A
(Expressed in RMB) (XA R Z31)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RARRRESR
Share held Retained
under share Property  Fair value profits / Non-
Share Share award Capital  Contributed ~ revaluation reserve (non-  Statutory  Exchange (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserve surplus reserve  recycling) Teserves reserve losses) Total  interests equity
RERH nF RERE REEF/
RE RhEE 2B AARGE  SARR  EREE (FWHE) AeRE  EXRG (ZEE &t FBRER  BRER
RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBO0O  RMBUOO  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBOO  ARMB0O0  RMB000  RMB000  RMBUOO  RMBO00  RMB000
ARETT ARBFT ARBTT ARETL AREFL ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
20)  2280)  280)i) 280 28(v)  28))  28(dlu)  28(a)i)  28(a)vi)
(Wi (it (Wit i3 (W (W (W (W (W&
20) 200)  2800)  28@00)  2800)  200)  2800W)  280W)  280i)
Balance at31 March 2019 R=F-AE
ZA=t-BE&8 199369 1,136,595 2.922) (36,393) 995255 1,144,136 (60,571) 129,585 113,092 340,125 3958271 129954 4,088,225
Changes in equity for the
year: rEEREES:
Loss for the year AERER = = = = = = - - - (1279095 (1,279,095 (33495 (1,312,590)
Other comprehensive income - {6 2 & - - - - - 9365 (50,048) - (1119 - (57879 (9619 (67494)
Total comprehensive income
for the year rEF2ANEEE = = - - - 9,365 (50,048) - (17190 (1279,09) (1,336970)  (43,114) (1,380,084)
Equity settled share-based ~ EIREZELARE
transactions Tfiz%5 - - - 577 - - - - - - 577 - 577
Transfer between reserves i fBRER - - - (36,59) - - - - - 36,598 - - -
- - - (36,021) = = = = - 36,598 577 - 577
Balance at 31 March 2020 R=F=%%
ZB=t-R&# 199,369 1,136,595 2,922) (72414) 995,255 1,153,501 (110,619) 129,585 95900 (902,372) 2,621,878 86,840 2,708,718

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREa® X

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA
(Expressed in RMB) (LU A R Z27)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARERFER
Share held Fair value
under share Property reserve Non-
Share Share award Capital Contributed revaluation (non-  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  scheme reserve surplus ~ reserve  recycling)  reserves  reserve [osses Total interests equity
RERS nE DMRERE

ka  RBEE REHE  EARE  AARR  ERRE (FUHE)  iRRE  EXRE  RiER Bt FEREE ERER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AEBFR ARETT AREFr ARETR ARETT ARETRZ ARETT AREFr ARETT AREFr ARETR ARETT AREFR

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

26(0) 200)  28)i)  28)i) 280 28)) 280 280dii)  28(d)vii)

280)  2800)  280i)

[ ne
(Wit it

200)  2800)  2000)  280)  280Wi))

Balanceat 31 March 2020 R=2=%%
=B=1-R&k 199,369 1,136,595 (2922) (72,414) 995255 1,153,501 (110,619) 129,585 95,900 (902,372) 2,621,878 86,840 2,708,718

Changes in equity for the  AHEEREE:

period:
Loss for the period HREE - - - - = = = = - (635095 (635095  (30,084)  (665,179)
Other comprehensive income £t 2E iz - - - - - 16,988 (31,852) - 15,026 - 162 (6,121) (5,959)

Total comprehensive income A2 A4S
for the period - - - - - 16,988 (31,852) - 15026 (635095  (634,933) (36205  (671,138)

Termination of share award

scheme (see Note 26(3)) - - 2922 (2,530) - - - - - - 392 - 392
Balance at 31 December ~ R=Z=%%
2020 +=R=t-R

33 199,369 1,136,595 - (74,944) 995255 1,170,489  (142471) 129,585 110,926  (1,537,467) 1,987,337 50,635 2,037,972

The notes on pages 143 to 268 form part of these financial 5514352685 Mt 5t Ty X S I SR &K
statements. = 3 v
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B of L

139



140

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA

(Expressed in RMB) (XA R Z31)

Nine months

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZE HE
—EEF —E-ETF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
L@ A EFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt it AR¥Frx ARBFT
Operating activities REED
Loss before taxation x5 B S 18 (718,790) (1,316,499)
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 116,028 165,095
Expected credit losses on trade P UK B 35K R L At B R
and other receivables FEHEEEE 4,905 604,716
Impairment losses on goodwill HEKEFEEREREIR
and intangible assets 15 365,855 470,605
Net loss on disposal of property, BEMHE WERFZEZE
plant and equipment B 6(c) 3,198 403
Valuation loss on an wEYMEMEEE
investment property 13 - 28,700
Interest income B U A 5 (11,264) (5,795)
Dividend income A% B U A 5 (900) (1,200)
Net finance costs B E R FRE 6(a) 115,798 118,509
Net income on a financial BEEITERMERZFHRA
guarantee issued 5 - (1,415)
Equity settled share-based BRREEEANRG N2
payment expenses RIER X — 577
Changes in working capital: LELESH
(Increase)/decrease FE (#Em),md
in inventories (6,954) 14,261
Increase in trade and JFE W AR X R E b FE R SR 2
other receivables 0 (170,763) (242,602)
Decease/(increase) in restricted ZRIBITRERD
cash at bank (1 n) 26,292 (27,827)
Decrease in trade and FERTBR R R E M BN K2
other payables Rk A (177,377) (81,592)
Increase in contract liabilities AREE 2 17,393 35,591
Increase in long-term provisions R AR 2 38 AN 194,547 94,046
Net cash used in operations REXBFIARS TR (242,032) (144,427)
Income tax refunded/(paid) 2iRE S (B8)REH 27(a) 610 (5,861)
Net cash used in operating RETHAARSFRE
activities (241,422) (150,288)




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEBRERER
For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E_-_ZF+_-_HA=+—HILNEA
(Expressed in RMB) (LU A R Z27)

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

Bz HZE

—EF —ETHF

+=B=+—-H =A=+—H

1@ B WFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

Ff it AR®FRT ARETRT

Investing activities REEH
Payments for the purchase of BEME BERRBENK

property, plant and equipment (3,155) (2,023)
Proceeds from disposal of property, B & %%  B=E MREZFTE

plant and equipment KA 471 17,043
Repayment of loan receivables from [EWE=HEZER

third parties - 21,900
Payments for loan receivables to HEKRERME=FHRK

third parties - (104,300)
Payments for the purchase of other BB E HE & @& E 2 F K

financial assets (14,307) -
Interests received B U F & 11,264 5,795
Dividends received from investments {tHE & gl & EIRE P IESHD

in other financial assets Bz 2 900 1,200
Net cash used in investing RETEFFARSFE

activities (4,827) (60,385)
Financing activities REEE
Capital element of lease rentals ENEEZERES

paid 21(b) (21,644) (23,571)
Interest element of lease rentals ENEE2HEHD

paid 21(b) (4,098) (6,503)
Proceeds from new bank loans LR ITE KIS FIE 21(b) 717,984 698,000
Proceeds from new other 738 E th (& B P 1S 38

borrowings 21(b) 1,640,000 87,172
Proceeds from termination of share #X 1EA% 1D 2B 5tE 2 Fri5 738

award scheme 392 -
Repayment of bank loans EERITERK 21(b) (1,645,862) (377,466)
Repayment of other borrowings EREMES 21(b) (288,951) (79,700)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZRIR{TIHERM L~ (18 h0)

at bank 21(a) 160,193 (156,010)
Other finance costs paid H 2 & & BN 21(b) (232,148) (159,009)

Net cash generated from/(used ®EFEEHFE, (FFH)
in) financing activities e FEE 325,866 (17,087)

sesrpaeie 14



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mMEBRERER
For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZ T -—ZFF+ - H=+—HIF 1A
(Expressed in RMB) (XA R Z31)

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020

BZE HE

—EEF —E-ETF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H

1IE N @ A HFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt it AR¥Frx ARMTFIT

Net increase/(decrease) in cash HEPRESEHEER 2 FIE
and cash equivalents mn,/ CGEa) 79,617 (227,760)

Cash and cash equivalents at the %] £ RERBREEE
beginning of the period/year HE 21(a) 25,731 253,452

Effect of foreign exchange rate NS HBRBE 2 &
changes (382) 39

Cash and cash equivalents atthe HiX FRBEERKRESE
end of the period/year = 21(a) 104,966 25,731

The notes on pages 143 to 268 form part of these financial F143582688 2 MIsE VA % Z I E %
statements. Z A °

1 42 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the nine months ended 31 December 2020
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The principal activities of
the Group are the operation of department stores, a
shopping mall and supermarkets in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

On 1 December 2019, Maritime Century Limited (“MCL",
the then substantial shareholder of the Company, and a
company wholly-owned by Ginwa Investments Holding
Group Limited (“Ginwa Investments”), which in turn is
owned as to 96% by Mr. Wu Yijian), Ginwa Investments
and Mr. Wu Yijian entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “SPA”) with Xi'an Qujiang Cultural
Financial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Qujiang Financial
Holdings”) and Quijiang Cultural Financial International
Investment Limited (“Qujiang Investment “, and together
with Qujiang Financial Holdings, the “Purchasers”),
pursuant to which MCL agreed to dispose of, and the
Purchasers agreed to purchase, 336,166,156 ordinary
shares in the Company each with a nominal value of
HK$0.10 (the “Sale Shares”) at a consideration of
HK$0.2123 per Sale Share, equivalent to an aggregate
consideration of HK$71,368,075. On 5 June 2020, all the
conditions precedent in the SPA were satisfied or waived,
and the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares under the
SPA was completed (the “Completion”). Following the
Completion, Quijiang Investment became a substantial
shareholder of the Company, holding 29.24% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company.

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

ARIER
HLESEHEZERERAR (AR
AR _ZEEZFNANBREER
E—NWN—FRRVERBREFMK
VAERGERAG - AQEZKH
R_ZEETF+A-_+=HEEES
BBMAERZEFIER AR ([BRZFT])
tH-ARREBEE=E—_ZF_FF+_A
=t+t—HIENERZGZETBRERE
BARBIREMBAR (HHIAE
) AEBZEFEXEKANFEA
RN ([FE])&EFERES B
Y0 R BRI o

RZZE—A%E+=F—H  Maritime
Century Limited ([MCL] - XA RE
KX ERRERABHSEREZER
SBRER T ([ERE]Z2EH
B2 e SERERR —BELER
W% ER) SHERERR —BE
FHATHI e RIER(EE)
ERAT ([T 2mm]) RihiT
XitermBERIREER QA ([#)T
RE] EHISRMIZERGEBAIE
FIIVEEHZ([EEWHZE]) -
BUEMCLRELE EFREEE
336,166,156/ T X E1E0.10/8 7T 2
RAREBERRG (THEERSD]) K
BEABREERD021238B L  HE
REBEREAET71,368,0758B L - N —F
—EFXARB BEEMREZIFEL
TR EEN SRR MEE W&
BHTZHERNDZEEE T (5T
K1) o SERRE IR EEKALRR
AZEEBRR FHEARADEITE
B 229.24% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the board of
directors of the Company dated 3 September
2020, the Company’s financial year end date has
been changed from 31 March to 31 December.
Accordingly, the current financial period will cover
a period of nine months from 1 April 2020 to 31
December 2020. The comparative figures (which
cover the financial year from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2020) for the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement and related
notes are not comparable with those of the current
period.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

F+-A=+—HILNEA

2

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

B REREH

(a)

(b)

peRE -2l
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—BRE—E_TBE=A=1+—
BlE2 B BEE) BAREE 2 %
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 B BE®F (£)
(continued)

(b) MBHEREREE (&)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for investments in equity securities (see Note
2(f)), land and buildings held for own use (see Note
2(g)) and investment property (see Note 2(h)) which
are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

FRIRAEZI 2 REEFRE
(RM&E20H)) HIEERZ L
kEF (RME29)) RIREDY
% (RMaE2(h)) oh - ZER TR
R B R DA SE B ANE BT E
H%o

EEEFTERETEBTBYBR
SRR BRRRELER
ZRTBRER UNEE &
B WARSTHZRESEZH
B~ fhET R RER L F A ET AR
FARRERBEAELBMEEE
AEERBEARRAELZZIEE
EREL  EEARBREERE
BEEAKBRBEEERSH
BEEHERE 2 REERTELDH
B < E7E - BIR AR ATRER AR
CRE:SEE

e

B E & MR S B AR
BAMR SR o B Sl 2 E3TR
PER NN EYEFEEER
HRINEER - RN RS T E
MARKEBAR A Z - BIFE/EL
15372 SRR R R AR RER -

EREEETERAEEMBRE
ERIRFELHMBEHRREEXN
TR A AR TREEE
2 E B HRRE M FES
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % —
(BRIFFSFHIEH  BHIUAAREZ2)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

= — =

statements (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB2,046,659,000 and
incurred net loss of RMB665,179,000 and
had net cash used in operating activities of
RMB241,422,000 during the nine months ended
31 December 2020. However, the directors of
the Company do not consider that material
uncertainties related to events or conditions
exist which, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. This is because:

—  the Group has obtained a financial support
letter from Qujiang Financial Holdings (the
controlling shareholder of Qujiang Investment),
a state-owned enterprise, who has agreed to
provide indefinite loan facility of RMB2 billion
to the Group and provide guarantees for the
loan facilities from banks or any other financial
institutions. Also, Qujiang Financial Holdings
has agreed to extend its short-term loans
granted to the Group of RMB690,000,000 (see
Notes 24(a) and 32(a)) when they fall due;

—  the Group has obtained a long-term loan from
a bank of RMB700,000,000 after the end of
the reporting period;

- based on a cash flow forecast of the Group
for the twelve months ending 31 December
2021 prepared by the management, the
Group would have adequate funds to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
Group's financial statements for the nine months
ended 31 December 2020 on a going concern basis.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a
Business

° Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current period have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

2 EIBXRE® (&)

(c)

(d)

SBEE2E

B A G 2 %5
BHRREA T BASHIAE
Wil 2 BT R R 2 58]
7K

o FBRUBMEEREIRZ
CHENES P&

o EBEMBHEERFE 165
ZAEFT R [COVID-194H 8
Giske Ay A

ZERRLEHAHEAEEZ
XENWBIRRA L mBKEINE
HEXFE - AKBYEERAR
2 ATE R AR 1 R A R A (R
ERg g

MEARRFEZRER

(RIZNCIVEVN-SE et ol
MASBEEE2RERERNZ
A AEZANEEMRIERE
ERENRERIENTEZS
Bl MAKEHZERERE
Bl ERAARER T R E
N Ee@ER (ARELEM
TRRE)BEEEEN -

RITBRRNREN RS MR
KRR HIFA G B 2R i
BIARERE - SEANEER X
FEBEERENREBARFE
ERERARBER GN N REAR A
MBHREF2HHIR - REAR
ZEBNARERERIABRNAK
BHRWE 2 EHER  BRER
ERERR T

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L

147



148

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those equity interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those equity
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the period
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’'s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &%=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

;:\E

7—7

(BrIF=B1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

()

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
period, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Investments in equity securities

The Group’'s policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
for which transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f) Investments in equity securities (continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see Note

2(u)(vi)).

—  fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) (recycling), if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

—  FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Investments in equity securities (continued)

(ii) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(u)(v).

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at

the date of the revaluation less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 B BE®F (£)
(continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (9) WE - BERRE(E)

Changes arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
property revaluation reserve to retained profits and
is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual values, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

2

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

SR EEREH (&)

(9)

¥ BERRE (E)
WEIRYE  BEMEEERE
2 PR B Ak (B B 1 At R R (E
B NEGHERAFHRAER
EMEEIT

Estimated
useful lives
Rt ERAFH
Land and buildings held for own use carried at fair value 20 — 50 years
NAREIRZFHIEEBR L RET 20E50%F
Residential properties held for own use carried at cost and leasehold
improvements 3 — 35 years
RN ZFHIEEREEMERBEMEERE 3E354F
Properties leased for own use 1-12 years
BEREEmE 18129
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 — 28 years
BRI KE KRB 3E284F
Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years
EHTH 3E 104

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

()

()]

Investment property (continued)

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(u)(iii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(k)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZZ-Z_-Z&

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

(BrIF=B1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily office furniture. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 2(g) and 2(k)(iii)), except for
the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value
in accordance with Note 2(h);

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 epidemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16, Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of
the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the
lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(u)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)
(ii) As a lessor (continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in Note
2(j)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
item:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables);

- financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at
FVPL and equity securities designated at
FVOCI (non-recycling) are not subject to
the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &%=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2
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(BrIF=B1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

- variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor's ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 2(u)(vi) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Werite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 B BE®F (£)
(continued)
(k) EEFERSERNE (&)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) ERHMBERZIEERS

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees

issued (continued)

Financial guarantees issued are initially
recognised within “trade and other payables”
at fair value, which is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would
have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount
initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and
recognises a provision when ECLs on the
financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in “trade and
other payables” in respect of the guarantees
(i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued (continued)

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the specified
debtor since the issuance of the guarantee. A
12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued,
in which case a lifetime ECL is measured.
The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk
as described in Note 2(k)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the specified
debtor in accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amount that the Group expects
to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The
amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each end of reporting period
to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than land and
buildings held for own use stated at
revalued amounts);

—  intangible assets;

- goodwill;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of properties; and

investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the period in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

V)

(continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(k)(i) and 2(k)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the end of the
reporting period or to management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

V)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for credit losses (see Note 2(k)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note
2(w)).

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2(k)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments
—  Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted
to employees and service providers
is recognised as an employee cost or
operating expense with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Black-Scholes Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Share award scheme

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from open
market. The net consideration paid,
including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share award scheme (continued)

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares on grant date
plus any directly attributable incremental
costs. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares, the
total fair value of the shares is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(h), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &%=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

;:\E

7—7

(BrIF=B1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue

excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods and net income from
concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales
are recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the goods. No
revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the
possible return of goods, or continuing
management involvement with the goods.
Payments received in advance from customers
that are related to sales of goods not yet
delivered are deferred in contract liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Revenue is recognised when goods
are delivered to the customers. After expiry of
prepaid stored value cards, the corresponding
receipts in advance are normally recognised
as income based on the Group's previous
experience in forfeiture of prepaid stored value
cards by customers.

Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation
of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets is recognised when the related
services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group’s customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle the
customers to the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme and gives rise to a separate
performance obligation. The Group allocated
a portion of the transaction price to the
customer loyalty programme based on relative
standalone selling price. Such amount is
deferred and revenue is recognised when the
programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(v)

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(k)(i)).

(vii) Income from financial guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees issued is
recognised over the term of the guarantees
(see Note 2(k)(ii)).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &%=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(BrIF=B1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Related parties (continued)
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate

of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi)j The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’s revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgement:

Classification of interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use

In accordance with HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment, the Group chooses to apply either the cost
model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy
for items of property, plant and equipment held for
own use on a class-by-class basis. In applying this policy,
the Group has concluded that its registered ownership
interests in leasehold properties and the right to use
other properties leased under tenancy agreements
are two separate groupings of assets which differ
significantly in their nature and use. Accordingly, they
are regarded by the Group as separate classes of asset
for subsequent measurement policies in accordance with
Notes 2(g) and 2(j). Specifically, registered ownership
interests are carried under the revaluation model, while
rights to use properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the group’s accounting policies (continued)

In making this judgement, the Group has taken
into account that, as the registered owner of a
leasehold property, the Group is able to benefit
fully from any changes in the valuation of these
properties whether as holding gains or by selling
the property interest to others, as well as being
able to use the properties in its operation free of
paying market rents. In contrast, the shorter term
tenancy agreements are typically for periods of
no more than 15 years and are subject to other
restrictions, in particular on transferability of the
Group’s tenancy rights to others. These shorter term
tenancy agreements are executed in order to retain
operational flexibility and to reduce the Group’s
exposure to the property market fluctuation. They
may contain termination or extension clauses, and/
or rental payment are usually increased every 1 to 3
years to reflect market rentals.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 12, 13, 15 and 29 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to valuation of land and buildings held for own
use, investment property, goodwill and intangible
assets impairment and financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Expected credit losses of receivables
Expected credit losses are a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the
expected life of receivables. Receivables are
categorised by individual characteristics of
each customer. The Group estimates the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses for receivables based on
the ageing of overdue balances, repayment
histories of individual debtors, debtor credit-
worthiness, historical write-off experience,
existing customer-specific and market
conditions and forward-looking information.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(i)

Expected credit losses of receivables
(continued)

The Group considers the following indicators
when assessing the credit risks, such as
the changes in macroeconomic conditions,
probabilities of default and internal or
external credit ratings, or expected operating
performance of the customer, etc. At every
reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking information are analysed. Such
assessment involves a significant degree of
judgement by the management.

Impairment losses of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2(k). The carrying
amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of the
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and
could result in additional impairment charge or,
except for goodwill, reversal of impairment in
future periods.
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(BIEZEIER TRIUAREZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3

ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account the estimated residual values. The
management reviews the estimated useful
lives and the residual values, of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during
any reporting period. The determination of the
useful lives and the residual values is based
on historical experience with similar assets.
The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from

previous estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

(a)

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores, a shopping mall

and supermarkets in the PRC.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net income from concession sales, gross
rental income and management and administrative

service fee income.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFESBIEH  EAIAARKZ2)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHEMoE®E (&)
(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (@) W (&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) WzmnHE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service lines is
as follows:

HEBERNRBGERE
DRZBEEA KW D E

T

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
ﬁ_‘b @j:
—E-EF ZEETF
+=A=+—H =HA=+—H
1IE A {E B HFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARBF T
Revenue from contracts with % 8 Bf 35 3% &5 % B 551558
customers within the scope HERAZRBEFEHZ
of HKFRS 15 Uy &=
Sales of goods P miEE 184,528 302,622
Net income from concession sales 4 7 EAE 4 & F I A 134,913 224,849
Management and administrative & I8 & 7T R 7% & U A
service fee income 33,473 50,164
352,914 577,635
Revenue from other sources  Hth 3R U 2
Gross rental income PRGN 44,107 64,377
397,021 642,012
Disaggregated by timing of RWERREEIE
revenue recognition
Point in time =y 319,441 527,471
Over time W B 77,580 114,541
397,021 642,012

The Group’'s entire revenue is attributable
to the market in Shaanxi province, the PRC.
No analysis of geographical information is
therefore presented.

AEENEF SRR E T
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513 3% & KL DA o

HESHEHEERERDA

B of L

187



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &%=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(BrIF=B1EH

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group engages in the retail business, and
accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s customer base is
diversified and has no customer with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenue for the nine months ended 31
December 2020 (year ended 31 March 2020:
RMB Nil). Details of concentrations of credit
risk are set out in Note 29(a).

Information on gross revenue

Gross revenue represents the gross amount
arising from the sales of goods, concession
sales charged to retail customers, gross rental
income and management and administrative
service fee income charged to tenants.

F+-A=+—HILNEA
BAIKAREZ5)

4 WaNIBHE (&)

(a) Wz (&)

() KEZE(E)
AEBRETEER A
fARAEERE K
SEMNEFEMRZITIL:
BH=E—_ZT-_FTF+—A
=+—BLEAEALER
SBARNEERZTI0%H
EE(BE_E_ZF=
A=Z+—BLEEE: AR
BZL) - EERRETH
IR M .&29(a) °

ﬁ%@%éﬁﬁﬂZﬁﬂ
RS EEE® M A
2’%%}524%2#%%%
S HASRAAERE
P UER 2 & B R 1T BR %
EWAZBER -

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

BZ HE

—ECEHF —EF

+=—A=+—H = ﬂ _"1— H

IEN{E A EFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETFIT

Sales of goods EmiEE 184,528 302,622

Gross revenue from concession sales — ErEF BB E E Uk 25 1,019,894 1,395,508

Gross rental income B 5 U A 44,107 64,377
Management and administrative service & 32 & 17 BUR 75 &

fee income WA 33,473 50,164

1,282,002 1,812,671

Further details regarding the Group’s principal ERAEETEEB 2 #

activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

BRI 40K E -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in

the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales
contracts for prepaid stored value cards
such that the Group did not disclose the
information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts
for sales of prepaid stored value cards
because the Group recognises revenue at the
amount to which it has a right to invoice,
which corresponds directly to the value to
the customer of the Group's performance
completed to date.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

Department stores and shopping mall:
this segment includes the operation of 5
department stores and a shopping mall.

Supermarkets: this segment includes the
operation of 8 supermarkets.

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:
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(BrIF=B1EH

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information (continued)

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA" i.e. “adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income, and other financial
charges and income, and “depreciation
and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets and valuation gain or loss on investment
property. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the
Group's earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the nine months ended 31
December 2020 and year ended 31 March
2020.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the nine months
ended 31 December 2020 and year ended 31
March 2020 is set out below.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment information (continued)

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

4 WmEMDEBHRE (&)

(b)

(i)

DEEE (&)

DEER ()

Nine months ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-Z£+-A=t-BLIMEAR

Department
stores and
shopping mall  Supermarkets Total
BERESER
BYHL BE TS Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFT ARETFT
Disaggregated by timing of RUWERIBEIE
revenue recognition
Point in time B 21 161,587 157,854 319,441
Over time BE s e 62,386 15,194 77,580
Revenue and net income PREF 2R FRA
from external customers RUGEIBUERF
and reportable segment 'ON
revenue and net income 223,973 173,048 397,021
Reportable segment (loss)/  T# &2 (HE) /
profit (adjusted EBITDA) wA (REE
EBITDA) (124,888) 1,107 (123,781)
Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z_TFE-A=1+—HILEE
Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BERSBR
BoHl BRTS G
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT AREFT
Disaggregated by timing of B RERAREE
revenue recognition
Point in time IR 26 282,723 244,748 527,471
Over time e 5 91,175 23,366 114,541
Revenue and net income from  SMNRE P 2 Uiz KIFUA
external customers and RAlRE D Bl RF
reportable segment revenue A
and net income 373,898 268,114 642,012
Reportable segment loss AREDIER (EH%E
(adjusted EBITDA) EBITDA) (520,125) (13,074) (533,199)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

DEEE (&)

(b)

4 WHEMDBEE (&)

(i) THEDHBERE R

loss
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZ HE
—ECEF —EETF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
IR EA IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARETF T
Reportable segment loss AmEDEEE (123,781) (533,199)
Other net income H hF A 12,164 10,629
Depreciation expenses mERX (116,028) (165,095)
Impairment losses on goodwill e N ER A ERERIE
and intangible assets (365,855) (470,605)
Valuation loss on an investment &M GEEE
property - (28,700)
Net finance costs MBERFE (115,798) (118,509)
Unallocated head office and AR EE R A RITTHRF S
corporate administration
expenses (9,492) (11,020)
Loss before taxation % %5 BB 18 (718,790) (1,316,499)
5 OTHER NET INCOME 5 HFRA
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZE BHE
—EB-EF —TFTF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
1E L@ A WEFEE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR% Tt ARETF T
Interest income I B W A 11,264 5,795
Net income on a financial guarantee 2 31T& RIERZFWA
issued — 1,415
Dividend income % B U A 900 1,200
Write-off of other payables 1 SH B Ath FE 15 SRR - 2,219
12,164 10,629

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

(a) Net finance costs

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ) 3= M &
For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

6

BR B Al & 18
BRABAEME (GHA) -

(a) MBERFHE

Nine months

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate
of 7.97% per annum for the nine months ended
31 December 2020 (year ended 31 March 2020:
7.48%) (see Note 17).

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZE HE
—E-EF —T_FTF
+=A=+—H =HA=+—H
IEH@E A IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREFT
Interest expenses on bank and 1T R EAEE 2 F B X H
other borrowings 173,961 189,761
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBEZME (AKF210b))
(see Note 21(b)) 4,098 6,503
Bank charges and other finance $R17E& A &k HE MBI 5 E B
costs 6,114 11,522
Total borrowing costs BIEE KR 184,173 207,786
Less: interest expense capitalised ¥ : 2 & 2k A U B 1) 2 78 1~
into prepayments for REZMEX
acquisitions of properties (2 HaE21(b))
(see Note 21(b)) (70,557) (88,756)
Finance income on loan FEWE = H ERZ B BERA
receivables from third parties - (32)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) [ X, E548, 7 (Ug25 ) ' F 58 2,182 (489)
115,798 118,509

BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—
HiEAEA  EEKXAEIZFEF

R797% (HZE—

T -ZTF=A

=t BIEFE:748% )& K

£ (RMEE17) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 KRFBAIEE(EZ)
(b) Staff costs (b) BEI A

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

BZE H=

—EZEHF —E-FF

+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H

1E @A HFEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBF T

Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMBT 73,679 113,382

Contributions to defined contribution [a] & %8 £ FR AR5 2 7k
retirement plans 2,873 11,769
76,552 125,151

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at 16% of the employees’ basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are
entitled to retirement benefits, calculated based
on a percentage of the average salaries level in
the PRC, from the above mentioned retirement
schemes at their normal retirement age. During
the nine months ended 31 December 2020, the
subsidiaries established in the PRC have been
granted certain exemption on the contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans by the local
government authority as a result of the COVID-19
impact for the period from February 2020 to
December 2020.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA
(BRIFFHFHER TAUAREZZ])

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 KRBATEE (&)
(b) Staff costs (continued) (b) BIRA& (&)
The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident AEENREBEEERTELES
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the SPENEB AT BRIFIED 2 8)E
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme e Tz EEEE— (BRI
Ordinance for employees under the jurisdiction of NE2EE ([8ERETE]) -
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF BEEFEA—EHRBEIEFEA
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan BIR 2 ERRMENE Sl RIRRIE
administered by an independent trustee. Under the 28 BERHEBSHARE
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are BHEBEHEZ% (FAEBEHE
each required to make contributions to the plan at & LR A30,000%8 7T ) [A 5T 2] 4
5% of the employees’ relevant salaries, subject to o MR E R B 2 AR
a cap of monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000. B
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of BRIEM EIFEHFIN NEE
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual MEREMRARBINRZE
contributions. fEo
(c) Other operating expenses () HttR&EMX
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZ HE
—E-EF —T-FTF
+=A=+-B =A=+-~
LR {E A IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARMTFIT
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 Bl % B
— statutory audit service V5 TE 1% B AR 4,200 4,200
Other professional service fee HtWEXRBE 8,838 5,745
Provisions for obligation from Cash R EERE
Coupon Card (see Note 20(c)) ( B HtzE20(c)) 194,547 94,046
Property management fee MEERE 3,843 8,409
Loss on disposal of property, plant and EEW¥  WME REHEZ
equipment B8 3,198 403
Others H A 28,075 31,175
242,701 143,978
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z _—E_-_ZF+_HA=+—HIL @A

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

7

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents:

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

Nine months

REBRBERAAEHR

(a) mEBERAZHIAE:

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
Bz H=E
—2-FF C—T-TF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
IEN@EA IFEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARBF T
Current taxation (see Note 27(a)): Z~HEiBi1E ( Effz£27(a)) :
— Provision for PRC Corporate —HEEMESTREE
Income Tax 1,668 3,394
— Under/(over)-provision in respect —BEFEEREIE
of prior years (#8%8) 17 (2,166)
1,685 1,228 )
Deferred taxation (see Note 27(b)): EZEF1E ( EHfzE27(b)) :
— Origination and reversal of —EREECZELERED
temporary differences (44,573) (5,137)
— Effect on deferred tax balances at —REREFHENIEA—H
1 April resulting from a change B3R R T T8 45 pA Y B 28
in tax rate (see Notes (iv) and 27(b)) (B HaE(iv)270b)) (10,723) -
(55,296) (5,137).
(53,611) (3,909)

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZ _—ZE -—ZFTF+ _A=+—HIF @A
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFESBIEH  EAIAARKZ2)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBRERAMEBH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEBXZHEETERRERN
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: R AWM :
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZE HE

—g=8F ~—T-IF
+=A=+-8 =ZA=+—H
EN@EA EFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRE ARETT

Loss before taxation B T A 5 18 (718,790) (1,316,499)
Expected tax on loss before tax, Br T Al e 18 2 TR EATH

calculated at the rates applicable in 18 B T IE A

the tax jurisdictions concerned R ZERHREE

(see Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) (S B ~ (i) K (iii) ) (178,298) (345,328)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ] 135 % & 2 Fi f5 52 22 40,133 121,828
Tax concessions (see Note (iv)) MIBER (&M aEdv)) 19,977 69,577
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERBADRABREERZ

recognised AR 31,553 45,440
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIERELRF =5 7 RIS £

recognised 53,105 106,740
Tax effect on using tax losses not EARBTFERERBIER

recognised in prior years ERZBBTE (9.375) -

Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 MERESHENA—BH
April resulting from a change in tax BRI B &AL £

rate (see Notes (iv) and 27(b)) (B HtaE(iv)%27(b)) (10,723) —
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFEBEIR

prior years (HB%E) 17 (2,166)
Income tax TSt (53,611) (3,909)

sesenuensnis 1Y%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (year ended 31 March 2020:
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made, as the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the nine months
ended 31 December 2020 (year ended 31 March 2020:
RMB Nil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC (including
Hong Kong) are not subject to any income tax pursuant to
the rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are
subject to a PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for
the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (year ended 31
March 2020: 25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
obtained approvals from the respective tax bureaux in
2012 that they are entitled to tax benefits applicable
to entities under the Second Phase of the Western
Region Development Plan of the PRC, and enjoy a
preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 15% for
the calendar years from 2011 to 2020. In 2020, the State
Administration of Taxation issued the preferential PRC
Corporate Income Tax policies for entities under the Third
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of the
PRC (the “Policies”), which is effective from 1 January
2021. These subsidiaries of the Group will not be entitled
to tax benefits applicable to entities under the Policies and
the PRC Corporate Income Tax rate expected to be 25%
for the calendar years from 2021.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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7

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

mEBBERAMSEH (&)

Fifat -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ARBRAEERESFMKZ
2 [t B A B B 8 A S RS B
EE165% (BE T _ZTF=H8
=+ —HIEFE 16.5%) cHARA
REIRAEBRBSFEMKILZ
MEARBE_ZE_ZTE+=-A4
=+—HIENEA WL EBHBNES
FEMzERH RN (BE=Z2=
EFEZA=ZF+—HBHLEFE:ARK
) R E B FS T IE D &
fie

ARRRAEERTE (BEEE)
VASINE 2R 5 i B S22 PR B8 R RIAR $5
HEBMREZMAZBERZHE R
AR BABMNE RS

HEZT-_TF+=-A=+—H
IEAEAR - A% B B2 K
BRARASMTECEMGH:
HEBK% (BE_T_TE=7
=+t—HILFE:25%) °

REBETEFBEMKL ZHERR]
RZZTE—ZFNERBEHS B
X BEEREAN R A KA
B ElE—H T BB 2 AEEB
B WR_TE——FEZ-_FT_F
FEFZXI5%ZEEFRBEBEAN
BREX - R_B_TF  BRHUE
REEMPEAPARFESE =R
BERPREPEMSHEZBR ([K
®]) BZZE=_—F—A—HR4E
o ANEB 2R EH B A R EE
EXBRBETEBERB ZHRE
B AT FEFR hEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEFHM

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BIBEBR B R AHEHIFE383(NIE KA T
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (BRESHEER)ROIFE 28 % 5=
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about ZEEHMOT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Nine months ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-ZET-A=1-HIEAMEA

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R
Eshe HEEUEN MiERS BAGHEER ait

RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBOO)  RMBO00  RMBY000
ARBFR  ARETR ARBFR  ARETZ  ARETR

Executive directors HEE
Mr. Huang Shunxu (appointed on 24 June  EIB& %4 (R-F-5&
2020) NAZtHAEZf) - = - - -
Mr. Wu Yijian (resigned on 10 June 2020) ~ R-B%4 (R-F-5F
~RTREHE) 428 - - 4 43
Mr. Qin Chuan %4 1011 - - 12 1,023
Mr. Qi Yong (appointed on 24 June 2020)  RBX4 (W-F-FFXA-1HA
BZH) m 591 - 19 932
Ms. Wan Qing (appointed on 24 June 2020) ZEX L (M-F-FFAF-1HA
EZH) 276 244 - 9 529
Non-executive directors FHEE
M. Li Yang (appointed on 24 June 2020)  ZB %4 (W=F-FFXA-1HA
EZfE) - - - - -
Mr, Chen Shuai REvEE - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BU#H7TEE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BERLE 181 - - - 181
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng it 4 168 - - - 168
Ms. Song Hong (appointed on 30 October ~ RAZL (R=F-FF+A=1H
2020) EZH) 46 - - - 46
Dr. Han Qinchun (retired on 18 September ~ £Z&E L (R-E-FFNAT/\B
2020) #1T) 92 - - - 92
252 835 - m 3403
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA
(BIEZEIER TRIUAREZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

8 EEHFM (&)

Year ended 31 March 2020
HE-Z-ZE-B-+-HILFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ ~ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R
E3He HOENEN MRS RIS At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR%Tn ARETn ARETR
Executive directors HEE
Mr. W Yijian (Chairman) R-BEE(2E) 3,351 586 - 16 3953
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (resigned on 21 BEAX %4 (R-F- &
October 2019) +A=t-BEf) 1,173 5 - 9 1,34
Mr. Qin Chuan (appointed on 21 October 2019 /Il %4 (R=F-A%F+A=1-H
EZ () 381 - - 8 389
Mr. Sha Yingjie (resigned on 21 October 2019) WEA %A (R=F-NE
tAZT-RRE) 45 - - - 45
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Chen Shuai Repi 4 - - - - -
Mr. Cao Yonggang (resigned on 21 October ~ Bk EI%E4 (RZF-N5
2019) TAZT-BRf) - - - - -
Mr. Qu Jiagi (resigned on 21 October 2019)  #ZEE4 (R-F-h&E
TAZt-RBE) 51 - - - 51
Independent non-executive directors ~ BU#HTEZE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LEELE 230 - - - 230
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng fiEe%E 203 - - - 203
Dr. Han Qinchun (appointed on 30 September #%&fEL (R=F-NENA=TH
2019) EZf) 70 - - - 70
Dr. Cao Guoqi (resigned on 30 September ~ EEHEL (R=Z-NENA=TH
2019) BHE) 133 - - - 133
5637 638 : 3 6,308
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,

three (year ended 31 March 2020: two) are directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8.

The emoluments in respect of the other two (year ended
31 March 2020: three) individuals are as follows:

9

(BRIBHHEH  FRIUARKELS)
RE#HFAL

ERZEeHATH =& (HE=
E-_ERF=-A=+—HIEFE: =H&)
BEE MEWNESF1ECE R s
5o

FREMRE (2T _ZTF=A
=+—HIEE:=8) At zBEun
T:

Nine months

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind¥r & - 284 & H {th = %118 F

Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHE R

The emoluments of the two (year ended 31 March 2020:
three) individuals who are not directors and who are
amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group
are within the following bands:

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020

BZE HE
—ECEF —E-THF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
IEH@EA EFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARKFT
1,171 2,720

17 120

1,188 2,840

ME (BE-_E-_TF=A=+—H
HFE: =ZR)WHFEEABRAEE
hEaZEeSHFALTZEAR AL ZHMN
TLAT&EE:

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

BZE H=E

—EZEHF —E-ETF

+=A=+—H =HA=+—H

WEhEA IEFE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

161 B A 2 &5 A 21

HKD Nil to HKD 1,000,000 T T 21,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,0007% 7T = 2
i & EEEERERA A

B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other

comprehensive income

—2E = A=+—AUABA

HE—_ZFT—F

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

10 HEz2mEW =

HEEMEERSESHBNBMIREY

\|
/l

i
&

I

Nine months ended 31 December 2020 Year ended 31 March 2020
BZ-Z-ZF{+-A=t-HLNAER BE_Z-TE-A=-+-HII5E
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
BRBE B Al NBHE  BREER MeHE
8 HEEX &e® 8 HEREY heE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
(Note 27(b)) (Note 27(b))
(Kii27() (Biat27))
Surplus on revaluation of land ~ EftE{EER L RIETZ
and buildings held for own use &% (£ 4712
(see Note 12) 42,670 (25,682) 16,988 11,550 (2,185) 9,365
Other financial assets -net ~ Et & plEE- AL ER
movement in the fair value EEHFE
reserve (14,700) (23,273) (37,973) (70,198) 10,531 (59,667)
Exchange differences on BERZTIEBZES
translation into presentation ~ Z%8
currency 15,026 - 15,026 (17,192) - (17,192)
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft 2 H¥& 42,996 (48,955) (5,959) (75,840) 8,346 (67,494)

There was no reclassification adjustment relating to
components of other comprehensive income during the

period (year ended 31 March 2020: Nil).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB635,095,000 (year ended 31
March 2020: RMB1,279,095,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,326,151,000 ordinary and
convertible preference shares (year ended 31 March
2020: 2,323,693,000 ordinary and convertible
preference shares) in issue during the period,
calculated as follows:

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

s FFE T _HA=1—HIEABEA
(BRIFAEHEH BRIKAREZS)

11 BEREARARBEER

(a)

BREXRER
IR EARER I ER AR AR
JE (5 B 18 A R #635,095,0007T
(B2 -_ZTF=A=+—H
EFE: AR #1,279,095,000
7T) B HHWE%;%WJME%’J
£02,326,151,000% & @ A% &
Y & -E (%zi—f—
Ei_ﬂ_wL— HIEFE:
2,323,693,0008% & 3@ i% K 7] #
RELER)GTEWDT -

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BE H=E
—E-EF —ET-FTF
+=A=+-B =ZA=+-A
IENEA IEFE
‘000 ‘000
Fi® Fhig
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April REA—-—BERITERR 2,323,693 2,323,693
Effect of termination of share award 4 |FRZ (D 1Bt E v &
scheme (see Note 26(a)) (B K1at26(a)) 2,458 —
Weighted average number of ordinary A+—-A=+—0 7
shares at 31 December/March —A=+—BzIZ@E’m
W19 8 2,326,151 2,323,693

The holder of the convertible preference shares
is entitled to receive the same rate of dividends/
distributions as the holders of ordinary shares.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation of
basic loss per share, the convertible preference
shares issued have been included in the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares in issue.

(b) Diluted loss per share

During the nine months ended 31 December 2020
and year ended 31 March 2020, diluted loss per
share is calculated on the same basis as basic loss
per share.

(b)

AR BB AR RIREE
BEFT A ABRZ L REERE

SRk Bt A ESRER
BiEmE  SAESBTRO MNE

FHBRE AR BRITARIE
SERR o

’@Bﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ
BE_ZT-_ZTHF+_A=+—H
ihf.ﬂ&@i—?— FFE=H
=T HLEEE Sk#gEsE
ToiR S A A AN 5 1R 4 A & X 5
o

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZZ-Z_-Z&

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

F+-A=+—HILNEA
(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

12 V¥ -BERKXE

Residential
properties
landand  held for own
buildings held use carried
for own use at cost and Properties Furniture,
carried at fair [easehold leased for fixtures and Construction
value  improvements own use equipment  Motor vehicles in progress Total
BRASIE 5
HARE5IR (EEREENE
H#EERLIR kg G £E
B NExE  BREENZ bE EHTA EEIR ait
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ANRBFT ANRBFT ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ANRBFT
Cost or valuation: AR
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEWA—A 2,931,310 437,411 97,636 101,583 5871 625 3,574,442
Exchange adjustments EiSE - )] - 1,141 - - 1173
Additions HE - 3,013 100 902 476 - 4,491
Transfer n/fout) )/ (&) - 39 = - (392) -
Disposals RE = (35,427) - (3,201) @ - (38,632)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) ~ Ef5 R (ZHf#10) 11,550 = = = = - 11,550
Less: elimination of accumulated B EHRGNE
depreciation (98,860) - - - - - (98,860)
At 31 March 2020 RZE-ZE=f=1-H 2,844,000 405,421 97,736 100,425 6,349 233 3,454,164
Representing: N
Cost A - 405,421 97,736 100,425 6,349 233 610,164
Valuation - 31 March 2020 fﬁﬁ- 22%F
RA=t-H 2,844,000 - - - - - 2,844,000
2,844,000 405,421 97,736 100,425 6,349 233 3,454,164
Less: accumulated depreciation and ¥ : Rt EREEESE
impairment losses
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NFHA-H - 269,410 - 80,327 5,032 - 354,769
Exchange adjustments EX#E - 3 - 1,141 - - 1173
Charge for the year ERfE 98,860 30,985 26,056 9,047 147 = 165,095
Witten back on disposals RERED - (18,165) - (3,018) B) - (21,186)
Elimination on revaluation EEREH (98,860) = = = = = (98,860)
At31 March 2020 R-E-BF=R=1-0 - 282,262 26,056 87,497 5,176 = 400991
Net book value: EEE§E :
At 31 March 2020 \ZE-FF-f=1-H 2,844,000 123,159 71,680 12,928 1173 233 3,053,173

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥ -BERRE ()
(continued)
Residential
properties
landand  held for own
buildings held use carried

for own use at cost and Properties Furniture,
carried at fair easehold leased for fixtures and Construction
value  improvements own use equipment  Motor vehicles in progress Total
BREATIRZE
URRESIR. fRREZNE
FEERLHER RiEE B RE
52 NERE  RREENE kil ERIE ERIE At

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTL  ARBTZ  ARETr  ARETZ  ARETr  ARETn  ARETx

Cost or valuation: HAREE:
At 1 April 2020 R-Z-2FEA-A 2,844,000 405,421 97,736 100,425 6,349 233 3,454,164
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (1) - (1,468) - - (1,509)
Additions AE - 2,400 17471 1174 1,254 - 22,305
Transfer in/fout) )/ (&) 60,895 (60,895) - - - - -
Disposals RE = (21,542) - (9,387) (6,380) - (37,309)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) 42,670 - - - - - 42,670
Less: elimination of accumulated &ild

depreciation (103,565) - - - - - (103,565)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-F5+-A=1-H 2,844,000 325,343 115,213 90,744 1223 233 3,376,756
Representing: &
Cost A - 325383 115,213 90,744 1223 33 532,756
Valuation - 31 December 2020 bE--3-%%

tZA=1-H 2,844,000 - - - - - 2,844,000
2,844,000 325,343 115,213 90,744 1223 233 3,376,756

Less: accumulated depreciation and i : Zit i ERFEEE

impairment losses
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZEMA-A - 282,262 26,056 87,497 5,176 - 400,991
Exchange adjustments EiAE - (#1) - (1,468) - - (1,509)
Charge for the period BANE 74,811 16,632 18,824 5,674 87 - 116,028
Transfer in/{out) #)/ (&) 28,754 (28,754) - - - - -
Written back on disposals RERAE - (21,065) - (8,048) (4527) - (33,640)
Elimination on revaluation iEHE (103,565) - - - - - (103,565)
At 31 December 2020 WZZZTF+ZF=1-A - 249,034 44,880 83,655 736 - 378,305
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FE+-f=1-H 2,844,000 76,309 70,333 7,089 487 233 2,998,451
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s land and buildings and investment
property measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020
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12 ME - BEREE (F)

(a) BARnEIRZLIHUREFR
REWMEZRIREE

(i)

RRAEER
TREJRNHERRRE
FUEEFEZASEHZ
THREFUARKRENE
ZonfE BARZARE
RO AHE(RE
BB A E R FE 1358
[AREMEIZER)D
B-BAREAEDSR
EFXRD2EWMTEERE
TR ABE IBRT
NEZURERE:

e FAfAE:EMEH
£ — R ABE (H
REERRBEEEN
BENERTIS 2K
RABRRE)FEZ
VIR

e HB_AfAE:-ERE
— R ABUR (AR
BEERE R AE
K@ AHE) BY R
FEREATAIBRS
ABEBEFEZRAR
B NI B R AR
A ET IS BIERRER
TZBABE-

e F=-AHE:EAE
AR R ABUE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 PE-BERRE (&)

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and () RAAREBEIRZIHEEFR
buildings carried at fair value and REMEZDIABEE (&)
investment property (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AREER(E)

Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3

DPER/E=R2DIAEFE

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020

BZE ESE

—EC_EHF —E-FF
+=A=+—H =RA=+—H

IEH@EA IEFE
Recurring fair value REMEAABTE RMB’000 RMB’000
measurements AR¥TFRT ARKFIT
Land and buildings held for own use 5 {EE F + i RIEF 2,844,000 2,844,000
Investment property (see Note 13) WEME (AaE13) 1,265,300 1,265,300
During the nine months ended 31 December BHE_ZT_ZHF+=A8
2020, there was no transfer between Level 1 =+—HIEAEAR &
and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level F—REFE R ER
3 (year ended 31 March 2020: no transfer). FEAREBEE=R (BE
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers —E-EF=A=+—H
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at IEFE EERE) KREEH
the end of the reporting period in which they 2 BUR BB A 2 )
occur. LEHRERAAEERS

7Rz B o
All of the Group’s land and buildings carried AEEBEMBZRALEYER
at fair value and investment property were 2T REFUARKEY
revalued as at 31 December 2020. The EFR_ZE_FTF+ A
valuations were carried out by an independent =+—R#ETEM - BER
firm of surveyor, Roma Appraisals Limited, BEHRH—ZBE A =EM1T8E
who have among their staff fellows of the SEERAEERARA(F
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent BRAEEe a8 WA
experience in the location and category of EREGHEYEREM R
properties being valued. The Group’s Chief W EERR 2 R AR E SR
Financial Officer has discussion with the HEIT - REHPEARFERE
surveyors on the valuation assumptions BHEITHER  AEE 2
and valuation results when the valuation BREVEEC EBEMET
is performed at each interim and annual AL ERRRAELS
reporting date. Re

HE S HHEBRERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B Z =T =FF+=-HA=+—HI1-NEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥ - BERRE (&)

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and () RAAREIRZIHEEFR
buildings carried at fair value and REVEZDNARETE (&)
investment property (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (i) E=ZRARETEFEAH
Level 3 fair value measurements 2 1G58 T 5 R B A B 1%
Range
#E
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

BE_Z-ZEf Hz-2-%
+=A=+-H =A=t+—H

Valuation Unobservable Eh@ER HEE
techniques input RMB RMB
CTEDD A FUEEGAYE AR¥ ARE

Land and buildings held ~ Market comparison Average market unit 12,000 ~ 51,000 12,000 ~ 51,000

for own use approach sale rate (per sq.m)
BEERLHRET ML B FHmnEMER
(BFAXK)
Investment property Market comparison Average market unit 28,173 28,173
approach sale rate (per sq.m)
REME s B FHmBEMER
(BEHK)
The fair value of land and buildings carried NP EZEAAETYER
at fair value and investment property located 2T REFURKREY
in the PRC is determined using market EZAREEATSBLER
comparison approach by reference to recent EETE - HE2EM#L
sales price of comparable properties on a RYEREEATSETA
price per square meter basis in the relevant RKEBEEFEZIIHE
market. Comparable properties of similar size, B-RAALBREHREY
characteristics and location are analysed and XZ2RRE DT RERE
selected for each property in order to arrive at R KB R B AR 2
a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair ALY E-Z R AEE
value measurement is positively correlated to ENEEYTHMISEME
the average market unit sale rate. ErERA R -

208 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
(@) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used

(iii)

in Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

Fair value adjustment of investment properties
is recognised in the line item “valuation gain/
loss on an investment property” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Surplus/deficit on revaluation of properties
held for own use are recognised in other
comprehensive income in “property revaluation

All the gains/losses recognised in profit or loss
for the period arise from the properties held at
the end of the reporting period.

Depreciated cost of land and buildings
held for own use carried at fair value

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFSHIEE  BRIUAREZZ)
12 N% -BEREE (A)

(a) BAREIRZLIHUREFR

REVEZAARENE (B)

(i)

(iii)

B=ZRAIAAREFEER
Z (G518 75 0% R A B 1%
(%)

REWMEZ AAERABR
REBERZIREME
faE W s B8 ] B AR

=
A °

HIEEMMEZERHRS
BN MEEEFE N
R E s -

7N HA ] 1B s ERR 2 P B IR
&/ BRELEREHR
HRBZMR-

URAEIIRZIFEEH
THREFIHERR
At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

R-IEZZ2EFE RN_ZT_FTF
+=A=+—H =F=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Had the revalued land and
buildings carried at fair value
been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, the carrying
amount would have been

A RSB RR 2 B b 3
RABF AR Rt T &
KR EE BRI FREE
5

1,594,094 1,601,566

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B Z =T =FF+=-HA=+—HI1-NEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 M¥ - BERRXE (&)
(continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use FAEEERMFERABEE
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BRI aT :
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

R-IEBEZEF RZZZTF
+=HA=+—8B =ZA=+—8H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR¥Fr ARETF T

Ownership interests in leasehold %2 721851 BE 2 FA
land and buildings held for BEEBRAZHE LR
own use in PRC, carried at fair EBF 7B EREZ
value, with remaining lease BN EEN F
term between 10 and 50 years 10&504F (i) 2,844,000 2,844,000

Residential properties held BRITEXARINERZ

for own use, carried at FIEBREEYE

depreciated cost (if) 13,417 13,743
Properties leased for own use, IZIrER AT R 2

carried at depreciated cost BEREEM (iii) 70,333 71,680

83,750 85,423

Ownership interests in leasehold #ZAMREFIEZ RAERE

investment property, carried at Y E AR BT

fair value, with remaining lease FHE N F10E504F

term between 10 and 50 years (i) 1,265,300 1,265,300

4,193,050 4,194,723

2 1 O Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (continued) (b)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

12 ME - BEREE (F)

FEREEE (&)
R ERERZHERTEE
DT

Nine months

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset:

— Ownership interests in leasehold
land and buildings held for own
use in PRC, carried at fair value

— Residential properties held for own
use, carried at depreciated cost

— Properties leased for own use,
carried at depreciated cost

Interest on lease liabilities
(see Note 6(a))

Expense relating to short-term leases
and other leases with remaining
lease term ending on or before
31 March 2020

HEBEESRE D
EREEENE N :
—EBRREHNRZNTE
FEERAZEEL R
BFZHEBEER
—IRTERARTN R Z K51
BREEME
—RITERATIERZE A
HEME

HEBEZFE
(Kfzz6(a))

ERAD BATH & K FISRIE S E R
—E-ZEF=H=+—H
AR IFMEMEES
78 B X

During the nine months ended 31 December
2020, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB17,477,000. This amount primarily related to
the capitalised lease payments payable under new

tenancy agreements.

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020

B=E 3
—E-EF —E-THF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
IEN{E A WFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARETFIT
74,811 98,860

326 624

18,824 26,056
93,961 125,540

4,098 6,503

781 1,059

BE—_ZT-_ZF+-_A=+—H
WEHER AEFEREEELAA
E#17,477,000T 3% £ X B
HREFHEREEN 2ERE

HERBAABR-

HESHEHEERERDA

B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
Notes 21(c) and 25, respectively.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Ownership interests in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use and in
leasehold investment property

The Group holds several commercial buildings
for its department stores and shopping mall
operation business. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including
the whole and part of undivided share in
the underlying land. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered
owners, and there are no ongoing payments
to be made under the terms of contract for
assignment.

Residential properties held for own use,
carried at depreciated cost

The Group holds several residential properties.
The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the whole and
part of undivided share in the underlying land.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from their
previous registered owners, and there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of contract for assignment.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its retail stores through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 15 years. Lease payments
are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E_-_ZF+_-_HA=+—HILNEA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12

13

(continued)
(c) Title ownership

As at the date of this annual report, the Group was
in the progress of applying for registration of the
ownership certificates for certain of its properties.
The aggregate carrying value of such properties
as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB13,417,000 (31 March 2020: RMB13,743,000).
The directors of the Company are of the opinion the
Group is entitled to lawfully own and occupy these

(BRIFSHIEE  BRIUAREZZ)
Mx- -BERRE (F)

(c) ¥¥EFmE®
RAFERBE AEBEEAE
**H@%Eﬁaﬁyjuaﬁﬁﬁf”;’i%o
ZEMER T _TE+_A
== EIZ,WEEETE?%Z’]AE
#13,417,000C (Z T =T F =
HE+—E:AE%B7@om
L) cARREERAE AEE
BHEAAERAREAZEDE-

properties.
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 13 REWYE
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZE HE
—EF —E-TF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
1@ B HFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ Tt ARBFT
Valuation: {18 :
At 1 April RMEA—H 1,265,300 1,294,000
Fair value adjustments NR(EFHEE = (28,700)
At 31 December/March N+=—A/=A=+—8H 1,265,300 1,265,300

The Group leases out investment property under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every
1 to 3 years to reflect market rentals. Certain leases
include variable lease payment terms that are based on
the revenue of tenants.

AEERBREHELHKREDH-
ZEME—RILRBE—ZE+5F 1
AR EE%ESZEH%Z 5 ):Bﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁ_ﬂm
REAEFEE-HeREgs—==
FM—R Lxﬁﬂ%miﬁf ToAET
Tﬂi"f@%%fﬂﬁ”& R REE 7 P2
& (S FRER

HE S HHEBRERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B Z =T =FF+=-HA=+—HI1-NEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

13 RENER (&)
RIS HR - A % BAR BT o] NS
ERERN KRB RYERES

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the end of the reporting

period will be receivable by the Group in future periods (N
as follows:
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

R-IEZZFE RN _ZT-_FTF
+=A=+—H =F=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBF T

Within 1 year —F R 29,939 31,466
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFNA 38,560 44,989
After 5 years FF 1% 1,219 1,476
69,718 77,931

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEEE

Trademark-
use-right
R AR
RMB’000
ARKFIT
Cost: R
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and RZZFE—-hNFM™A—A8-
31 December 2020 —E-EF=-"A=1+—HEK
—EFEFE+A=1+—8H 424,812
Less: accumulated impairment losses W RETREREE
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 R-ZE—hEMA—H -
and 1 April 2020 —E-TF=RA=+—HK
—E-ZTFMH—H -
Impairment losses VERIEN SR 215,166
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_FTF+_-_A=+—H 215,166
Carrying amount: ARMEE :
At 31 December 2020 KRB -_FF+_A=+—H 209,646
At 31 March 2020 RZEBE-_ZEF=A=+—H 424,812

The Group’s trademark-use-right represents the Group’s

AEBZAREREEASEERRD

use of the trademark “Ginwa” which the Group has Bt ERBEEESBKER

acquired through its acquisitions of department store and

supermarket operations in prior years.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14 BREE (&)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are allocated EHRAIERAFH BV EEREN
to the Group’s cash-generating units identified according TRriiE 2 B B R % R B R T 5 R
to the department store and supermarket operations SPRERAEBZERFIRESELE

acquired as follows: fif
At At
Country of operation and 31 December 31 March
operating segments 2020 2020
EEMEBRREE D R-ZZB-BF RZT_TF
+=ZA=+—H =ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Century Ginwa Company Ltd. Department stores and 65,164 210,132
(“Ginwa Bell Tower") shopping mall, PRC

2 ERHDBER AR BERSKEYH LR
([ EER])

Golden Chance (Xian) Limited Department stores and 69,802 140,000
("GCX") shopping mall, PRC

BERSEBYT L F

Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and 74,680 74,680
shopping mall and
supermarkets, PRC
BEESIBEYROEBR
% A

209,646 424,812
Details of impairment tests relating to for cash-generating ERAFERERERRAFERFESR 2
units containing goodwill and intangible assets with I EE 7 RS EE BN 7B E AR
indefinite useful life are set out in Note 15. FIBERHIFES o

sesenuchsnin 215



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-ET_-ZFF+=-F=+—HILhfEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BIEZH1E8 TAIUARKEZS)

15 GOODWILL 15 B8
RMB’000
ARKFT
Cost: A
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31 RZZFTE—-NFM™A—A8-
December 2020 —E-TF=A=+—HK
—ET_TF+_A=+—H 1,451,814
Less: accumulated impairment losses A RETREEER
At 1 April 2019 R-ZZE-NFMHA—AH 758,391
Impairment losses BEEE 470,605
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZEZZTF=A=+—HBK
—T-T-TEMA—H 1,228,996
Impairment losses BB B 150,689
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZBE-_TEF+_H=+—H 1,379,685
Carrying amount: BREIE :
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_EF+=_F=+—H 72,129
At 31 March 2020 R-ZBE-_TF=HA=+—H 222,818

2 1 6 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill and intangible assets with

indefinite useful life

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units identified according to the department store and

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

(BRIF=BEH -

15 & (&)

s FFE T _HA=1—HIEABEA
BAIKAREZ3)

BERERESNRUCAFH S

REEZRESELENVZRENR

BERBEINTHKE 2 AEEE MEB
CIECE ST VeV EARY:: il )

supermarket operations acquired as follows: BELEEN:
At At
Country of operation and 31 December 31 March
operating segments 2020 2020
EEMEBRRREE D AZB=BF R_T_ZF
+=B=+—-HB =ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
Ginwa Bell Tower Department stores and - -
shopping mall, PRC
TEfER BEEBSEBYHRL FEH
GCX Department stores and - -
shopping mall, PRC
BEBSEBYTL TE
Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and 72,129 222,818
shopping mall and
supermarkets, PRC
BEBSEEDHOREBER
% 1 &
72,129 222,818
Notes: Bt oz -
() During the nine months ended 31 December 2020, the () HZEZ_ZF+_A=+—HI

financial performance of the Group’s department store
and supermarket operations, as a consequence of the
slowing down of economic growth in the PRC as well as a
consequence of the intense competition from surrounding
shopping malls and online retail sales, did not meet
management’s expectations.
impairment assessments of the relevant cash-generating

Management performed

(EEREE

units to which goodwill and intangible assets had been

allocated.

NAEA - B E
rEEENESE G ETEHER
EmF AEB B SRS EBERT
i%%ﬁ%é’\]ﬁﬂ%%iﬁﬂiﬁ%@ﬁ
H-EEECHEE
WEENHEBRSELEMETR

AR I 5= TR DA

DEEERE

HESHEHEERERDA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(i) (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. These cash flow projections adopted annual sales
growth rates ranging from -10% to 2% (31 March 2020:
from -15% to 2%), which are based on the Group’s
historical experience with these operations and adjusted
for other factors that are specific to each cash-generating
unit. Cash flows after the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated growth rate of 3% (31 March 2020:
3%). The cash flows are discounted using discount rate
of 16% (31 March 2020: 16%). The discount rates used
are pre-taxed and reflect specific risks relating to the
respective cash-generating units.

(i)  As a result of the above impairment test, impairment
losses on goodwill of approximately RMB 150,689,000 and
impairment losses on intangible assets of approximately
RMB215,166,000 were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the reporting period, which
relates to the cash-generating units of Ginwa Bell Tower
acquired in August 2008, GCX acquired in December
2010 and Ideal Mix Limited acquired in May 2011.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

F+-A=+—HILNEA
(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

15 B8 (&

et : (&)

()

(ii)

(%)

REEEBNMIRE S5 THIEE
REBEFEMEE - B@TENE
BREEEEMENAFHEGBE
BEAEENESREEA -2 E
RensERANBREASERZE
X REEHRERAFHEE K
EH-10%E2% (ZFE=_FF =1
=+—H:-15%%2% ) ETHE -
WS —FRcELEMFEZE
thEAEFE - AFHRENE SR
EFAMTIERR3I% (T _TF
ZA=Z+—H:3%)#ETHE-R
SREFBBERIER (T T
F=A=+—H:16% )ET8E -
FrE AR R BB ATRE IR R - R
MR X IR B E 4 B ALAE R 2 FEE R
B o

AR B ERR  mEREEE
# A R #150,689,0007T M £ 2 &
EREEELHAR215,166,000
TR ERRENGESERRER
BERRZZFEZENFNAKENS
EEE - RZZ—TF+=_RAKE
HGCXEN T ——F 7 A KREN
Ideal Mix Limited#93R & E 4 B 7 o



15 GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

(i)

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
for the above three cash-generating units are as follows:

15 B8 (&)
Wit

(%)

(%)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

FR=ERSELABUNERER
FTEPTE R B SRR T :

At 31 December At 31 March

Key assumptions 2020 2020

R-B-EF R-ZE_ZTF

BERR +t=HA=+-—-H =A=+—H

Ginwa Bell Tower Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period -10% - 2% 0% -2%
SEER BLFHMENFHEEREK

Annual sales growth rate after the five-year period 3% 3%
TF AR FHERRE

Discount rate 16% 16%

BRI =X

GCX Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period -10% - 2% -15% - 2%
BLFHMENFHEEREK

Annual sales growth rate after the five-year period 3% 3%
TFHRERHFHERRE

Discount rate 16% 16%

REIR

Ideal Mix Limited Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period -10% - 2% -10% - 2%
BLFHMENFHEEREK

Annual sales growth rate after the five-year period 3% 3%
TFRRERAFHERRE

Discount rate 16% 16%

B3 %

Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the
calculation of recoverable amount of cash-generating
units would result in further impairment losses.

SHEIR S EE AR AT E © FE R
PiT {2 B R SR O AR ] A 2 B S EE A

E—FRERBRE-

HESHEHEERERDA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &%=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

16

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group.

subsidiaries which,

;:\E

7—7

(BrIF=B1EH

F+-A=+—HILNEA
BAIKAREZ5)

16 REKMBAT

B -

Proportion of ownership interest

AEEER-

TREHINARAESTAR/IETE

BEXBBEZHBAR

RRRRLL
Place of Particulars of  The Group's Held by the
establishment registeredand ~ effective  Heldbythe  Company's Principal
Name of companies and operations  paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries activities Legal form
HAAT
HIR EEftk  A%EZ HARR HEAR
ARER EXHE #RRAEN  ERER K5 K5 TEEH EER
Ginwa Bell Tower* 27251 The PRC 1l RMB A R 83.88% - 83.88% Operation of Limited liability
235,500,000 ¢ department store company
BEREHES BRAEAR
Xi'an Century Ginwa Nandajie Shopping  The PRC [ RMB A 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* (Note (j)) 5,000,0007 department store company
Bzt L e EAGRNT ORRAT BEREHS BRERARA
(Hiti)
Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo Shopping ~ The PRC i RMB A\ & B 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* 30,000,0007 department store company
ARt L et ERENERAH BEREHES BRAEAR
Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall -~ The PRC i HKS 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Company Limited* 65,000,000 1t department store company
RZEEERENERAT BEREHS BRERARA
Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and ~ The PRC 1 RMB A B 100% = 100% Operation of Limited liability
Commerce Company Limited* 3,000,0007 department stores company
ARt L e EHEARAA and supermarkets BEREAR
BERGERR
e
Xi‘an Yixin Property Management The PRC 1 RMB A IR 100% - 100%  Properties management Limited liability
Company Limited 536,385,7507C NEER company
B EENZERARRA ERELAR
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties Company ~ The PRC 1f RMB A\ & B 100% - 100%  Operation of shopping Limited liability
Limited* 252,800,0007C mall and properties company
RETEEXERAR management BRERAR
BERMDLR
UESS:
Xi'an Honghui Property Management  The PRC Ht RMB AR H 100% - 100%  Properties management Limited liability
Company Limited* 124,000,0007% NEER company
RREENEXEEARAA ERELAA
*  The English translation of the names of these companies is & ZERNAZBNEREHRZE - Z
for reference only. The official names of these companies ZNA)ZIER BB R R LE-
are in Chinese.
Note: it &t
(i) The subsidiary has ceased operation on 31 August 2018 () ZMBARBHREEEETEER

due to unsatisfactory operational results.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to
Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group in
which the Group has material non-controlling interests
(“NCI"). The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

16 REMEBLF (&)

TREFIAEEE—FEERNIFER
o ([FERER) 2HBRRE
TEERBEMIER - TX25 2875
BRI R W AR AER R B REEE
ZEHe

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

BE HE

—E_EHF —E-FF

+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H

1IE N 1@ B WEFEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARBF T

Revenue W 25 37,596 82,668

Loss for the period/year HiN,/ FRER (186,625) (207,785)
Loss for the period/year attributable BN N FEHE IR RE RS FE (L

to NCI &8 (30,084) (33,495)

Non-current assets EMEBEE 1,437,511 1,489,049

Current assets MEEE 532,182 659,728

Non-current liabilities ERBAGE (240,000) =

Current liabilities neBaRE (1,415,581) (1,610,068)

Net assets BEFE 314,112 538,709

Net assets attributable to NCI IEE R EEFRE 50,635 86,840

HESHEHEERERDA

B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZZ-Z_-Z&

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrIF=B1EH

17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF
PROPERTIES AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

F+-A=+—HILNEA

BAIKAREZ5)

17 u&&%%%&,\“ﬁ/ﬁEZﬁﬁ
g

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-ZB-BF R_T_ZTF
+=A=+—-B =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AR®TFIT
Prepayments for acquisitions WS 2 2 a5/ 18
of properties (see Note (a)) (2 HKaE@)) 1,555,682 1,485,125
Prepayments for acquisition W HE 1R 2 TR N RIR
of trademarks (see Note 34) (B Hrat34) 100,000 =
1,655,682 1,485,125

(a) Prepayments for acquisitions of properties

(a) WIBMEXZENRE

RMB’000

ARKTFT

At 1 April 2019 —hEmA—A 1,394,869
Additions 0 1,500
Interest expense capitalised BEER L ZFERX 88,756
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 M-E-EE=ZA=+—A0K 1,485,125

T -_TFMA—H

Interest expense capitalised EERNMEZ B 70,557
At 31 December 2020 R_B_FF+-_HA=+—H 1,555,682

The amounts represent partial payments made
by the Group for its intended acquisition of
commercial properties under development that
are situated in the PRC. On 4 December 2014, the
Group, through Ginwa Bell Tower, entered into
an acquisition agreement with Shanghai Huade
Investment Company Limited (“Huade Investment”),
pursuant to which Huade Investment agreed to
procure a project company to develop the above
properties in accordance with the requirements of
Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed
to purchase part of the above properties for an
aggregate consideration of RMB1,651,112,750.
The substantial construction of the commercial
properties commenced in October 2016. These
properties are intended to be used by the Group to
expand its retail operations.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

ZREEAERBRKBALAS
Bl 2 EEEEMEMEL 2
BRF-N—_E—WNE+_-A
MA - ASKBEFEBRSIEEER
L‘i?ﬂ@xﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?(ﬁé?—
WE DI B Eut - 1
ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%{ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ’&ﬂﬁﬁfx
SIEERERFAR L @
SHEERBENERBARK
1,651,112, 750 C B E & o it
Y -REYMENELEIREN =
E-RE+ARA -ZEWEHR
HAEERANERTEEXKS
Eo



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

s FFE T _HA=1—HIEABEA

(i)  On 30 December 2020, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement pursuant to which the Group
has subscribed for the participating shares in an unlisted
investment fund (the “Fund”) for an aggregate amount of
HK$17,000,000 which was equivalent to RMB14,307,000.
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve steady
and long-term returns through investment of commercial

real estate projects in the PRC.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB B THIUARKZ7)
18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Hhe@mEE

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
\—V—Eﬂz \Q—7—22£E
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ Tt AR T

Equity securities designated at FVOCI {§EAIZ AR ETE B HEH)t

(non-recycling) AEME2EWE (FaEE)
I FES

— Listed equity securities (see Note (i) — tFTM#EzmES (ZHE>0)) 167,700 182,400

Financial assets measured at FVPL BAREEBRHEE AER

LEREE
— Unlisted investment fund at —RARBEIERZIELTRE

fair value (see Note (i) He (LK) 14,307 -
182,007 182,400

Notes: Bt &t -
(i) These securities represent the 30,000,000 A-shares of () ZEBHFERLESBROHRZAFTET
Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. listed in the Shanghai Stock 230,000,000/ & E % (£E) A

Exchange. AIARR °

RZZBZZEF+_A=FTH &%
BT ZREIRZE B ANEBER
FEMBEES ([E&]) 228K
D REA 17,000,000 7T HHE
R AR#14,307,0007T° Z H & K
KREBRABBEREKRERER
HERBBEHREBERRERLBR-

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-—ZE_-_FF+_F=+—HILAEA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEAEBIEH BAIUAREZS)

19 INVENTORIES 19 F&
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-ZBZBF N-T_-_FTF
+=—A=+—-H =ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARKF T
Merchandises b 32,052 24,831
Low value consumables RE S ER 2,464 2,731
34,516 27,562
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRARX W IAGERRRZITFE
expense and included in the consolidated statement of SEONWT :
profit or loss is as follows:
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
éﬁ_—r_ E&zj:
'I'—)EJ_'i‘ H =AH _"l— =
LEA@EA IEFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T AR F T
Carrying amount of inventories sold E%7ZSEEE 161,264 252,183

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E_-_ZF+_-_HA=+—HILNEA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

20 FEUR AR AR K H fth FE UK

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

RZBZEFE R_ZT_ZFTF
+=HA=+—H =HA=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T AR T

Trade receivables from third parties, BUE=HER
net of loss allowance (2 HfiE200))

HER BB ARG

(see Note 20(a)) 23,167 34,893
Amounts due from related parties FEU A& A T RIE

(see Note 20(b)) (EH17E200b)) = 2,693
Other receivables from third parties Hoth W 5E = 5 kI8

(see Note 20(c)) (B HtiE20(c)) 194,823 105,267
Financial assets measured at REEKATECERHEE

amortised cost 217,990 142,853
Value added tax recoverable R I {E R 2,692 23,948
Deposits e 16,748 4,412
Prepayments TE RIE 21,805 21,984

259,235 193,197

Except for deposits of RMB1,816,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB1,788,000), all of the trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

Bizd AR 1,816,000 (ZZE=F
F=ZHA=+—H8: AR, 788000
ﬁ)&l\ FT 78 JFE Y BR 3 B L th e Uk
R —FAWEB RER ST L -

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of loss allowance) with the
following ageing analysis (based on the invoice
date) as of the end of the reporting period:

F+-A=+—HILNEA

20

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

FE W2 R 5K B2 L £ LUK
(%)

(a)

MR 2 AT

ST A FE Y BR 3R B2 EL A FE UL TR 2
WERR (EHMREBRE®) R®R
HHRZER A BRR ST
T~

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

R-ZB-BF R_T_ZTF

+=A=+—H =HA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ Tt ARBFT

Less than 1 month PR —1E A 8,993 9,776
More than 1 month but — @A EELH=MA

less than 3 months 102 59

More than 3 months ={EAE 14,072 25,058

23,167 34,893

Trade receivables from third parties relate to credit
card centres owned by financial institutions and
tenants operating in the Group’s department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets for whom there
were no recent history of default and have a good
track record with the Group. Further details on the
Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade debtors are set out in Note 29(a).

Amounts due from related parties

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

(b)

W 38 = 75 BR 5K B pR B TS R
BEZ2ERFRYLERAEREE
% BYR O RBRTISEE
ZHEPEBE mZEWERER
WHETHENGZE BAEE
BRIz HERH - FHAAEE
EEBRREREREREEZE
ERk#E—TEREH M T
29(a) °

PR BAE A T 5KE
FEMRE A LRI REER 2
B e A 48 ] T 2R KA



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

20 FE Ui R K % H At FE U K
(%)
HibfEWE =558

(c) Other receivables from third parties (c)

Included in the balance are receivables of
RMB185,922,000 at 31 December 2020 (31 March
2020: RMB Nil) due from a third party prepaid
card management company (the “Prepaid Card
Management Company”).

Certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Relevant
Subsidiaries”) have begun cooperation with the
Prepaid Card Management Company since 2009
for its provision of services in managing the issue
and usage of cash coupon card (single-use prepaid
card) (the “Cash Coupon Card”) for the Group's
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets
(the “Relevant Stores”). Pursuant to the agreement
entered into by the Relevant Subsidiaries and the
Prepaid Card Management Company (the “Original
Cooperation Agreement”), the Prepaid Card
Management Company issues Cash Coupon Card
for and provides related management services to
Relevant Stores. The Relevant Subsidiaries shall pay
the amount charged for the issue of Cash Coupon
Card to the Prepaid Card Management Company,
while the Prepaid Card Management Company shall
settle the amount consumers having consumed in
Relevant Stores using the Cash Coupon Card to the
Relevant Subsidiaries.

Based on the assessment of the circumstances and
prospect of such cooperation with the Prepaid Card
Management Company, the Relevant Subsidiaries
entered into a termination agreement with the
Prepaid Card Management Company on 31 October
2019 to terminate the Original Cooperation
Agreement and the cooperation with the Prepaid
Card Management Company in respect of the Cash
Coupon Card thereunder, pursuant to which no
new Cash Coupon Card will be issued and sold by
the Prepaid Card Management Company.

R-FB_FFE+_A=1—
H &#+PEsERE=ZFE
NEEBRERARA([ENMNF
FEEARZEBREARE
185,922,000 (ZE =T F =
A=+—H: AREZT) -

RABETHEB AR (THEEEM
BRAB _ZETNFMIKE
BNRERABETEE BE
ASENES BYH LR
HBAmS (THEEFE]) AT
AERBBER(-—BEERER
) (TABRDIEHEEER
% RIBFAENB AR RENR
EERARILNGE ([REE
B l) - BNREEREQR /A
PIE BT BRI R L ARRE B 12
% - M B RRRENRE
B RR A EITE B R
IR BN RE R A R AE M
BRRRAEHEEERABYRE
MEMERENSR -

RBEHEBNREE QRS ER
SUMAT R RS - BN B AR
R-ZF-NF+A=+—HER
NREERRFT LR IEW - &
IEREERZERER TNRBN R
EEARAEB RN E Rt
BENREREQRBTETNHEE
eV

HE S HHEBRERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B Z =T =FF+=-HA=+—HI1-NEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEURBR Fh & H b FE W FX
(continued) (&)

(c) Other receivables from third parties ()0 HttEWE=FE (&)

(continued)

At the same time, Ginwa Investments agreed to
enter into a guarantee contract with the Relevant
Subsidiaries to provide joint and several guarantee
for the consumption amount of the issued Cash
Coupon Card during the period from 1 November
2019 to 31 October 2022, which will be settled
according to actual consumption on an annual
basis.

The Company has assessed the credit risk associated
with the receivables from the Prepaid Card
Management Company. The expected credit loss
of RMB1,036,000 (year ended 31 March 2020:
RMB586,477,000) had been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the nine
months ended 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations
and the rules related to the Cash Coupon Card,
consumers can still use the issued Cash Coupon
Card for consumption in the Relevant Stores
after the termination of the Original Cooperation
Agreement, and the Prepaid Card Management
Company remains obliged to repay the consumption
amount of the abovementioned Cash Coupon Card
to the Relevant Subsidiaries. In order to continue
to abide by applicable laws and regulations and
maintain normal business operation, the Relevant
Stores continue to accept consumptions by Cash
Coupon Card during the daily operations.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

B ek & EAEK B AR
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AAR B HHEBENREREA
AIEWARIBEEENEERR-
TEHEEEE AR®1,036,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(c) Other receivables from third parties

(continued)

After the end of the reporting period, the
Group reached a preliminary agreement with
the Prepaid Card Management Company and
Huade Investment. The final instalment of
RMB414,000,000 for the acquisition of commercial
properties under development (see Note 17(a)) not
yet paid by the Group to Huade Investment will be
paid by the Prepaid Card Management Company
to settle the creditor’s rights of the Group in the
corresponding receivables from the Prepaid Card
Management Company.

As of 31 December 2020, the total amount
of the Cash Coupon Card issued but not yet
consumed is approximately RMB684,306,000.
After comprehensively considering the amount
of Cash Coupon Card that is expected to be
consumed in the future, as well as the economic
benefit inflows that the guarantee and the
above collection measures may bring, long-term
provisions of RMB288,593,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB94,046,000) had been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
31 December 2020 and provisions for obligations
from Cash Coupon Card of RMB194,547,000 (year
ended 31 March 2020: RMB94,046,000) had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the nine months ended 31 December
2020 accordingly.

20 EWERFRK

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

s FFE T _HA=1—HIEABEA
(BrIF=EHEH

BRIAAREZ3)

H tb JE W 5K

(%)

(c)

HitEWE =5 7EA (&)

REEBRE ASE S HEN
REERNT MEEREERY S
E-ASBERWEERPEE
YIRS EERE 2 &%
— HiFk I8 A R #414,000,0007C
(REsE17(0)) B RTEN RE B
NAEIZ  LUBHEAEBERI

TR A 2 AR 2
fEE

BE-FT-BF+=A=+-
R ECEARR LB

ReREN B AR 684,306,000
TLe AEBRAEE BB AKSE
FHENEB RS  RIRE
AN st W RS e AT RE 4R 1 EE AR 2R
HEEFZAARL RZEE
F+-_A=+—B2HREUBARK
MERANBEREZRBREARE
288,593,000 (ZE =T F =
A=+—8: AKR%094,046,000
L) EREE-_T-_ZTF+_A
= Elthﬂlﬁ,Z%/\m?féﬁTﬁ'%
NEREH RETBEARK
194,547,00075(Eti#$;23
FZR=1T—HILFEE: ARK
94,046,0007T) °

HE S HHEBRERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &%=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

7—7

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

;:\E

(BRIF=BEEH

F+_H=+—HIENEA
BRIUKAREZ3])

(a) fﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ BE#E:

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-ZEBE-Z2F RIZT_THF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Cash at bank and on hand in the  4R& B AR KRIE FER1T
consolidated statement EERFERE
of financial position 393,556 500,806
Less: restricted cash at bank B RRIBTIR S
(see Note (i) (R H1aEa) (288,590) (475,075)
Cash and cash equivalents in KERERERZIRAER
the consolidated cash ﬁéwfﬁlﬁ B
flow statement 104,966 25,731

Note: Bzt -

(i)  Restricted cash at bank at 31 December 2020 mainly () MRZE_ZEF+_A=+—H
represented bank deposits of RMB282,897,000 (31 aﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬁiﬁithﬁﬁx
March 2020: RMB443,090,000) pledged to secure 1S & B R 17 B 5K if 5 17 &9
the Group’s bank loans (see Note 24(c)), bank ’fﬁﬁﬁ XA R #282,897,000

deposits of RMB4,408,000 sealed up by courts as
a result of legal proceedings against the Group's
subsidiaries.

The Group’s operations of department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC are
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of RMB out of
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

T(ZE_EF=ZA=+—
H: ARK#443,090,0007T)
(R M EE24(c)) ~ ASTE A&
& BT /B8 2 &) #9512 57 5A T 1
FRBHNIBITERARE
4,408,0007T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-ZFE _-ZFF 1= ﬁ +—HI1EAEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SBIEH  TAIAARKZ2)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 SR{T&EFERFERE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEZTBELEZEBZYHE

financing activities

Payables for
Other interest Lease
Bank loans borrowings expenses liabilities Total
Ef
RTERN HttfEE MERX HERE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25)

(Bizt24) (Hizt24) (Brit22) (Hz25)

At 1 April 2020 R-8-RERA-A 2,558,452 148,951 62,954 85,109 2,855,466
Changes from financing cash ~ BEREHELH:

flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans ~ HEHITEH Pﬁ’%?ﬂ 717,984 - - - 717,984
Proceeds from new other borrowings ¥ 2t (5 S 5175 208 - 1,640,000 - - 1,640,000
Repayment of bank loans ERRTER (1,645,862) - - - (1,645,862)
Repayment of other borrowings BB EMEE - (288,951) - - (288,951)
Other finance costs paid EtENRERA - - (232,148) - (232,148)
Capital element of lease rentals paid E 4z &R &5 - - - (21,644) (21,644)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 822 H 855 - - - (4,098) (4,098)
Total changes from financing HERSNEZ DT

cash flows (927,878) 1,351,049 (232,148) (25,742) 165,281
Exchange adjustments ERHZ (15,119) - (598) - (15,717)
Other changes: Hit25:
Interest expenses, bank charges and 8B ST FEE RAM

other finance costs (see Note 6(a))  BEKK (2 it6(a)) - - 109,518 4,098 113,616
Capitalised borrowing costs EMUEERA (o)

(see Note 6(a)) - - 70,557 - 70,557
Increase in lease liabilties from ~ EAf T U B4 Z

entering into new leases REAEEN

during the period - - - 17411 17411
Total other changes Hp2HaR - - 180,075 21,575 201,650
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE+ZA=1-H 1,615,455 1,500,000 10,283 80,942 3,206,680
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-ET_-ZFF+=-F=+—HILhfEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BIEZH1E8 TAIUARKEZS)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 SR{T&EFERFERE (&)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEZTBELEZEBZYHER
financing activities (continued) (%&)
Payables for
Other interest Lease
Bank loans barrowings eXpenses liabilties Total
FEft
RIER HfhfEE HERX Eaf At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEBTFT AEBTFT ANRBTT AEBTFT
(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25)

(Bizt24) (Hr24) (Br22) (Hr225)

At 31 March 2019 RZB-NEZA=t-H 2,223,401 141,000 20,147 = 2,384,548

Impact on initial application of ~ HAEREBHEHR LR

HKFRS 16 #1652 HE - - - 108,445 108,445
At 1 April 2019 RZB-N5BA-A 2,223,401 141,000 20,147 108,445 2,492,993
Changes from financing cash ~ BEREHELH:

flows:

Proceeds from new bank loans HERTETEIE 698,000 - - - 698,000
Proceeds from new other horrowings xﬁﬁwﬁ‘éﬁﬁ’%;& - 87,172 - - 87172
Repayment of hank loans EEHIEH (377 ,466) - - - (377,466)
Repayment of other borowings BB EMEE - (79,700) - - (79,700)
Other finance costs paid EtEMRERA - - (159,009) = (159,009)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 {42 &AHH - - - (23571) (23,571)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 822 H 855 - - - (6,503) (6,503)
Total changes from financing cash ~ REE 4R EFHEE

flows 320,534 1472 (159,009) (30,074) 138,923
Exchange adjustments Ex@g 14517 479 533 - 15,529
Other changes: Ht 29
Interest expenses, bank charges and FIE B RITTEEREM

other finance costs (see Note 6(a)  BLARA (Zfi56(3)) = = 112,527 6,503 119,030
Capitalised borrowing costs ERLBERA

(see Note 6(a)) (Bhi:6) - - 88,756 - 88,756
Increase in lease liabilities from ~ ERuHRNZAERE

entering into new leases during 211

the year - - - 235 235
Total other changes HipEees - - 201,283 6,738 208,021
At 31 March 2020 RZE-EE=H=1-H 2,558,452 148,951 62,954 85,109 2,855,466

2 3 2 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow
statement for leases comprise the following:

S FF T _A=1+—HINEA
(BRIFAEHEH BRIKAREZS)

RITEERFERES (A)

HEZREeRHARE
uJF)\Z imugfﬁmf Ei\ E

B

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

BZE HE

—EBE-EHF —E-FTE

+=A=+—H =A=+—H

1@ B WFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARMTFIT

Within operating cash flows KEREMEN 781 1,059
Within financing cash flows MEERESREN 24,268 30,074
25,049 31,133

These amounts relate to the following:

HZECHRENTRIAAM:

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020

ﬁz H=E
—E-EF —EETF
+=A=+—H =HA=+—H
1IE A {8 B WEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBF T
Lease rentals paid BEffEe 25,049 31,133
L SBEERERAA
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be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or
in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on

demand.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZ _—ZE _-_ZT#+_-A=+—HIt @A
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BIEZH1E8 TAIUARKEZS)
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ENERAREMENSRK
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-B-BF RIZT=FT
+=A=+t—8B =ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMTF T
Trade payables arising from: FENBEFEANTNRBES
— Concession sales — T EEEE 350,556 751,555
— Purchase of inventories -BERE 19,857 50,193
370,413 801,748
Amounts due to related parties FE 158 & IE (R HEEG))
(see Note (i) 207,230 3,749
Other payables and accrued expenses: HfthfET X M EEHE A :
— Payables for staff related costs —ENzETIHBER 28,626 28,633
— Payables for interest expenses and ~ —ERNMEXHEEEZ X FK
transaction costs on borrowings Vi 10,283 62,954
— Deposits from concessionaries — R ERAERLE
and customers 26,826 30,154
— Dividends payables — RS 3,661 3,661
— Amounts due to a third party —-ER—RE=F A
(see Note (ii)) ( 52 Bt aEi)) 58,812 -
— Others —HAth 91,686 104,943
219,894 230,345
Financial liabilities measured REEKATEZEMAE
at amortised cost 797,537 1,035,842
Other taxes payable FE 5 E At 75 18 14,585 1,985
812,122 1,037,827
All of the trade and other payables are expected to T FE 1~ BR 3K J2 H 4th FE - SRTB BR G AR

— 4 B S R B U BB WA B
BRRIREREIE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22

Notes:

(i) The balance as at 31 December 2020 are unsecured
and non-interest bearing, of which an amount of
RMB 164,000,000 has no fixed term of repayment and the
remaining amounts are expected to be settled in 2021.

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

s FFE T _HA=1—HIEABEA

(BISBIEH HAUARELS))
EARMRE AR (&)
Pt e -

() RZEZZTE+—_A=+—BHz#%
BRAEEEREAE EFEBEAR
#164,000,0007T 3 £ [E 7F 32 ZCHER A
M REERN T - —FE AN

(i) RERAREEM 28 NBEHN

expected to be settled in 2021. —E—FREF-
Ageing analysis SRR 2 AT
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables ﬁ)\ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ R K2 LA JE ) R 2 FE ST BR
with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity FRMERRZEEA B 2 RE DT
date) as of the end of the reporting period: IS
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-B-BF R_T_ZTF
+=B=+—-H =ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr AREFT
Due within one month or on demand # —1& A R | Bk 8 Bk & f+F 370,413 801,748
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23 ERIAE
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-ZZB-ZBF RZZT_ZTF
+=HA=+—HB =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKTFT
Contract liabilities in relation to FREEAHAENARARE
customer loyalty programme 5,735 5,170
Contract liabilities in relation to FRENEPRIBENERARE
prepayments from customers ( 5B 3E(0)
(see Note (i) 96,158 79,330
101,893 84,500

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied as of the end of the
reporting period. The Group expects the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations will
be recognised as sales of goods and gross revenue from
concession sales when the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer.

ERAERERREHRIEERERE
TZBHNEEZRZEBHRE -AKH
BH RAEPEEE MR -

DEZEREBEITROBEENX B ERKHE
R IHE P o MR AT AR S E R A U

.
o

HE S HHEBRERAT
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Bt 75 R R Y RE

ments

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-—T-TF+_HA=1+
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

Note:

(i) Movements in contract liabilities in
prepayments from customers

—HIEAEA

23 FRIEME (&

Hiit

relation to (i)

BRENEFPRIBZARBEZSD)

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

BZE H=E
—EZEF —E-F

+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H

IEhfEA IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®T T

Balance at 1 April

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result
of recognising revenue during the period/
year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the period/
year

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
receipts in advance from customers
during the period/year in respect of
prepaid stored value cards

Balance at 31 December/March

R A — B #& &
EEtABY, FzaRaE
REAR,F AR R ES T
WPz aRARE

ERERN,FARBNRER
TRl E P FIAMmIE N & R
BfE

R+ZA=+—HR=A
=+ — B

79,330 42,001
(55,518) (13,879)
72,346 51,208
96,158 79,330

The unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from
sales of goods and gross revenue from concession sales

expected to be recognised as revenue within
on demand.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(@) The Group’s short-term bank and other (a)
borrowings are analysed as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

24 BITRHEMEE

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

AEEZEHRTRAMEER
ZHWMT
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-ZBE-EF RZZTZZTF
+=ZA=+—H =ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARETF T

Bank loans:

— secured by the Group’s bank
deposits and guaranteed by the
Company or a subsidiary of the
Group

— secured by the Group’s bank
deposits

— secured by the Group’s land and
buildings and guaranteed by the
Company and/or Mr. Wu Yijian
(an ex-director of the Company)

— secured by the Group’s land and
buildings and guaranteed by
Mr. Wu Yijian and/or subsidiaries
of the Group

— secured by the Group’s land and
buildings and guaranteed by
subsidiaries of the Group, a
subsidiary of Qujiang Financial
Holdings and Mr. Wu Yijian

— secured by bank deposits of a
subsidiary of Qujiang Financial
Holdings

— guaranteed by Qujiang Financial
Holdings, subsidiaries of the
Group and Mr. Wu Yijian

RITER
—AAREE 2 RITFERIER
A AARERAE
B — ] Pl /B8 2 A HE AR
235,455
—AREKE 2 RITHERIER
# -
—URKEZ T RETIE
B YARARE R,
FR—BRLE (KR
RIEES) ZR -
—UAREE 2 L3 MEFHE
B WHR—BEAE
&,/ RAEENERE
PR -
—UAREB 2 T3 RETE
HAR - I AR BB
ANE TS RER —
BT B 2 A B R — BR ST
R -
— AT & RO AR — R B /B
REZRITERIEER

— T2 RER - AEE
B AR MR —EREE

EIR 30,000

404,452

18,000

300,000

150,000

70,000

80,000

30,000

265,455

1,052,452

HESHEHEERERDA

B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B Z =T =FF+=-HA=+—HI1-NEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 ROTKREMEE (&)
(continued)
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other () AEEZEHRTREAMEE
borrowings are analysed as follows: DHWMT: (&)

(continued)

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

R=B_BF R_FT_TF
+t=A=+-R =A=t+-8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTFE

Other borrowings: HiE e :
— secured by the Group’s land and —AREE 2 L RIEFE
buildings, and guaranteed by a B WHAAREE—H
subsidiary of the Group and BRG] MR —BREA
Mr. Wu Yijian IR = 10,000
— secured by the Group’s equity —UAREE 2 ERmFFER
securities (see Note 24(c)) (2K E24(c)) — 120,800
— guaranteed by a subsidiary of the — BASE KB A RE
Group (see Note 32(a)) R (A HaE32(a)) 690,000 -
— guaranteed by Qujiang Financial — BT mIERER
Holdings 110,000 =
800,000 130,800
Add: current portion of long-term n: RESRITE R Z BV ER
bank loans (see Note 24(b)) E81n (R Kat24(b)) 701,000 265,000
Bond payables R ES - 17,634
1,766,455 1,465,886

2 3 8 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 BORAMEE (&)
(continued)
(b) The Group's long-term bank and other (b) XEBZRHBRITRAMEBE
borrowings are analysed as follows: P N
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

R-IEZZFE RN _FTF
+=A=+—H =RA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARMFIr

Bank loans: RITER
— secured by the Group’s investment ~ —ARNEE 7 IRE Y% E+
property and land and buildings b K 1T K R R UG A B
and future income rights and EIRAR - WHARF K
guaranteed by the Company and R AEER
Mr. Wu Yijian 400,000 432,000
— guaranteed by a subsidiary of — BT S EER MBS
Quijiang Financial Holdings NAEER 70,000 -
— secured by the Group’s bank —AAREBZBITERKR
deposits and/or land and buildings B} 43 R F R
and guaranteed by the Company WHARR R SHAE
and/or a subsidiary of the Group B —EHEAR K, 5K
and/or Mr. Wu Yijian R—BRAEEER 880,000 1,074,000
1,350,000 1,506,000
Other borrowings: HiEE:
— secured by the Group’s land and —DARER 2 -3 RIEFE
buildings and guaranteed by G == e A e = B
Quijiang Financial Holdings and & B 7 £ B B J X R 4
subsidiaries of the Group s 700,000 =
2,050,000 1,506,000
Less: current portion of long-term bank g : £ EiER77E 7 2 BN EA 36
loans (see Note 24(a)) 9 ( B HTaE24(a)) (701,000) (265,000)
1,349,000 1,241,000
Bond payables FEHEH = 517
1,349,000 12477517

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z—F-FF+_-A=+—HIEAEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 RITRHEMEE (&)
(continued)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other (b) *EBZRHAKRITREAMEER
borrowings are analysed as follows: DM : (&)
(continued)
The Group’s long-term bank and other borrowings AEE RHABRITRAMEER
are repayable as follows: T 5 EAREME R -
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

RZEZZ2F R_ZT_FTF
+=HA=+—8B =ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx ARETFIT

Within 1 year —FR 701,000 265,000
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEEMFNR 465,000 707,000
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEZBRFNRN 704,000 315,517
After 5 years hF& 180,000 219,000
2,050,000 1,506,517
All of the non-current interest-bearing bank and PEJERNERGT BIRIT R EMEE
other borrowings are carried at amortised cost. 15 127 6 $5 Ak 2N A B o #E 4 JE B HA
None of the non-current interest-bearing bank and HERITEEMESTEES N —
other borrowings is expected to be settled within FRNEE o
one year.

(c) The following assets and their respective () THEERHEZBZERAER
carrying values as at the end of the reporting HEMRSWIEAUEREE
period are pledged to secure the Group’s BzRTREMEE 2R
bank and other borrowings:

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

R-ZEBE-ZEF RZZT_ZTF
+=B=+—H8H =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Frx ARETFT

Property, plant and equipment M- WE KRR 2,743,000 2,857,743
Investment property B 1,265,300 1,265,300
Other financial assets (see Note 18) HEhemEE (AHE18) - 182,400
Cash at bank (see Note 21(a)(i)) RITEETT (M aE21(a)0)) 282,897 443,090

4,291,197 4,748,533

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA
(BRIFFHFHER TAUAREZZ])

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

25

(continued)

(d) Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, such borrowings would become
repayable on demand. At 31 December 2020, none
of the covenants relating to the bank and other
borrowings had been breached.

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable
as follows:

(d)

24 SRITRHEMEBE (&)

REBETRITREMEERER
TESHMEE Y BERTHHRZE
REHF - WAEEERRHE  Z
EHEEBEXNAREREE R
—E-TEF+_A=+—H #
BmERABBRITREMEERNRZ

%‘go
25 HEAE
R-ZZE-_FEE+-_A=+—H FHE
BEMNEFHAT
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020

R-BE-E2FE RN _FTF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARKFIT

Within 1 year —F KN
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNR
After 2 years but within 5 years MEERERFNRN
After 5 years hF &

16,864 23,198
12,057 13,348
26,399 24,169
25,622 24,394
64,078 61,911
80,942 85,109

HE S HHEBRERAT
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B Z =T =FF+=-HA=+—HI1-NEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 BRELEURDIF2RS

TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share award scheme (a) BRTEEFE

On 17 October 2014 (the “Adoption Date”), the
directors of the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a mean of
rewarding and retaining employees of the Group
and certain eligible participants and to attract
suitable personnel for further development with the
Group. A trust has been set up for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock
Exchange with cash contributed by the Group, and
to hold such shares until they are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to
time, at its sole and absolute discretion, select any
employee of the Group and eligible participants
including suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers and other service providers (other than
those specifically excluded as stated in the Share
Award Scheme) for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and grant such number of awarded shares
to any selected employee of the Group and eligible
participants at nil consideration. The directors of
the Company are entitled to impose any conditions
(including a period of continued service within the
Group after the award) with respect to the vesting
of the awarded shares.

The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the
Adoption Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of
(i) the tenth anniversary date of the Adoption Date;
and (ii) such date of early termination as determined
by the directors of the Company.

On 18 May 2020, the directors of the Company
resolved to terminate the Share Award Scheme and
all shares under the Share Award Scheme have been
sold by the Group.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E-—ZFF+_-A=1+—HIFL1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Movements in current taxation in the
consolidated statement of financial position
are as follows:

2EE:

Nine months

(BIESHHEH TAILUAREZS])
27 MBERRRAZFAEH

(a) HEMBRRTRAZAHMHIA

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZE HE
—ECEHF —EETF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
IENEA IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARMTFIT
Balance of income tax payable at 1 April 70 A — B FEfT TS 54568 34,337 38,970
Provision for income tax on the NERE AT R B &R
estimated taxable profits for the A 2 FTiS fi 4
period/year (see Note 7(a)) (RHKtE7(a)) 1,668 3,394
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BAEERNRE (B5)
prior years (see Note 7(a)) B (R MaE7a)) 17 (2,166)
Income tax refunded/(paid) during the HAR “FRZEE, (B
period/year BB 610 (5,861)
Balance of income tax payable at 31 ®R+Z-_A=+—HXK
December/March ZA=+—HBEfMNZ
FT 15 5 45 &3 36,632 34,337

HESHEHEERERDA
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27

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 &%=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

Notes to the Financial Statements

?ﬂ%}ﬂﬁ}R%WZFﬁ B

E_ZF+_HA=+—HILNEA
(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

(b) ERRBEEHBREERAE:

Fair value
adjustments
on property,
plant and
Expected  equipment, Interest
Financial ~ credit losses investment capitalisation
assetsat  on financial property and on
Accrued  fair value assets intangible  prepayment
expenses through other measured at  assets and for
and deferred comprehensive  amortised related acquisition of
income income cost depreciation properties Net
0% HER
ROAETE  REHHA RE RENX
BHZHHA ity REVEEZ KE9=
Eitfixk Ef2EhE oREE: DNAERER  EARE
BEUA WeREE RHGEER RERE NEEAL BE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTR  ARBTT  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETZ
Deferred tax arising from: ~ EFJIZBELY
BEHA:
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA-A 2,597 12,742 2,900 (595,015) (39,961) (616,737)
(Charged)/credited to the (M8) /s \Ea B
consolidated statement of profit (2 f:#7(3))
or loss (see Note 7(3)) (261) - 7,481 20,106 (22,189) 5,137
Credited/(charged) to reserves 3t A/ (118 Eif
(see Note 10) (BHiz10) - 10,531 = (2,185) = 8,346
At 31 March 2020 R-E_%fF
=REr—F 2,336 23273 10,381 (577,094) (62,150) (603,254)
Effect on deferred tax balances  HiZEHHETHBELH
resulting from a change in tax #9122 (£ H3173)
rate (see Note 7(a)) 517 - 4,388 5,318 - 10,723
Credited/(charged) to the A/ (ME)RABER
consolidated statement of (Rl
profit or loss (see Note 7(a)) 86 (3,732) 65,858 (17,639) 44573
Charged to reserves (see Note 10) MEEE (ZATE10) - (23.273) - (25,682) - (48,955)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-Z%
tZA=+-H 2939 - 11,037 (531,100) (79,789) (596,913)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

E_TFE ﬁ T—HIEABEA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SBIEH  TAIAARKZ2)
INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF MBERRTRAZAEH
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) ( )
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and () REEMBRAREINIELE
liabilities recognised in the consolidated REEERAEBHE
statement of financial position
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-B-EF RZIZT=FT
+=A=+—H8H =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARKFIT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the R4E& B IGIR N RIER 2
consolidated statement of financial FL%RIEQF
position 13,976 35,990
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERE SRR R ERZ
the consolidated statement of REFRIEEE
financial position (610,889) (639,244)
(596,913) (603,254)

(d)

(e)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax
losses of RMB641,113,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB447,750,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The remaining unused tax
losses at 31 December 2020 will expire on or before
the financial period ending 31 December 2025.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2020, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
amounted to RMB1,465,807,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB1,662,186,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
RMB73,290,000 (31 March 2020: RMB83,109,000)
have not been recognised in respect of the tax
that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits
from these subsidiaries will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

(d) RERZEEHEEE

(e)

R FE2()FT &k 2 & 5T B -
NEEW RERE BARBAHRE
B8 A R #641,113,0007T (=
E-_TF=A=1+—08: AR¥
447,750,0007T) 2 IEE T IE B
E RAAKEEBEHRG LR

REEET KA RSG 5&7}5}?&“
R A DA ED R & 18 o E’\_ ==l
TFE+-A=+—HZHBTEXF
ARG EESREE_S_1F
+-A=+—HItFERERESZ
Al J& i ©

AERZELEBEAE

R-_E-_EF+_A=+—8"
B BB TP B S 2 BB
RAIZ AP mF ALK
=8 5 N R#¥1,465,807,0007C
—EZTF=RA= + BH:A
R #1,662,186,0007T ) ° IEIERL
I8 & & AR%73,290,0007T ( —
E_TF=-FA=1+—H: AR¥
83,109,0007T ) M KRG IE % E
1%m/m%IJZ%>‘I&W§HZWEHﬁ
%L/\ﬁﬁu/u'%ﬁ$ j:]: %ljux
EhEWB AR ZREBERE
ETREZENB AR ZmFA
RATRER AT TB R A5 2R F LA D K ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B Z =T =FF+=-HA=+—HI1-NEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EXR-FERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EZIHED
The reconciliation between the opening and AR BiR S mE 2 B Eb D 2 AT
closing balances of each component of the Group’s %E@X%ﬁﬁ%Ziﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁé%éT&
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated ﬁxiﬁi§$#ﬁt§tﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬂ3ﬁ$
RNRAIZ B ERERE D 2 BB FIE

statement of changes in equity. Details of the

changes in the Company’s individual components of AT
equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:
Shares held
Share Share  under share Contributed Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium  award scheme  Capital reserve surplus reserve losses Total
RERGER
R RtEE HesEz RS ERGE N EiRE b | ait

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARET7 AREFT ARETR ARET7 ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
(Note 28(c)  (Note 28(@)f) ~ (Note 28a)i})  (Note 28(a)ii)  (Note 28(di)  (Note 28(d\i))

(Witg)  (Wstasaly) — (Wistosi)  (Wostasii)) — (Woit2saiy) — (iiz2seini)

Balance at 1 April 2019 R=%F-AEMA-A 199,369 1,136,595 297) 44,98 995,255 207,962 (304,790) 2,216,397

Changes in equity for the AFEERED:

year.
Total comprehensive income A% E 2 EH &£

for the year = = = = - 148,362 (1,015) 147,347
Equity-settled share-based ~ RREEEHRAEA

transactions % = = - 51T - - - 5T
Transfer between reserves  EREER - - = (36,598) S = 36,598 -

Balance at 31 March 200 W=E-2&
and 1 April 2020 ZA=t-Ak
“E-2EMA-A
e 199,369 1,136,595 292 8,907 995,255 356,324 (269,207) 242431

Changes in equity for the AHBEREE:

period:
Total comprehensive income 192 A& 2%

for the period = = = - - (157,572) (666,033) (823,605)
Termination of share award 41} 22815t

scheme (see Note 266)  (2H13226(a)) - - 29 2,530 = = - 392

Balance at 31 December 200 R=E-F%
+-A=t-RHEH 199,369 1,136,595 - 6377 995,255 198,752 (935,240) 1,601,108
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company and
holder of the convertible preference
shares attributable to the period

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
nine months ended 31 December 2020 (year

ended 31 March 2020: RMB Nil).

(ii) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company and
holder of the convertible preference
shares attributable to the previous
financial year, approved during the

period

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved for the nine
months ended 31 December 2020 (year ended
31 March 2020: RMB Nil).

(c) Share capital
(i) Issued share capital

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

S FF T _A=1+—HINEA
(BRIFAEHEH BRIKAREZS)

28 EX -RERKRE (&)

(b) BER
(i)

(ii)

() B=A&
(i)

ERRAIRRR LR ESE
RIFHE A AR A TR

=

seh

AAREEWTNERIKN
BHE_ZT_ZTF+=-A
=+—BLEAERZER
R (B2 _FF=
A=+—HLEFE: AR
BT -

ARRRRR LR ES
RIFBEAEM L —BIBF
EEMKRE (REREH#
)

HE-_Z_ZF+= A
=+—HLEIER W&
o E— B EBRFE R R E
R (B2 _ZTF=
A=+—BLEEFE: AR
WEZIT) o

ERTRE

Nine months ended

31 December 2020

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE-%-%% HE-_T-TH
+tZA=t+—-HLAER ZA=Z+-HLEE
Number Number of
of shares shares
RO#E Rin g H
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AE¥EFRT FiR AREFTT

Ordinary shares, issued and
fully paid:

At 1 April and 31 December/
March

Convertible preference
shares, issued and fully
paid:

At 1 April and 31 December/
March

Total share capital

ERTRARE
EER:

RMA—B-
+-R=+t-HE
=A=+—-H

BRTRAR
TRRELRK:

RIA—H-
+-RA=t—-HK
=A=+—-H

et

1,149,695 103,602 1,149,695 103,602

1,177,068 95,767 1,177,068 95,767

2,326,763 199,369 2,326,763 199,369

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Issued share capital (continued)
Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration
paid for shares held under the Share Award
Scheme.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii) Capital reserve

At 31 December 2020 and 31 March 2020,
capital reserve comprises the following:

—  the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(r)(ii);

—  the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

—  the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2011
and 2012; and

—  the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

(iv) Contributed surplus

(v)

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in Note 2(g).

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

28 EX -RERKRE (&)

(d) REzUEERRAR (&)
(iii) BAXfEfE

R—ZZE_Z2F+ = A
=S+—BR-BE-_EF=
A=+—H EXfFER
AT &IE:

- BFARAEZEUR
ANEEZEE KRR
HEE 2 MARITER
BREAREAHZA
AEZBD TIERE
B 5E2(r)(ii) Bk LA B $R
MR 3R 2 B 5T R
RIER

-  ARRBERZ=ZZZ
SEENA-TN\B#E
TZEBEEHRMET
LB EEEER
AR 10 X P W B 2 —
IR B R R Z B &
B aERELE
=5

- RZE2E—Fk=F
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(e)

(vi) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of other financial
assets held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(f) and

2(k)(i).

(vii) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(viii)Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(v).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-ZFE _-ZFF 1= ﬁ +—HI1EAEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SBIEH  TAIAARKZ2)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 BEXR -HEERE (&)
(continued)

(e) Capital management (continued) () BEXEE (£F)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes bank and other borrowings and
lease liabilities), plus unaccrued proposed dividends,
less cash at bank and on hand. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

In order to improve the Group’s capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt

AEELRALFEIRAERNL
ROHEMEREERERE -FL
hims  LRABRFEENDRES
ilﬁﬁ' %E (EI’FETE%ETT&/HJM

/JEHETT T&?”Efﬁioi‘“iﬂ%é
BARBIEFTA R eb 0 R AR FT R
KB, o

%E&EKEIZ§$ % $’§

%E %ééﬁ%ﬁﬂxf““"g%%ﬁm@ﬁ

financing or sell assets to reduce debt. BMEXLEEEURDES -

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31 N_E-_TF+-_A=+—HK

December 2020 and 31 March 2020 are as follows: :$_$¢ A=+—8 &#H
BFBEEHEARLLENT

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R=-B-BF RN_T_FTF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARKFT
Current liabilities: mMBBEE:
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,766,455 1,465,886
Lease liabilities HEAE 16,864 23,198
Non-current liabilities: FEmBBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,349,000 1,241,517
Lease liabilities HEEE 64,078 61,911
Total debt (EEE 3,196,397 2,792,512
Less: cash at bank and on hand B RITEFRFEERES (393,556) (500,806)
Adjusted net debt RARFER 2,802,841 2,291,706
Adjusted capital BRABER 2,037,972 2,708,718
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio EHABFEEHREA LR 138% 85%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are RRAR REEMMBARBRDE
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. SNSRI 2 B N FE EARR

HE S HHEBRERAT
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Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 # % =
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as
most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. Exposure to credit, liquidity and
interest rate arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investment in another entity.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place, and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
acceptable credit quality. Management does not
expect any of these financial institutions with fail to
meet their obligations.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 31, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 31.

Credit risk arising from trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, 19% (31 March 2020:
16%) and 43% (31 March 2020: 57%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors, respectively.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 BiIEMBEERAAE
VALUES (continued) (#&)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) =ERR (&)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables
(continued)

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the debtor
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the debtor operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 3 months from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
Trade receivables are mainly due from credit
card centres owned by state-owned financial
institutions in the PRC and tenants operating in
the Group’s department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets, and accordingly, the management of
the Group considers the concentration and credit
risks to be low. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

BUWEMRELEZEERE
(%)

PEBWRRM S - NEBE Y ER
—EBNELEERZMBER
NETTERBE & - ZFrHA
FEEBABTRENRELE R
EH 2 NREET - WAt REFE A
RiE M BB AR & FRAEREIR
RERER - ERER—REE
SHER=EARNDH - —RiMm
5 AKRETEERBEHARE
E e

AEERBENBEFERNA
HEEEE R 2R KRR
Z R R W A AR ST
HoRKBEREZRERT EE
BLRBBAEEERTLER
AEEBERS BYHLMEB
MHIHRE 2 BP 238 Btk
AEEEEERRETREER
SEE BRAKEZBEEE
EIEERIARATRELEZ
EERAKEERE  FtREB
EMRETECBEERE TS E—
TEARNEEZ NARFE -
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T _-_ZFTF+_-_HA=+—HIFNAA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables

(continued)

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

29 BIBEREERQAE

(&)

(a) EEER (&)
FEW IR 2 EE AR
(#)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables:

TE#IIAEEESE EEEAR
R BEAER 3 2 RS AT 2 A
#

At 31 December 2020
R-ZE-_ZEF+=-H=+—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEER HEREE EiEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥F
Current (not past due) BVER (R ER) 0.5% 8,720 44
Less 3 months past due  EHINER B =@ 1.2% 14,666 175
Over 3 months past due  #HiA 8 = & A 100% - -
23,386 219
At 31 March 2020
WR_ZE_ZEHF=A=+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAE R X HEREE EBiEEE
% RMB'000 RMB’000
ARKEFT ARKF T
Current (not past due) BVHER (R#ER) 0.5% 10,026 50
Less 3 months past due  #EHINER B = @ A 1.2% 25,219 302
Over 3 months past due @ HAE B = (& A 100% 8,932 8,932
44177 9,284

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-ZFE _-ZFF 1= ﬁ +—HI1EAEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SBIEH  TAIAARKZ2)

VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 BiIEMBEERAAE

(&)
(a) EEER (&)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables EBRERESELEZEERE
(continued) (%)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TREEIEERIREBRE=F2 &
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are BREBLREE ZFXaE
adjusted to reflect differences between economic ijﬂ?fgb/{}iﬁg% SESERER e
conditions during the period over which the historic B BRI AR E
data has been collected, current conditions and 1 i WK IE T8 B F BRI A8 B AR AL
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the LB ER

expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect BN BRER BB R ERY
of trade receivables during the period is as follows: )N

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020

BZE HE

—E-%F  —TTHF
+t=A=+t—R =A=+—H
EREA EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Balance at 1 April

Amounts written-off during
the period/year
Impairment losses recognised during

AP A — B & ¢t 9,284 17,236
HAN B RS 2 FROE
(9,132) (8,114)

BN,/ AR REER

the period/year 67 162

Balance at 31 December/March Rt+t-—A=+—HBK=H

=t+— BB 219 9,284

The following significant change in the gross FEWER AR B E 2 EXE

carrying amounts of trade receivables contributed to BEEREERD

the decrease in the loss allowance:

—  a write-off of trade receivables with a gross - WELEFEEDE /\ K %
carrying amount of RMB9,132,000 (31 March 9,132,000t (=& =&
2020: RMB27,839,000) resulted in a decrease F=ZA=T—RH:AR¥
in loss allowance of RMB9,132,000 (31 March 27,839,0007% ) 2 fE Ux B

2020: RMB8,114,000).

REBEBREBEEBREBRD A
R#9,132,000 4 ZE =
FE=-RA=H#FH K
8,114,0007% ) °
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk arising from other receivables
from third parties

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings is
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB2,046,659,000. The Group has
undertaken and will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its liquidity
position in the short and longer term. Further details
are set out in Note 2(b).

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group
can be required to pay.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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29 BHEBREERQAE
(%)

(a)

(b)

FERR (&)

HttERE=FHARELZE
Emp
AEERBEEN T _EARME
BEEE SR EE MR TR
ZEERE - ZTeMEEZTR
HEEBEIREASE ZIBE
EEBRERMG  UREER
ABEZRRETHE REH
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SUETT RIS

RBEE AR
AEERNENEEEBRRAERS
ReBupsirE mEeE

SRR EE B SR EEIAE
NEHREF K - AERE ZHR
RERERERBESHRKEHE
BT EERE BN AERA
SEEF TR HBALET
ZomEBEAERERNES
NENEHEEMZABEST
sk o

RZZE_EF+-_A=+—8H"
REEZRBEEFEAARK
2,046,659,0007T ° 7/~ & B & &
o K % e 4 R BN 2 TR i DA 3 —
PREECHRERBZRSE
AN o i — T EFIBEH AT
2(b) °
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—FT-FF+=-A=+—HIENEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ2))

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 B EMREER A AE
VALUES (continued) (#%&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEARK (&)
As at 31 December 2020
K=2-8%+-B=+-A

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ARARRRER
More than Carrying
More than 2 years amount at
Within 1 1 year but but less 31
yearoron less than than  More than December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2020
R
it Jut 2.3
t=A
-Fry  BE-F BEWF =+-H

BEX BOIRWE EIREF BBIF gt zkEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREBTRL ARETT ARETT ARETR

Trade and other REHERARTEL
payables measured  FE{TERF R E ML K

at amortised cost 797,537 - - - 797,537 797,537
Lease liabilities HEERE 21,890 13473 31,707 39,649 106,719 80,942
Bank and other ROREMEE

borrowings 1,918,622 558,078 793,862 202,419 3,472,981 3,115,455

2,738,049 571,551 825,569 242,068 4,377,237 3,993,934

As at 31 March 2020
R-E-ZF=f=1-H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ANARRRE RN
More than

More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1 1 year but but less amount at
yearoron less than than  More than 31 March
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2020
S
“BCBRF
—FRd  BE-F BBmE =R=1-H

BER BORNWE BIRDE  BRRF At <EEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANEBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETL ARETTL ARETT

Trade and other payables REHENAHEL

measured at amortised cost  [EREEZ R EMENT 1,035,842 = = - 1,035,842 1,035,842
Lease liabilities HEERE 28,039 14,683 28,869 33,107 104,698 85,109
Bank and other borrowings  $#/7 R A ft fE & 1615165 771,402 399459 252,730 3,038,756 ~ 2,707,403

2,679,046 786,085 428328 285,837 4,179,296 - 3,828,354
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BF 15 ¥Rk Y &
For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—-ZL=%F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of
the reporting period.

F+-A=+—HILNEA

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

29 BBEREERQAE

(&)
(c)

) 2= & By

AEEZHRAREIEREHE
B o $ 7T 8 I R IR E S AU
B1I2 BEEAEESHIESH

AP =
FTLE

)
A

(i) FIEER
TRANAEEFEEE
R E IR 2 M REER

At 31 December 2020

MR B KR A SENEE

At 31 March 2020

R=-ZF-%F RZTZFF
+=ZHA=+—H =A=+—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BERFIE BB =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR®FT ARKTFT
Fixed rate borrowings: EE R XEE :
Other borrowings HiEE 7.5% 1,500,000 8.8% 148,951
Bank loans RITERK 6.8% 500,000 9.9% 1,230,000
2,000,000 1,378,951
Variable rate ARFNEER:
borrowings:
Bank loans RITEK 6.2% 1,115,455 58% 1,328,452
Total borrowings BERRE 3,115,455 2,707,403
Fixed rate borrowings [& 7 F| % & & 1§
as a percentage of EEHRE
total borrowings B 64% 51%

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-ZFE _-ZFF 1= ﬁ +—HI1EAEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SBIEH  TAIAARKZ2)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 BiIEMBEERAAE
VALUES (continued) (#&)

() F=mbx (&)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately RMB RMBS&,366,000 (year
ended 31 March 2020: RMB10,944,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate borrowings held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of which on the Group’'s loss
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from other financial assets (see Note 18).

The Group’s investments in other financial assets
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
performance of these equity securities is regularly
monitored.

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% in the relevant stock
price with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group's other
comprehensive income by RMB16,770,000 (31
March 2020: RMB15,504,000).

(i) #BMED T
R—ZZE_Z2F+ = A
=+—RH -EFBEHEMTA
BPRRRFIE 22BN
T - Al & F = — AR NSk
A 1005 B 15  > ok 12
A 5 B i 1& a7 & AR BB
i Hl 49 A R 8,366,000
T(EE2-_ZE_ZFF=H
=+—HLEFEARK
10,944,0007T) °

F SR S AT TR R
FHRAAEERFEZ
BREBNEFEZEE
%Eziﬁﬁmuiﬁjzﬂ

CHAREERRT R E R
&ﬁmmﬂ‘gwﬁﬁﬁ
BN EEBENER 2
rEAEFEMMGET - D
MERBE_ZT_TF=
R=+—RIFEZHA
EAEHIT o

(d) EZERERE

AEEHREMCEREEEE
ZHEDEREHER (R KT
18) °

AEERNEMEREEZRER
LBESR MR LT 2SR
BHZREACETEMEE-

R-_ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—8"
HETEEREER LR TH
10% fEFTE HMr] B A X
RIFT & ZIET’$%IZH
ftb 2 Uk == A5 38 0, R
MWeﬁommn(_t__?E_
A=+—8: AR¥15,504,000
JT) °
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Equity price risk (continued)

(e)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that
none of the Group’s other financial assets would be
considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Fair value measurement
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R AR MY A

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z T -ZFF+ _A=+—HIt @A
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SBIEH  TAIAARKZ2)

29 BIBEREERQAE

VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

(%)

(e) AREFE (&)

Financial assets and liabilities measured () BARBEZZHEE
at fair value (continued) REME(E&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NAEEBR (&)
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured e FZHHE:FHE
using significant unobservable inputs. AN B R A B
SFEZANE
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
as at as at
31 December 31 March
Fair value at 2020 2020
31 December categorised  Fair value at categorised
2020 into Level 1 31 March 2020 into Level 1
R=B-2F R-B-BE
R-B-E% +-A=+-H MR-E-Ff =fA=1-H
ZA=1+-H DAEHESE =B=t-Hz DQABHEDE
ZBRE BE-R AAE BE-R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL AEETTL
Recurring fair value CEMDAAETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Other financial assets EemaE
— Listed (see Note 18) -k (B HEE18) 167,700 167,700 182,400 182,400
Fair value of financial assets and (i) LHFBAAREBIIRZEH

liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values at 31 December 2020 and 31 March

2020.

BEREEZALE
R—_FT_FF+_A
=E+—BARZZT_TF=
A=+—8 ZREBMUK
RS SRR AR 2 € Rl
TAZEEERAEAARE
WEEKRZER -
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #HZ _—ZE _-_ZT#+_-A=+—HIt @A
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BIEZH1E8 TAIUARKEZS)
30 COMMITMENTS 30 &L
At 31 December 2020, the outstanding capital RZZEZZTFE+-_A=1+—0H &%
commitments of the Group not provided for in the BRTHKEVBRMETEBEZRTE
consolidated financial statements were as follows: RAEAPEWR ¢
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R=-B-BF R_T_ZTF
+=A=+—8B =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARBTFIT
Commitments in respect of purchase BB E ¥  WE KRG K&
of property, plant and equipment REMFEZ A
and investment properties
— Contracted for -2 ET# 414,601 414,601

At 31 December 2020, capital commitments in respect
of purchase of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties are for leasehold improvements
to be installed in the Group’s department store and
supermarket operations and the remaining payments for
the acquisitions of properties.

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in respect
of a payable for acquisition of a property by Ginwa
Investments in August 2005. Ginwa Investments has
defaulted repayment of the above payable. As at the end
of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Group under the guarantee. The maximum
liability of the Group at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee issued is the outstanding amount
of the liability of RMB9,500,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB70,180,000) plus accrued interest.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in

32

these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with equity shareholders

and their affiliates, and a director of the

(BIFBEEH BEIKARKEZS))
EABEALRS
SRS MK MBI TR 2 4

N REETETIA TEARBEA
5.

T Ry

123
ER
+

s

BEARARRENEBHEAL
UR—BEBETZXS

(a)

Company
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
BZE HZE
—EEF —T_FF
+=—A=+—B =A=+—H
tEh@EA IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%FT ARKFT
Net decrease in advances granted to & TR — BRI A BB QA AH
the affiliates of Mr. Wu Yijian BHFORAFRE (M)
(see Note (i) - (3,235)
Guarantees provided by Mr. Wu Yijian R|EFRR —ELLH
for the Group’s bank loans at the AREBEZRTEFIRM
end of the reporting year ZHER = 1,252,000
Guarantees provided by Qujiang RS B R BT 2 B AR =X
Financial Holdings or its subsidiary HEfBRRISAERIEITR
for the Group’s bank and other Hip e ERME ZER
borrowings at the end of the
reporting period 910,000 =
Net increase in advances received R E ML RER & HE
from Qujiang Financial Holdings BB A Al 2 B FUF I
and its subsidiary 207,201 =
Entrusted loans from Qujiang Financial B T € @iZl 2 ZEE R
Holdings (see Note 24(a)) (B HfaE24(a)) 690,000 -

Note:

(i)  The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

B o

() ZBRASEER RERLE
B E KA -
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z=F=F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (R 3E5 H 1585

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

F+-A=+—HILNEA
BAIKAREZ5)

32 EXHEALRF (&)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FEEEASFM
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEBABZHM (BIENT
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors STEBEE N TARRIEE ZK
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid BERMFFMEEEN FET &
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: SEFMEBR ZFE)MT

Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
Eﬁz‘ HZE
—BEF —ET_ETF
+=—A=+—-H =ZA=+—H
@A IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARKF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 « 28L& H 4t B W& 7 7,509 13,785
Retirement scheme contributions BRI R 193 608
7,702 14,393
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see FMasETAIEIRA]IA
Note 6(b)). ( R.Kt7E6(b)) °
(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to () LHHAMMREARBERZZ2E

connected transactions

Certain of the related party transactions disclosed in
Note 32(a) above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
they are conducted on normal commercial terms or
better and not secured by the assets of the Group.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —E_-_ZF+_-_HA=+—HILNEA

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

33 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

(BRIFAEHEH BRIKAREZS)

7 & T MR 0R &

At At

31 December 31 March
2020 2020
R-ZEBE-Z2F R_ZT_FTF
+=—A=+—H :Her B

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI E 1,831,453 2,609,413
Other financial assets HEfomEE 14,307 =
1,845,760 2,609,413
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H i & YK 30,181 33,252
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEEFENTFHEIRS 6,285 105
36,466 33,357
Current liabilities REBAE
Other borrowings Hihfg B8R = 17,633
Interest payable JE A~ A B - 305
Other payables E{ﬁﬁé‘?ﬁ?ﬁ( 281,118 199,994
281,118 217,932
Net current liabilities REBEEEE (244,652) (184,575)
Non-current liabilities 3Fum§bﬁ1£
Other borrowings HmEER - 517
- 517
NET ASSETS EESH 1,601,108 2,424,321
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R R f#HE 28
Share capital A& A 199,369 199,369
Reserves {1 1,401,739 2,224,952
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,601,108 2,424,321

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 30 March 2021.

Huang Shunxu
=456
Chairman

FE

KEEERN_T-_—F=H=+
B #t /& &Txﬁé Fi) 2% o

Qin Chuan
=
Director

EF

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-ZFT_-=F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

34

35

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 January 2021, a resolution for the acquisition of
trademarks was passed by the shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company. Reference is made
to the circular of the Company dated 18 December
2020 regarding the major and connected transactions
in relation to acquisition of trademarks. The Group has
acquired trademark-use-right through its acquisitions of
department store and supermarket operations in prior
years (see Note 14), upon completion of the acquisition
of trademarks, the Group shall enjoy the entire rights,
title and interest in and to the trademarks and their
respective registrations made and applications for
registration in progress to the Group, free and clear of
any restriction, which shall result in the Group having the
right, for itself and/or to license to other third parties, to
use the trademarks for any other newly opened shopping
malls, department stores, supermarkets.

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 EPIDEMIC

The COVID-19 epidemic since early 2020 has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and has impacted the Group’s operations
and financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of
the developments on the Group’s business and has put
in place contingency measures. In view of the epidemic-
driven economic downturn, the Group assessed the
situation and adhered to the principles of reducing costs
and enhancing operational efficiency.

As a result of the measures that were implemented to
control the spread of COVID-19, the shopping habits of
the general public have changed, resulting in the business
operation of the Group being significantly impacted
and it is expected that it will take time for the Group’s
business operation to fully recover, which resulted in
additional impairment losses on goodwill and intangible
assets. The directors of the Company believe that the
consumption and economy in the PRC will gradually
recover as the epidemic calms down. The new normal in
consumption derived from COVID-19, on the other hand,
will change the operating principles and landscape of the
retail industry in the long run. To maintain the freshness
of the businesses, the Group will remain vigilant at all
times, stay close to market trends and timely adjust our
operating model. The Group will continue to closely
monitor the situation and implement contingency
measures, where necessary in a view to reduce the
impacts from the COVID-19 epidemic.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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34

35

(BRIF=EEH  BRIUAAREZS)

BEMBRFARER

R-Z-—F—ARB RERER
ARRESRIAE LiEig—BWERE
ZRBER BB ARRARAR T
—TE+ AT/ \BEBERBEREZ
TBRAERS 2BEEK - AEERE
EFEEERKRBEEERS MERTS
EBESHEERE (RME14) -1
EREBRE 2R AEESEER
BB ERN FrBRNERNEE
2z EARRE TE M A B EEAE 332 R i 2
B PR EEZEMRS E8E
BAEEERATR WRELME
=T RERELHFEEYRL BE
B hBATHERER-

MEMXRFNEE

BT TEURNHBIHA LR
RN B A RIS A R INTREE
B W EREENGEE R BN
Ao

AEE-—ERYRTIERERIAE
BXBHTE WO HE RS-
HERIETRNQELE AEEE
B E B0 B <7 R AR R Al o

BN AT E RS AR IEEE - A
THBYEEBELE( EHAEE
EBEERINEATE HBEHAE
BEGZETEMERTRBE X
BENENEERSREINIERE-
ARBEER PEBE MEERK
REZRERERMELRE S —T7
| HEMAELERBEREESR
ENETETENETRILEE-
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W -AEERESTIERRS
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 #Z —ZFE_-—ZFF+_-H=4+—HIF " 1AA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BIHFZEHER TRIAAREZS)

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 36 EHEAERMARBE=_ZT=
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFXE+-A=+—HLtANE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR RERZHATENRREZ
THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER BrxE
2020
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, BHENZEZSWHKHEBH &g
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and R ASERMEZERARBES
a new standard, which are not yet effective for the —EF+"A=+—HIENEAEK
nine months ended 31 December 2020 and which have BRARZER G RERRANIEE] X
not been adopted in these financial statements. These FTER - ZFHEREBE T aEEA
developments include the following which may be SEEREE-
relevant to the Group.

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on

or after

AL B H s

ZEBRBOE

HEEX

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, 1 January 2021
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

ERMBREERNNFENR BEAELTEREINR EEVBREENFETR - —T-—F—-H—-H

BEEMBRELRFARRBFERERELRNE 1658 2] [MEREERFE-F2R]

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

1 January 2022

BERNBRELEUNEIR B [HSER R —E-=%—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
BB EF165 2B WX WBE k&R E AT R &AM EHE] —EZZ%—A—AH

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BEGHERIETR 2B [BEAKN-BITA NI

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
BEMBHRELN _Z- \FE_Z_ZFRYNFELE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BREGMEMNSIRZE] [HABIBRARDHIFRD ]

Amendments to HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

1 January 2022
“E-—%—A—H

1 January 2022
T _F—-H—H

1 January 2023
—T-_=%—-H—H

1 January 2023

ERMEREERNE 7R 2B [REeE4) —E-=%—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
BASHENE IR ERBEBYBREEFE2R 2B [SFBERAEKE] C B S

HE S HHEBRERAT
B of L
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Bt 75 R R Y RE

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B Z =T =FF+=-HA=+—HI1-NEA
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFS BB BRAIAAREZ )

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 36 EEAEMARBE=-ZZ
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EE+-_A=+—HiII{HE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR BERZHTEARREZ
THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER BESE (&)

2020 (continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

RUT BHE

ZERRNEE

HiR 4R

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BRI ERFESR 2B [Fetst 2 ER] —T-=%—Hf—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its ~ To be determined
associate or joint venture

BAMBRELENFEI0RLEB L ERFE28R 2B [REFREBEARKAELEY FiE
RMEELESTE]

~

Amendments to HKFRS 4, Extension of the temporary exemption from applying HKFRS 9 To be determined
ERUBREENESR2ER] [EREAEEMBRELNFIR 2 LR % FE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of AREBEFAENF HZEERRBAER
what the impact of these developments is expected to be HARFEERE RN E iz 5 A 1F ' K
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded E B R AN BT K A] R ¥ 4R
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant SRR BREATE

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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